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YIEH PHUI ENTERPRISE CO., LTD.
Representation Letter

The entities that are required to be included in the combined financial statements of
Yieh Phui Enterprise Co., Ltd. as of and for the year ended December 31, 2009, under
the Criteria Governing the Preparation of Affiliation Reports, Consolidated Business
Reports and Consolidated Financial Statements of Affiliated Enterprises are the same
as those included in the consolidated financial statements prepared in conformity with
the revised Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 7, “Consolidated
Financial Statements™. In addition, the information required to be disclosed in the
combined financial statements is included in the consolidated financial statements.
Consequently, Yieh Phui Enterprise Co., Ltd. and Subsidiarics do not prepare a
separate set of combined financial statements.

Yieh Phui Enterprise Co., Ltd.

[.S. Lin
Chairman

April 21,2010
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Horwath Certified Public Accountants ! :

. Telephone: (07) 3312133
A Member of Horwath International Fax:l(07)33317)10

Yieh Phui Enterprise Co., Ltd.
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Yieh Phui Enterprise Co., Ltd.

We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of Yieh Phui Enterprise Co., Ltd. and its
subsidiaries as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, and the related consolidated statements of
income, changes in stockholders’ equity and cash flows for the years then ended. These
consolidated financial statements arc the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on
our audits. As disclosed in Note | to the consolidated financial statements, the financial
statements of certain subsidiaries were audited by other auditors. Our opinion , insofar as it
relates to the amounts for such subsidiaries, is based solely on the reports of the other
auditors. Such subsidiaries’ financial statements reflect total assets of NT$14,530,779
thousand, representing 22.32% of the Company's consolidated total assets as of December
31, 2008, and also reflect net sales of NT$9.655,182 thousand, representing 16.34% of the
Company's consolidated net sales tor the year then ended. Also, we didn’t audit the financial
statements of certain long-term investments accounted for using the equity method. Our
opinion, insofar as it relates to the carrying value of such equity method investments of
NT$480,698 thousand and NT$508,203 thousand as of December 31, 2009 and 2008.
respectively, and the related investment income (loss) of (NT$15,039) thousand and
(NT$82,383) thousand for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively, as
well as the related information disclosed in Note 41 to the consolidated financial statements,
is solely based on the reports of the other auditors.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
Republic of China and “the Rules Governing the Audit of Financial Statements by Certified
Public Accountants. These standards and Rules require that we plan and perform the audits
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant cstimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits and the reports of the
other auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

_4_
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In our opinion, based on our audits and the other auditors’ reports, these consolidated
financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Yieh Phui Enterprise Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2009 and
2008 and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended in
- conformity with the Guidelines Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by
Securities Issuers, requirements of the Business Accounting Law and Guidelines Governing
Business Accounting with respect to financial accounting standards, and accounting
principles generally accepted in the Republic of China.

NON-CONFIDENTIAL

As disclosed in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements, on January 1, 2009, the
Company adopted the newly revised Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 10,
“Accounting for Inventories™. The adoption resulted in a decrease of NT$37,210 thousand
in net income and a decrease of NT$0.03 in earnings per share for the year ended December
31, 2009. And beginning January 1, 2008, the Company has recognized employee bonus
and remuneration paid to directors and supervisors as expenses instead of appropriations
from earnings according to the Interpretation (96) No.52 issued by Accounting Research
and Development Foundation. The change of accounting principle resulted in an increase of

NT$5.317 in liabilities and a decrease of NTS5.317 of in net income as of and for the year
ended December 31, 2008.

HORWATH CHIEN HSING
CPA: LING-WEN HUANG

CPA: CHING-LING LEE

Kaohsiung, Taiwan, Republic of China
Dated: April 21,2010
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements
(With Horwath Chien Hsing audit report dated April 21, 2010)
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YIEH PHUI ENWi&&%%TkND SUBSIDIARIES PUBL!C FELE
CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENTS 7;},?-
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009 AND 2008
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)
2009 2008
Items Notes Amount % Amount %
OPERATING REVENUE
GROSS SALES $45271.165 101.00 $59.176.392 101.38
LESS: SALES RETURN & ALLOWANCES 451,152 1,00 806.199 138
NET SALES 2 $44.820.013 100.00 $58.370.193 100.00
COST OF SALES 11 32035365 9379 53.540.843 91.73
" GROSS PROFIT (LOSS) $2.784.648 6.21 $4,829.350 827
UNREALIZED GROSS PROFIT FROM AFFILIATES 2 10.965 0.03 8.057 0.02
REALIZED GROSS PROFIT FROM AFFILIATES 2 3.057 0.02 42,628 0.07
OPERATING EXPENSES
Reserch and Development 49.512 0.11 39,565 007
Marketing 1,390.104 3.09 1.885.861 3
General and administrative 662.686 1.48 616.791 1.06
Total operating expenses $2.102.302 4.68 $2.545.217 435
INCOME FROM OPERATIONS $679.438 1.52 $2.318.704 397
NON-OPERATING INCOME AND GAINS
Interest income $46.551 0.09 $70.527 0.14
Investment income 21,138 0.05 123.070 0.21
Investment income recognized under the equity inethod 204 9.239 0.02 -
Garn on disposal of property. plant & equipment 16461 0.04
Gain on disposal of investments 23 46.33 0.10 - -
Foreign exchange gain 2 - - 345929 0.59
Valuation gain on financial assets 28 343.690 0.77 - -
Miscellaneous income 33 77913 0.17 75.679 0.13
Total non-operating income and gains $561.330 1.24 $615.205 1.07
NON-OPERATING EXPENSES AND LOSSES
Interest expense $738.770 ©165 $1.042.750 1.80
lnvestment toss 2.003 - - -
Investment loss recognized under the equity method 214 - - 34,768 0.06
Loss on disposal of property, plant & equipment 3.296 0.0l 12979 0.02
Loss on disposal of investments 25 - - 129 -
Foreign exchange loss 2 30.812 0.07 - -
Impainment loss 34 9.462 0.02 437.744 0.75
Valuation loss on financial assets 25 - - 28.688 005
Miscellancous expenses 98.842 0.22 79401 0.13
Total non-operating expenses and losses $883.185 1.97 31.636.459 231
INCUME BEFUKE INCUME TAX $357.583 0.79 $1.297450 223
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 2.36 155438 . 034 340.839 0.59
CONSOLIDATED NET INCOME 3202145 045 $956.611 164
ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Stockholders of the parent $285.749 0.64 S1.018321 74
Minority interest -83 604 -0.19 361710 -0.10
BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE 37 After Income Tax After Income Tax
Consolidated net income So.i4 30.64
Minority interest 0.06 0.04
Stockholders of the parent $0.2 S0.68
DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE 37
Consolidated net income $0.14 $0.64
Minority interest 0.06 0.04
Stockholders of the parem $0.2¢ 50,68
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YIEH PHUI ENTERPRISE CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS PUBLIC Flu?E
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009 AND 2008 »*
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars) PUBLIC FiL”
[tems 2009 2008
1.Cash flows from operating activities
Net income $285,749 $1,018.321
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Bad debts 5,886 -
Depreciation 1,712,198 1,717,996
Depreciation of idle assets 3.026 5,049
Depreciation of other assets-others 1,229 1,228
Amortization 71,945 67.715
Depreciation of assets leased to others 43,375 -
Loss of purchase contract (16,010) 16,010
Investment loss 2,003 -
Realized loss (gain) on foreign exchange - (69,335)
Provision for pension cost 14,759 12,976
Other income transterred from allowance for doubtful account - (10,049)
Investment income (loss) recognized under the equity method (9,239) 34,768
Loss (Gain) on disposal of investments (10,593)
Loss (Gain) on disposal of propety, plant and equipment (16,461) (53)
Loss (Gain) on retirement of propety, plant and equipment 3,296 13,032
Loss (Gain) on disposal of noncurrent assets held for sale - 387
Loss (Gain) on disposal of idle asseets (316) 65
Loss (Gain) on retirement of idle assets 157 -
Expense transferred from propety, plant and equipment 941 561
Decrease (Increase) in overdue receivables 4,777) 2,423
Unrealized gross profit (loss) from affiliates 10,964 8,057
Realized gross loss (profit) from affiliates (8,057) (42.628)
Valuation (gain) loss on financial assets (343,690) 28,688
Impairment losses 9,462 437.744
Provision for (Reversal of) loss on inventories (1,232,613) 1,035,546
Decrease (Increase) in financial assets at fair value through 19,373 (610,349)

profit or loss-current

_8_
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[tems 2009 2008
Decrease (Increase) in notes receivable (35,103) 367915
Decrease (Increase) in accounts receivable (668,592) 1,292,942
Decrease (Increase) in accounts receivable-related parties (810,248) 1,329,442
Decrease (Increase) in other receivables-related parties (47,765) 115,883
Decrease (Increase) in other receivables (25,181) 6.875
Decrease (Increase) in inventories 1,809.562 (1,534,103)
Decrease (Increase) in prepayments (1,438.093) (6,025)
Decrease (Increase) in deferred inome tax assets 188,756 (196,581)
Increase (Dcrease) in notes payable (337,248) 1.033,032
Increase (Dcrease) in accounts payable 164,522 (269,194)
Increase (Decrease) in compensation for accrued interest - 1.162
Increase (Decrease) in accounts payable-related parties 115907 128,599
Increase (Decrease) in other payables (34,049) 60,032
Increase (Decrease) in income tax payable (248.,693) 28,439
Increase (Decrease) in accrued expenses 104,679 (251,653)
Increase (Decrease) in advance receipts (141.045) 113.394
Increase (Decease) in minority interest (83,604) (61.710)
Net cash provided by (used in ) operating activities ($943,588) $5,826,621
2.Cash flows from investing activities

Decrease (Increase) in financial assets at fair value through ($280,000) § -
profit or loss-noncurrent
Procceds from disposal of noncurrent assets held for sale - 177,479
Decrease (Increase) in restricted assets 480,998 287,891
Proceeds from disposal of financial asscts carried at cost 10,593 -
Procecds from disposal of propety, plant and equipment 21,766 2,551
Withdrawal from financial assets carried at cost-noncurrent 32,901 -
Withdrawal from invesments accounted for using the equity - 3,180,590
method
Proceeds from disposal of idle assets 14,285 -
Acquisition of financial assets carried at cost-noncurrent (3.226) (272,901)
Acquisition of investments accounted for using the equity (333.936) (7,288.721)

method

— 8_] —
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[tems 2009 . 2008

Decrease (Increase) in sinking fund - 76,500

Acquisition of propety, plant and equipment (811,824) (2,386,563)

Decrease (Increase) in guarantee deposits paid ’ (24,374) 58,383

Decrease (Increase) in deferred charges (80,169) (62,795)

Proceeds from disposal of bond investments with no active 2,000 22,000

market

Dgcrease in other reccivables at beginning balance . 12,600 301,266

Decrease (Increase) in other assets-others (22,657) (15,145)

Net cash used in investing activities ($981,043) ($5,919,465)

3.Cash flows from financing activities

Increase (Decrease) in short-term loans ($335,683) $4,922.272

Increase (Decrease)in short-term bills payable (896,664) 1.297.677

Increase (Decrease) in long-term loans 835,263 5,297,767

Increase (Decrcase) in lcase payable (1,740) -

Increase (Decrease) in bonds payable - (75.386)

Decrease (Increase) in treasury stock - (418,867)

Increase (Decrease) in guarantee deposits received 727 72

Decreasc in nunority interest (507) 3

Cash dividends paid (282.372) (694.835)

Bonus to employees (6,119)

Remuneration to directors and supervisors - (1,224)

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities ($680,976) $10,321,160

Effects of changes in subsidaries S - ($6,714,215)

4 Effects of exchange rate changes $174,931 $44.034
5.Net increase(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ($2,430,676) $3.558,135
6.Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the yecar 5,980.549 2,422,414
7.Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year $3,549,873 $5,980,549
8.Supplementary information of cash flows:

(1) Interest paid $895,580 $1,133,200
Less: Interest capitalized (135,564) (115,930)
Interest paid, excluding interest capitalized $760,016 $1,017,270

(2) Income tax paid - 8215837 $513,892

- 8_2 —_
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Items 2009 2008
(3) Non-cash investing and financing activities:
Current portion of long-term loans $3,775,888 $3,723,973
Transfer of financial assets carried at cost to investments ~ $ - $285,000
accounted for using the equity method
Transfer of properties to noncurrent assets held for sale $12,977 $ -
Transfer of properties to inventories $254,252 $9,379
(4) Acquisition of properties by providing cash and making loans:
Acquisition of properties $832,434 $2.689.540
Tramsfer of inventories to propeties (8,782) (293.817)
Trarmsfer of deferred charges to properties (1,802) -
Trarnsfer of idle assets to propeties - (1,309
Tramsfer of other assets to propeties (20.086) -
Decrease (Increase) in equipment payable 10,060 (7,851)
Cash paid $811,824 $2,386,563
(5) Disposal of other assets-others by receiving cash
and increasing receivables:
Proceeds from disposal of properties $114,897 $2.551
Increase in other receivables (93,131) -
Cash reccived $21,766 $2,551
(6) Disposal of financial assets carried at cost-noncurrent
by receiving cash and increasing receivables:
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets carried at $38,781 $12,600
cost-noncurent
Increase in other receivables (5,880) (12,600)
Cash received $32,901 $ -
(7) Cash dividends received from equity method investees:
Cash dividends received from equity method investces $33,300 $29,400
Increase in other receivables (33,300) (29,400)
Cash received $ - $ -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements
{With Horwath Chien Hsing audit report dated april 21, 2010)
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YIEH PHUI ENTERPRISE CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES PUBLRC FULE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009 AND 2008

(Amounts In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Unless Specificd Otherwise)

271

1. Name of affiliates, relationship with the Company, main activities and percentage of

shares held by the controlling entity
(1) Relationship between the consolidated entities and the percentage of ownership
interest as of December 31, 2009: Please refer to TABLE 12 (page 103) for details.
(2) Main business of the consolidated entities:
A .Yich Phui Enterprise Co., Ltd. (the “Company” henceforth):
a.The Company was incorporated on April 14, 1978. The Company’s shares are
currently traded on the Taiwan Stock Exchange. The Company engages in the
processing. marketing and exporting of rolled steel coils, refined steel, molded
steel. steel and iron wires, galvanized, pre-painted. and surface treated mctal.
b.The Company’s board of directors resolved on May 23, 2005 to merge (simplified
merger) with Lien Kang Heavy Industrial Co., Lid. with the Company as the surviving
company. The record date of the merger was set on August 30, 2005. Every 2.5
common shares of Lien Kang Heavy Indusirial Co., Ltd. were converted into |
common share of the Company. The Company issued additional 4,859 thousand
common shares for this merger. Rights and obligations of holders of the newly issued

shares were the same as those of the Company’s original shareholders.

o

.Lien Kang Heavy Industrial Co., Ltd. was incorporated on November 23, 1989. lis
main activitics include the manufacturing, processing and trading of the various

mechanical spare parts, pipe installation and cngineering design.

B.The consolidated entities were as follows:

Percentage of Owership at December 31

Name of Investors Name of Subsidiarics Main Businesses 2009 2008

The Company Top Point Steel trading and 100.00% 100.00%
Invesment related businesses
Properties Ltd.

The Company Mickey Regent Inc.  Invesnuent 100.00% 100.00%

The Company Good Honor Investiment 100.00% 100.00%
Holdings Ltd.

The Company Best Perfect Steel wading and ) 100.00% 100.00%

' Holding Limited refated businesses
_ L) —
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Name of Subsidiaries

Main Businesses

B E
PUBLIC FELv?o

Percentage of Owership at December 31

2009

2008

The Company

The Company

The Company

The Company

The Company and
Worthing Honor
Holdings Ltd.
The Company and

Widax Taiwan Corp

Mickey Regent Inc.

Excellent Rewards
International Co.,
Lid.

Excellent Rewards
International Co..
Lid.

EMMT Systems
Corp.

Applied Wireless
Identifications
Group, Inc.

EMMT Systems
Corp. and Shin Phui
Steel Corp.

Excellent Rewards
Intcrnational Co.. Ltd.
Yieh Hsing
Enterprise CO., Ltd.
Shin Phui Steel
Corp.

Worthing Honor
Holdings Ltd.
Widax Taiwan Corp.
GEN-WAN
Technology Corp.
EMMT Systems
Corp

Yieh Phui{China)
Technometal Co..

Ld.

Chang Shu Chief
Leading Edge
Materials Co., Ltd.
Jian Gsu J&Y
Enginecring Co.. Lid.

Applied Wireless
Identifications
Group. Inc.

Awid Asia Co., Ltd.

Groupco

Technology Inc.

Investment

Wire and rolled steel
processing
Electronic Material
trading

Investment

Telecommunications

contracting

Manufacturing and
selling of Military
printed circuit boards
Manufacturing and
selling of pickled,
cold rolled. galvanized
and prepainted steel
coils

Contracting and
design of steel
structure

Installation and
engineering of Steel
structure and electrical
construction

RFID

Wholesale of
Teleconmumunication
Equipment
Wholesale and retail
of telecommunication
cquipment and

electronic materials
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100.00%

54.82%
(Note)
100.00%

100.00%

86.99%

91.06%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

72.94%

100.00%

92.50%

100.00%

100.00%

86.99%

89.10%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

72.94%

100.00%

92.50%
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a. Substidiaries changed in the consolidated financial statements: 269
For the year ended December 31, 2009: None
For the year ended December 31, 2008:
(a) The Company acquired some shares of Applied Wireless Identifications Group,
Inc. in April 2008, and thus gained contwol over it. Its financial statements were
included in 2008 consolidated financial statements, and were audited by other
auditors. Its financial statements reflected total assets of NT$147,218 thousand
as of December 31, 2008, and net sales of NT$200,475 thousand for the year
ended December 31, 2008.
(b)The Company established AWID ASIA Co., Ltd. in June 2008, and gained control
over it.
(c)The Company subscribed shares of Yieh Hsing Enterprise Co., Ltd. through
private placement in 2008, and thus gained control over it. Its financial statements
were included in the consolidated financial statements, and were audited by
other auditors. Its financial statements reflected total assets of NT$14,383,561
thousand as of December 31, 2008, and net sales of NT$9.454,707 thousand for
the year ended December 31, 2008.
(3) Subsidiarics not included in the consolidated financial statements: None.
(4) As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Company and its subsidiaries had 3,106 and

3,082 employees, respectively.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of Presentation
The Company’s consolidated financial statements have been presented in conformity with the
Guidclines Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers, requirements
of the Business Accounting Law and Guidelines Governing Business Accounting and
accounting principles generally accepted in the Republic of China.
The Company’s significant accounting policies are summarized as follows:
(1) Consolidated Items:
A.Basis for preparation of consolidated financial statements
As described in Note 1, the consolidated financial statements include the accounts
of all the investees in which the Company had a controlling interest. All significant

intercompany transactions and balances have been climinated upon consolidation.
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B.Translation of financial statements of foreign subsidiaries
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268

The subsidiaries’ financial statements denominated in foreign currencies are translated
into New Taiwan dollars as follows:

Assets and liabilitics are translated using the exchange rates at the balance sheet

date. Equity accounts are translated at historical rates. Profit and loss accounts are
translated at the weighted average rates of the year. The resulting translation

differences are recorded as cumulative translation adjustments under stockholders’
equity.

(2) Accounting for Long-term Construction Contracts

The percentage-or-completion method of accounting for long-term construction projects is
adopted when the construction period exceeds one year and the contract price, the completion
cost. and the extent of construction progress can be reasonably estimated. The construction
costs incurred are recorded as “work in progress™. Advance receipts on construction contracts
are recorded as “advance contract receipts”. At each year-end, the percentage-of-completion
method is used for estimating aggregate contract gain less aggregate contract gain recognized
in prior period, and the resulting difference is recognized currently. However, if the aggregate
gain recognized in prior period exceed that computed at the end of the current period, the
excess is recognized as contract loss currently. When a loss is estimated on construction
contracts, the entire estimated loss should be recognized immediately. If in the future such
estimated loss is reduced, then the loss should be reversed and the resulting gain recognized
currently.

(3) Criteria for Classifying Current and Noncurrent Assets and Liabilities

A.Rolled Steel Department:

Current assets are asscts held for trading purposes and assets expected to be converted to cash,
sold or consumed within one year from the balance sheet datc. Current liabilitics are
obligations incurred for trading purposes and obligations expected to be settled within one ycar

from the balance sheet date. Assets and liabilities that are not classified as current are non-
current assets and liabilities, respectively.

B.Heavy Industry Department:

The assets and liabilities related to construction business are classified either as current or
noncurrent based on the Company's operating cycle.

(4) Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents are treasury bills, time deposits rescindable anytime, commercial papers,
bankers' acceptance, and repurchase agreements collateralized by bonds with maturities of
three months or less from the date of purchase. Their carrying amount approximates fair value.
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(5) Financial Instraments at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss 2t
Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets or liabilities
held for trading, and financial assets or liabilities designated on initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss. These financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value
with transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition. When subsequently
measured at fair value, the changes in fair value are recognized in earmings. Cash dividends
received, including those received in the year of investment, are recognized as current income.
A regular way purchase or sale of financial assets is accounted for using settlement date
accounting. '

Derivatives that do not meet the criteria for hedge accounting are treated as financial assets or
liabilities held for trading. When the fair value is a positive amount, the derivative is treated as

a financial asset: when the fair value is a negative amount, the derivative is treated as a
financial liability.

The fair value is determined as follows: (a) publicly traded stocks are based on the closing
price on the balance sheet date; (b) beneficiary certificates - open-end-funds are based on the
net asset valuc on the balance sheet date; (c) bonds are based on the reference prices in the
OTC market on the balance sheet date; (d) financial assets and financial liabilities without
quoted prices in an active market arc determined using valuation techniques.

Financial assets or liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss are hybrid financial
instruments. Financial instruments are designated as financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss upon initial recognition to remove significant accounting inconsistency. Portfolios of
assets and labilities jointly managed in accordance with the Company’s risk management
policies and specific investment strategies were also designated at fair value.

(6) Bond Investments With No Active Market

Investment that does not have a quoted market price in an active market and the receipt upon
maturity is fixed or definite is carried at the amortized cost. Earnings or losses are recognized
at the time of derecognition, impairment or amortization. A regular way purchase or sale of
financial assets is accounted for using settlement date accounting.

If there is objective evidence that a financial asset is impaired, an impairment loss is
recognized. If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease is clearly attributable to an event which occurred after the impairment loss was
recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is reversed to the extent of the decrease.
The reversal should not result in a carrying amount of the financial asset that exceeds the
amortized cost.

(7) Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Allowance for doubtful accounts is estimated based on bad debt experience and also examining

the collectibility and aging analysis of notes receivable, accounts receivable, overdue
receivables and various credits.
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(8) Inventory 7475

A.Rolled Steel Department

Inventories include raw materials, supplies, work in process, and finished goods. Prior to
January 1, 2009, inventories were stated at the lower of cost or market value. Any write-down
was made on a total-inventory basis. Market value represented replacement cost for raw
materials and supplies, and net realizable value for work in process and finished goods. As
stated in Note 3, effective January 1, 2009, inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net
realizable value. Inventory write-downs are made on an item-by-item basis, except where it
may be appropriatc to group similar or related items. Net realizable value is the estimated
selling price of inventories less all estimated costs of completion and necessary seiling costs.
Inventory cost is determined by the weighted-average method.

B.Heavy Industry Department
The construction in progress is based on "Accounting for Long-term Construction Contracts ".

(9) Prepayments-Deferred Marketing expenses

The deferred marketing expenses are incurred to contracts within | year adopted the completed
contract method for the construction. The related marketing expenses of the construction in

progress will be deferred to the year of completion in order to be in accordance with the .
income.

(10) Investments Accounted for Using Equity Method

Investments accounted for using equity method in which the Company owns 20% or more of
the outstanding voting shares or where the Corporation has significant influence on the
investees are accounted for using the equity method.

Prior to January 1, 2006, the difference between the acquisition cost and the Company's
proportionate share in the investec's equity was amortized by the straight-line method over five
years. Effective January 1, 2006, pursuant to the revised Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards, the acquisition cost in excess of the Company's share of the fair value of the
identifiable net assets acquired is recognized as goodwill. Such goodwill is no longer being
amortized but instead is tested for impairment annually or whenever there are indications that
the investments are impaired. The excess of the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired
over the acquisition cost is used to reduce the fair value of cach of the noncurrent assets
acquired in proportion to the respective fair values of the noncurrent assets, with any excess
recognized as an extraordinary gain. Effective from January 1, 2006, the accounting treatment
for the unamortized investment premium arising on acquisitions before January 1, 2006 is the
same as that for goodwill and the premium is no longer being amortized. For any investment

discount arising on acquisitions before January 1, 2006, the unamortized amount continues to
be amortized over the remaining years.
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If the investment in and investee and any advances to the investee have been reduced to zero,
the Company will discontinue recognizing its investment loss. But if (a) the Company commits
to provide financial support to an investee or (b) if the investee's losses are temporary and
evidence sufficiently shows imminent return to profitability, the Company will continue to
recognize its investment loss. Any credit balance on the carrying value of a long-term

investment and advances are reclassified to receivables or other liabilities-others in the balance
sheets.

If an investce issues additional shares and the Comipany acquires shares at a percentage
different from its current equity in the investee, capital surplus is adjusted for the ditference
between the cost of the investments and the Company’s equity in the investee’s net assets. If
the cost of the investments is less than equity in net assets, the difference is added to capital
surplus. If the cost of the investments is morc than equity in net assets, the difference is
deducted from capital surplus, or from unappropriated eamings when capital surplus is not
enough for debiting purposes.

The Company's shares held by subsidiaries are recorded as treasury stocks. The Company's
dividends appropriated to subsidiaries are debited to investment income and adjusted to capital
suplus - treasury stock transaction.

When an indication of impairment is identified in an investment, the carrying amount of the
investment is reduced, with the related impairment loss charged to current income.

Stock dividends are accounted for only as an increasc in the number of shares held. and the
cost per share is re-calculated based on the new number of shares. Upon sale of stocks, the
weighted-average method is adopted in calculating the cost and gain or loss on disposal
thercof.

If an investee's functional currency is foreign currency, translation adjustments will result from
the translation of the investee's financial statements into the reporting currency of the

Company. Such adjustments arc accumulated and reported as a separatc component of
shareholders' equity.

Unrealized inter-company profits or losses resulting from transactions between the Company
and its investees accounted for under the equity method are deferred until such profits or losses
are realized. The profits or losses resulting from depreciated or amortized assets are
recognized over the estimated useful lives of such assets.

(11) Financial Assets Carried at Cost

Investments that do not have a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measurcd are carried at original cost, such as non-publicly traded stocks.
Stock dividends received are accounted for only as an increase in the number of shares held,
and the cost per share is re-calculated based on the new nembers of shares. If there is objective
evidence that a financial asset is impaired, an impairment loss is recognized. A subsequent
reversal of such impairment loss is not allowed.
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(12) Properties and Idle Assets ¢
Properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Interest expense for the purchase or

construction of properties is capitalized as property cost. Major additions, renewals and
betterments are capitalized, while maintenance and repairs are expensed currently.

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method with the guideline service lives
prescribed by the Government Tax Agency. Assets still in use after full depreciation may
continue to be depreciated based on the remaining estimated economic lives and salvage
values. The economic usefu! lives of major property and equipment are as follows:

Buildings and improvements, 8 to 55 years; machinery and equipment, 5 to 35 years; and other
equipments, 2 to 20 years.

Upon sale or disposal of propertics, the related cost and accumulated depreciation are removed
from the accounts, and the related gain or loss is credited or charged to income.

Assets leased to others are property, plant and equipment leased to others. Assets leased to
others are carried at the lower of net realizable value or carrying amount. Depreciation is
computed using the straight-line method with the guideline service lives prescribed by the
Government Tax Agency.

Property, plant and equipment not used in operations are stated at the lower of net realizable
value or carrying amount according to their nature and transferred to other assets-idle assets.

(13) Other Intangible Assets

Other intangible assets arc right for land usage and amortized on a straight-line basis over 50
years.

(14) Deferred Charges
Deferred charges are line subsidies, bond issue cost and telephone installation fee, which are
amortized over 3 to 10 years using the straight-line method.
(15) Pension
A.Yieh Phui Enterprise Co., Ltd.
The Company has a Pension Plan covering all permanent employees and makes a monthly
contribution equivalent to 4.2% of the total salary to the special pension fund account held
at the Bank of Taiwan in accordance with the Labor Standards Law. Pension payments
arc made from the special pension fund account first and the deficiency is paid by the

Company and recognized as current expense.
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The Company accounted for pension cost in accordance with SFAS No. 18 “Accounting

for Pensions" and recognized net pension costs and accrued pension liabilities in
accordance with the standard. Pension cost under a defined benefit plan is determined by
actuarial valuations and recorded as expense. Contributions made under a detined
contribution plan are recognized as pension cost during the year in which employees
render services.

B.Shin Phui Steel Corporation
The company has a Pension Plan covering all permanent employees and makes a monthly
contribution equivalent to 2% of the total salary to the special pension fund account held
at the Bank of Taiwan in accordance with the Labor Standards Law. Pension payments
are made from the special pension fund account first. Pension cost arising from retention
of years of service of the company’s employees prior to the new pension system is
immaterial. As such, the company has not recognized pension cost based on actuarial
valuations.

C.Gen-Wan Technology Corp.
The company makes a monthly contribution equivalent to 2% of the total salary to the
special pension fund account held at the Bank of Taiwan. Pension payments are made
from the special pension fund account first and the deficiency is paid by the company
and cxpense recognized as current. Starting January 1, 2003, the company accounted
for employees’ pension costs in accordance with SFAS No. 18 “Accounting for Pension”
and recognized net pension costs and accrued pension liabilities in accordance with the
standards. However, the company laid off all employees in June 2005 due to operational

considerations and the company ceased to adopt SFAS No. 18 in recognition of pension
cost thereafter.

D.EMMT Systems Corp.
The company has a Pension Plan covering all permanent employees and makes a
monthly contribution equivalent to 2% of the total salary to the special pension
fund account held at the Bank of Taiwan in accordance with the Labor Standards
Law. Pension payments are made from the special pension fund account first.
Starting January 1, 2006, the company accounted for employees’ pension costs in
accordance with SFAS No. 18 “Accounting for Pension™. The company recognized
deferred pension cost and accrued pension liabilities determined by actuarial
valuations undertaken on December 31, 2005 in the balance shcets as of

December 31, 2005 in accordance with the standards.
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Pension costs under a defined benefit plan are determined by actuarial valuations and

recorded as expenses. Contributions made under a defined contribution plan are
recognized as pension cost during the year in which employees render services.

E.Groupco Technology Inc. '

The Company has a Pension Plan covering all permanent employees. Pursuant to the
Labor Pension Act, the employer is required to make a monthly contribution equivalent
to no less than 6% of the total salaries to the pension fund account.

Contributions made under a defined contribution plan are recognized as pension cost
during the year in which employees render services.

F.AWID Asia
The Company has a Pension Plan covering all permanent employees. Pursuant to the
Labor Pension Act, the employer is required to make a monthly contribution equivalent
to no less than 6% of the total salaries to the pension fund account.

Contributions made under a defined contribution plan are recognized as pension cost
during the year in which employees render services.

G.Yieh Hsing Enterprise Co.. Ltd.:

The company adopts SFAS No. 18 “Accounting for Pension” and recognized

accrued pension liabilities and net pension cost in accordance with the standards.

The Labor Pension Act came into effect on July 1, 2005, and adopts a defined
contribution plan. Employeces may choose the pension mechanism of the “Labor
Standards Law” (old system) or the Labor Pension Act, by retaining their seniority
before the enforcement of the Act. For employees covered under the Act, the
employer shall make a monthly contribution equaling to at least 6% of total salaries for
depositing into the employees' individual pension accounts.

H.The Company’s subsidiaries including Top Point Investment Properties Ltd., Best
Pertect Holding Ltd., Good Honor Holdings Ltd., Worthing Honor Holdings Ltd.,
Excellent Rewards International Co., Ltd., Mickey Regent Inc., and Applied Wireless
Identifications Group Inc. have not put in place an Employee Pension Plan. The tocal
governments do not impose compulsory pension fund regulations on companies.

L.Yich Phui (China) Technomaterial Co., Ltd., Changshu Chief Leading Edge Construction
Materials Company and Jiangsu J & Y Engincering Co., Ltd. have not set out a scparate
employee pension plan, but instead, these investees make periodic employee retirement

insurance payments according to local regulatory requirements.
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(16) Deferred (Debits) Credits—Profit (loss) from affiliates

Deferred (Debits) credits-profit (loss) from affiliates refer to the elimination of unrealized
internal gain or losses related to sale of merchandise and assets to subsidiaries or equity-
method investees in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. The accounting
treatments are carried out in accordance with SFAS No. 3 “Long-term Investments Accounted
for Using the Equity Method”. Unrealized gains or losses arising from downstream transactions
between the investor and equity-method investees over which the investor has control, are
eliminated in full. Where the investor has no control but only exercises significant influence
over the investee company, any unrealized gains or losses arising from downstream
transactions between the investor and investee shall be eliminated in proportion of the
investor's ownership percentages in the investees.

|

(17) Classification of Capital and Income Expenditures

Significant recurring expenses were capitalized as assets, while others were expensed or
charged to current income.

(18) Revenue Recognition
A.Operating Revenue
The Company recognizes revenue when evidence of the revenue generation process is
complete and the revenue is realized or the collectability is reasonably assured. Any sale
not in satisfaction of the aforementioned criteria are recognized as revenue upon
satisfaction of the criteria.
Revenues are measured at fair value, the price (net of trade discounts and sales discounts)
agreed to by thc Company and customers. But if the related receivable is due within one
year, the difference between its present value and receivable amount is immaterial, and
sales transactions are frequent, the fair value of receivables is equivalent to the nominal
amount of cash to be received.
B.Construction Revenue
The SFAS No. 11 prescribes the adoption of the percentage-of-completion method to
account for gains and losses on a construction project with a duration of more than 1
year or the complete-contract method for a construction project with a duration of less
than | year. )
(19) Bonus to Employees and Remuneration to Directors and Supervisors

Starting January 1, 2008 (incl.), the Company adopted Interpretation 96-052. issued by the
ARDF, and makes an accrual for the amounts of bonus to employees and remuneration to
directors and supervisors in the accounts as cither “costs of operation” or “operating expenses™
according to their nature. Any variance between the accrued or actual amounts adopted in
shareholders’ meeting is treated as accounting estimate change and charged or credited to
current income.

_ 19 -
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(20) Foreign-currency Transactions 2bo

Foreign-currency transactions are recorded in New Taiwan dollars at the rates of exchange in
effect when the transactions occur. Exchange gains or losses derived from foreign-currency
transactions or monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognized
in eamings. At the balance shect date, foreign-currency assets and liabilities are revalued at
prevailing exchange rates with the resulting gains or losses recognized in earnings.

(21) Treasury stock

The Company's purchase of common stock issued is recognized as “treasury stock” based on
cost. When the price of disposal of treasury stock is higher than book value, the difference is
credited to “capital surplus — treasury stock”. When the situation is reversed, the difference is
recorded as a reduction in “capital surplus — treasury stock” or retained earnings when “capital
surplus — treasury stock” is insufficient. The book value of treasury stock is calculated based
on the average weight of each purchase reason.

At the time of writing off treasury stock, the Company should debit “common stock™ and
“capital surplus — premium on stock issuance” proportionally. As long as the book value is
higher than the sum of par value and premium on stock issuance, the excess should be recorded
as a reduction in “capital surplus — treasury stock™ or retained earnings when *“capital surplus —
treasury stock™ is insufficient. When the situation is reversed, the difference is credited to
“capital surplus - treasury stock”.

(22) Income Tax

The Company adopted SFAS No. 22, “Income Taxes”, and makes inter-period and intra-period
tax allocations. Furthermore, it complies with the requirements to recognize deferred income
tax liabilitics resulting from taxable temporary differences and to recognize deferred income
tax assets resulting from deductible temporary differences, prior year loss carry forwards, and
investment tax credits. The realization of deferred income tax assets is further assessed, and a
valuation account, if needed, is provided accordingly. A deferred tax asset or liability is
classified as current or non-current in accordance with the classification of its related asset or
liability. However, if a deferred tax asset or liability does not relate to an asset or liability in the
financial statements, then it is classified as either current or non-current based on the e\cepted
length of time before 1( is realized or scttled.

Income tax on unappropriated earnings at a rate of 10% is expensed in the year of
stockholders’ approval, which is the year subsequent to the year the eamnings are generated.

The Income Basic Tax Act (the “IBTA™) became cffective on January 1, 2006. The alternative
minimum tax (“AMT") imposed under the IBTA is a supplemental tax levied at a rate of 0%
which is payable if the income tax payable determined pursuant to the Income Tax Act is
below the minimum amount prescribed under the IBTA. The taxable income for calculating the
AMT includes most of the income that is cxempted from income tax under various laws and
statutes. The Company has considered the impact of the IBTA in the determination of its tax
liabilities.

Once the corporate tax law is amended, the deferred tax assets and liabilities will be
recalculated and the differences will be recognized as tax expenses or benefit.

- 20 —
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(23) Minority Interest 75‘1

A subsidiary's equity that is held by the investors other than these affiliated companies.
(24) Asset Impairment

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset
may have been impaired. If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable
amount of the asset. The Company recognizes impairment loss for an asset whose carrying
value is higher than the recoverable amount.

The Company reverses an impairment loss recognized in prior periods for assets other than
goodwill if there is any indication that the impairment loss recognized no longer exists or has
decreased. The carrying value after the reversal should not exceed the recoverable amount or
the depreciated or amortized balance of the assets assuming no impairment loss was recognized

in prior periods. Subsequent reversal of a previous recognized impairment loss on goodwill is
not allowed.

ACCOUNTING CHANGES

(1) Effective January 1, 2009, the Company adopted the newly revised SFAS No. 10,
*Accounting for Inventories.” The main revisions are (1) inventories are stated at the lower of
cost or net realizable value, and inventories are written down to net realizable value item-by-
item except when the grouping of similar or related items is appropriate: (2) unallocated
overheads arc recognized as expenses in the period in which they are incurred; and (3)
abnormal cost, write-downs of inventories and any reversal of write-downs are recorded as cost
of sales for the period. The adoption of SFAS No. 10 resulted in a decrease of $37,210

thousand in net income and a decrease of $0.03 in earnings per share (after tax) for the year
ended December 31, 2009.

To present fairly the product related cost, the Company considered cost of merchandisc sales,
unallocated fixed overheads, abnormal manufacturing cost, and loss on inventory valuation and
obsolescence (or gain on inventory value recoveries) as part of cost of goods sold.

(2) On Januar'y 1, 2008, the Company has adopted newly released Statements of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 39 “Share-based payment”(SFAS No. 39) and No.52 Explanation
made by Accounting Research and Development Foundation in 2007. The effects of the
adoption as of and for the year ended December 31, 2008 were as follows:

Accrued expenscs: Increase by NT$7,089 thousand; Tax payable: Decrease by NT$1,772

thousand; Net income : Decrease by NT$5,317 thousand; EPS (after tax): Decrease by
NTS0.004.
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4. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS s
December 31
Items 2009 2008

Petty cash $2,574 $2,587
Checking account 465,499 311,570
Savings account 2,545,670 3,131,678
Foreign currency account 234,130 2,128,404
Time deposits 302,000 356,310
Short-term notes - » 50,000

Total $3,549,873 35,980,549

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

December 31

[tems 2009 2008
Financial assets held for trading-current
Domestic listed stocks $910,524 $608,798
Beneficiary certificates-funds 64,768 43,447
Corporte bonds 16.844 14915
Subordinate financial debentures 9,996

Financial asscts designated as at fair value through

profit or loss-current

Investment-linked insurance 6,906 6,927

Investment-linked bonds - 9,901
Total $1,009,038 $683,988
Financial assets at fair value through profit or $279.243 $ -

loss-noncurrent
Compound instruments

Total $279,243 $
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(1) As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Company and ‘it subsidiaries included in the
consolidated financial statements held the following structured notes for the purpose of
deriving interest income. Details and the related risks of the investments are disclosed as
follows: )
December 31

Items 2009 2008
Farglory Life Principal Guaranteed Investment- $6,906 $6,927
linked Life Insurance
USD 2-Year Auto-Callable Maxi Floored - 3.215
Accrual Notes
AUD !-Year Principal-Guaranteed Structured - 1,909
Note
USD 2.5-Year MORGAN STANLEY Princip: - 4,777
Guaranteed Structured Note
Subtotal $6,906 $16,828
NTD-denominated credit linked structure
product-noncurrent 279.243
Total $293,055 $33.656

A.As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, the consolidated entities had hybrid financial
instruments on hand including principal-guaranteed and investment-linked life insurance
products and principal guaranteed notes. These assets were designated as “financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss- current™.

The above structured notes were linked to SGAM’s 10-Year guaranteed income
bonds and portfolios of several designated stocks.

B.As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, outstanding structure products undertaken by the
Company were as follows:

2009
Countrparty and Principal/Contract
product type amount Interest rate Contract period
TC Bank — $280,000 0.921% 2009.3.18
NTD-denominated 2011.3.18

credit-linked

Structure product

2008: None

—23—
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Related investiment instructions are as follows:
a.Credit reference companies including:

(a) Yieh Hsing Enterprise Co., Ltd or its successors.

(b) China Steel Corporation or its successors.

(c) Chunghwa telecom Co., Ltd. or its successors.

(d) Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Co., Ltd. or its successors.

b.Major credit risk including:

(a) Credit risk: Shall credit event occurred to any credit reference company,

TC Bank will notify our company of the credit event and the notification date
shall be deemed as termination date of credit event. as of termination date of
credit event, the investment principal and accrued earnings shall be deemed as
total loss, TC Bank will not assume delivery or payment obligation, the Company
shall not revert to TC Bank for any request or claim.

(b) Liquidity risk: The contract shall not be terminated for any reasons from the
date (inclusive of same date) that the product launced to the termination date,
and the total investment loss when credit event occurred.

(¢) Risk of change in transaction terms: Shall there occurred change of terms or
inability of transaction due to market fluctuation, TC Bank reserves the right
to change transaction terms and the power of decision. the actual transaction
terms and price shall be based on the transaction confirmation letter prepared
by TC Bank.

(d) Risk of uncertain earnings: Shall there be credit event or potential credit event
during investment period, the eamings maybe low or 0.

(e) The risk of maximum possible loss of the product: Credit event or potential

credit event result in total loss of principal.

(2) Net gain (loss) on financial assets held for trading for the years ended December 31, 2009
and 2008 were NT$362,917 thousand and (NT$21,717) thousand, respectively. Net gain (loss)
on financial liabilities held for trading for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 were
(NTS847) thousand and NTSO thousand. respectively.
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6. BOND INVESTMENTS WITH NO ACTIVE MARKET =
December 31
[tems 2009 2008 l
Bond investments— current |
Baohwa Bank subordinated bank debenture $5,000 $5.000
Chinfon Bank subordinated bank debenture 2,000 2,000 !
Subfotal $7.000 $7,000 '
Less: Accumulated impairment (5,000) (5,000)
Net $2,000 $2,000
Bdnd investments-- noncurrent
Chinfon Bank subordinated bank debenture $4.000 $6,000

Toral 34,000 $6,000 i

(1) On December 28, 2005, the Company acquired the 3.5-Y ear subordinated bank
debenture issued by Baohwa Bank at the face value of NT$ 5.000 thousand and a
maturity datc of June 28, 2011. Bachwa Bank was currently under the supervision
of the Financial Restructuring Fund of the Executive Yuan. As such, the Company
has recognized impairment losses equaling to the full amount of investment in the second
quarter of 2007. .

(2) On June 28, 2005, the Company acquired the 7-year bank debenture issued by Chinfon
Bank at the face value of NT$10,000 thousand and a maturity datc of June 28, 2012.

As of December 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008, the interest rates were 2.30% and
2.975% respectively.

7. NOTES RECEIVABLE, NET

December 31

ftems 2009 2008
Notes receivable $216,106 $181,003
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts (380) (1,720)
Notes receivable, net $215,726 $179,283

Please refer to Note 38 for details of notes receivable from related parties.
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8. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, ENT »n¢
December 31
Items 2009 2008
Accounts receivable $2,465,065 $1,818,326
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts (57,999) (78,347)
Accounts recetvable, net $2,407,066 $1,739,979
Accounts receivable - related parties $1,471,584 $661,335
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts-related (6,959) (3,152)
parties

Accounts receivable - related parties, net $1,464,625 $658,183
Total $3,871,691 $2,398,162

(1) Please refer to Note 38 for details of accounts reccivable from related parties.

(2) As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, accounts reccivable totaling NT$ 153,435 thousand
and NT$114.000 thousand were provided as collateral for loans. Please refer to Note 39
for details of the Company’s pledged assets.

9. OTHER RECEIVABLES

December 31
Items 2009 2008

Purchase discount receivable $17,260 $17.341
Business tax retum receivable 195,574 159,973
Receivable from capital reduction - 12,600
Interest rcceivable 898 -
Other receivables 13,312 26,535
Subtotal $227.044 $216,449
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts (3,826) (11,691)

Net $223.218 $204.758

26—
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10. OTHER RECEIVABLES- RELATED PARTIES 253
December 31
Items 2009 2008
Purchase discounts receivable $46,309 $ -
Receivable from disposal of assests 93,132 -
Cash dividends receivable 62,700 29.874
Others 3.172 1,742
Total $205,813 $31,616
11. INVENTORIES AND COST OF GOODS SOLD
December 31
[tems 2009 2008
Rolled Steel Department:
Raw materials $3,031,152 $2,962,344
Supplies 60.869 275357
Work in process 849.651 1.048,424
Finished goods 2,035,162 3,091,155
Scraps 108,730 115.343
Subtotal $6,085.564 $7.492.623
Less: valuation allowance (157,546) (1,382,612)
Net $5,928,018 $6,110,011
Heavy Industry Department:
Construction in progress $3,068,521 $2,755,610
Less: transferred into deduction of advance (403.292) (263,157)
construction receipts
Less: transferred from advance construction (1,914,258) (1.584,448)
receipts
Subtotal $750,971 $908.005
Less: valuation allowance (36.574) (47,986)
Net $714,397 $860,019
Total $6,642,415 $6,970,030
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(1)According to Statements of Financial Accounting Standards No. 1!“Construction
Contracts”, if the balance of construction in progresss exceeds the balance of advance
construction receipts, partial advance construction receipts are deducted from construction in
progress. Please refer to Note 25 for the further details. If the balance of partial advance
construction receipts exceed the balance of construction in progress, construction in progress is
deducted from partial advance construction receipts.

(2)The related inventory gain(loss) recoginzed as operatmo cost for the years ended December
31, 2009 and 2008 were as follows:

Items 2009 2008

Cost of goods sold $41.861,392 $51,008,993
Construction cost 1,120,701 1,466,232
Gain on inventory value recoveries (1,232,613) 1,035,546
Unallocated fixed overheads 286.635 -
OEM Cost 15.260 13,906
Provision for (reverse of) loss on (16,010) 16,010
irrevocable purchase contract

Loss on retirement of inventories - 156
Total $42,035,365 $53,540,843

The Company recognized NT$1,232,613 thousand of gain on inventory value recoveries for the
year ended December 31, 2009 as a result of market price stablizing and inventory reducing.

(3)As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, the firc insurance coverage for inventory was
NT$1,701,022 thousand and NT$2,106,375 thousand, respectively; the construction insurance
coverage was NT$2,235,442 thousand and NT$2.204,317 thousand, respectively. Inventores
haven't been provided as collateral for loans.
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12. PREPAYMENTS 251,
December 31
Items 2009 2008
Prepayment for material purchase $1,746,195 $608,727
Prepaid insurance 30,158 26,023
Prepaid sales tax 71,158 9,293
Prepaid royalties 207 207
Prepaid rents 2995 3.995
Office supplies 248,888 33,779
Other prepayments 48,598 28.082
Total $2,148,199 $710.106
Please refer to Note 40 for details of prepaid royalties.
13. NONCURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE
December 31
[tems 2009 2008
Land $12977 3 -
Less: accumulated impairment (3,302)
Net $9,675 $ -

(1) The land of Section Bao Dian Si was compulsory purchased by the Government, and the
registration was finished in January 2010. The Company reclassitied the land as noncurrent
assets held for sale. and recognized related impairment loss caused by the compulsory purchase

amounting to NT$3,302 thousand.

(2) According to SFAS No. 38, an entity shall not reclassify assets and liabilities in the balance
sheets for prior periods if the entity reclassifies noncurrent assets as held for sale in the current

period.

(3) The Company provided partial noncurrent assets held for sale as collateral for loans. Please
refer to Note 35 for the information.
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14. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING EQUITY METHOD 250
Name of Investee December 31, 2009
Companies Shares (in thousands) Carrying Value % of Ownership

Yieh Mau Corporation 37,252 $505,967 23.00%
Cheng Shin House 395 1,079 39.50%
Management Consulting

Co., Ltd.

Eliter Intemational 66,351 699,191 28.57%
Corporation

United Brightening 80.128 999,209 44.56%
Development Corp.

Tian-Yue Hot Spring 1,170 4,649 19.50%
and Resort Inc.

Global Partners Link 1.000 8.045 33.33%
Co., Ltd.

Synn Industrial Co., Ltd. 39,120 464,888 30.00%
Asiazone Co., Limited 8.970 408,760 19.50%
Kuo Chang enterprise 39,537 530,555 45.00%
Co., Ltd. '
Tycoons Steel 14,700 372,247 49.00%
Intemational Co., Ltd

Hsing Jui Investments 4,247 135326 31.00%
Limited

Da Yao Engineering & 980 10,203 49.00%
Consulting Co., Ltd.

E-DA Development 107,574 1,063,463 29.07%
Corp.
Zheng Xin Seccrtty 1,800 22,171 45.00%
Co., Ltd.
Champion Logistic Inc. 89,000 2,861,917 49.44%,
E United Japan Co., Ltd. - 5,828 47.00%
E-DA cultural creative 950 9,404 19.00%
industries Co., Ltd.
Glorious Falcon 3,350 349,713 50.00%

International Ltd.
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Shares (in thousands)

December 31, 2009
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Carrying Value

% of Ownership

Wise Universal

Intemational Ltd.

United winner metals
Subtotal

Prepayments for investments

Hsing Jui Investments
Limited
Subtotal
Total

Name of Investee

Companies

1,500

Shares (in thousands)

48,815

63,893

$8,565,323

$78.509

$78.509

$8,643,832

December 31, 2008

50.00%

34.00%

Carrying Value

% of Ownership

Yieh Mau Corporation
Cheng Shin House

Management Consulting

Co.. Ltd.

Eliter International
Corporation -
Widax Corporation
United Brightening
Development Corp.
Tian-Yue Hot spring
and Resort Inc.
Global Partners Link
Co., Ltd.

Synn Industrial Co., Ltd.

Asiazone Co., Limited
Kuo Chang Enterprise
Co., Lud

Tycoons Steel
intemational Co., Ltd
Hsing Jui Investments
Limited

Da Yao Engincering &
Consulting Co., Ltd.

37.252
9

(79
h

66.351

2,448
80.128

1,170

1.000

33.300

8.970

39,537

14,700

4,247

980

$501,361
5,175

792,596

6,892

7.861

446,926

435,915

398,183

429,357

136,039

9,958

NON-CONFIDEMTIAL

23.00%

39.50%

28.57%

22.26%
44.56%

19.50%

33.33%

30.00%

19.50%

45.00%

49.00%

31.00%

49.00%




E-Da Development
Corp.
Zheng Xin Securtty
Co., Ltd.
Champion Logistic
Glorious Falcon
International Ltd.
Wise Unirersal
International Limited
United Winner Metals
Subtotal
Prepayments for investments
Hsing Jut investments
Limited
Subtotal
Total

NON-CONFIDENTIAL
78,500

1,800

89,000
3,350

1,500

780.969

17,917

2,919,760
279,927

49915

64,427

$7.978,442

$£52,841

$52.841

$8,031,283

PUBLIC FILE |
29.07%

45.00%

49.44%
50.00%

50.00%

34.00%

(1) The investment income (loss) recognized under the equity methid for the years ended
December 31, 2008 and 2007 were as follows:

[tems 2009 2008
Audited financial statements $26,662 $47.615
Non-audited financial statements (2,384) -
Audited financial statements by other auditors (15,039) (82,383)
Total $9.239 ($34,768)

The carrying values of NT$480.698 thousand and NT$508.203 thousand as of December 31,
2009 and 2008, respectively, and the related investment income(loss) of (NT$15.039) thousand
and (NT$82.383) thousand for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008. respectively,
were recognized based on the investees' audited financial statements by the other auditors for

the same years.
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(2) a.The Company had the following joint venture investiments as follows: Glorious Falcon
[ntemational Limited, Wise Universe Intemational Limited and Champion Logistic Inc.
with paid-in capital of US$ 6,700 thousand, USS$ 3,000 thousand and US$180,000
thousand, respectively. The Company's ownership interest in the aforementioned
investees was 30%, 50% and 49.44%, respectively.
b.The Company’s equity in Glorious Falcon International Limited, Wise Universe International
Limited, and in Champion Logistic Inc. were as follows:
December 31. 2009:
Glorious Falcon Wise Universe Champion Logistic
Intemational Limited International Limited Inc. Total
Current assets $798.750 $48,425 $1.896,902 $2.744.077
Noncurrent assets 18.247 - 964,767 983,014
Current liabilities 467,284 10 10 467,304
Revenue 2,531.282 - - 2,531,282
Cost 2.462.826 - 250 2.463.076
December 31, 2008:
Glorious Falcon Wise Universe Champion Logistic
International Limited International Limited Inc. Total
Current assets $545,238 $49,926 $2.893.579 $3,488,743
Noncurrent assets 23.791 - - 23,791
Current liabilities 289,102 10 64 289,176
Revenue 4,483,144 - 4,483,144
Cost 4,402,783 52 64 4,402,899

¢.The Company had significant influence but no control over its joint-venture investees. The

Company accounted for joint-venture investments using the equity method but did not include

the investees in the consolidated financial statements.

(3) The Company made investments in Tianjin Lianfa Precision Stecl Corporation through Hsing Jui

Investments Lid. (BVI) with the approval of the Investment Commission, Ministry of Economic
Atfairs. The registered capital was US$ 13,500 thousand. Please refer to Note 41 for information

on the Company’s investments in Mainland China.

(#) The Company’s investment in E-Da Development Co.. Ltd. was initially accounted for as *financial
assets carried at cost”. The Company acquired significant influence over the investec starting
November 2008 and has since accounted for the investment using the equity method.

. REAL ESTATE INVESTMENTS

December 31, 2009

December 31, 2008

Area Amount

Arca Amount

Kushan District, 38,730m’ $2,736,585
Kaohsiung Land,
Longhua section

NON-CONFIDENTIAL
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(1) The above property was acquired by Yieh Hsing Enterprise Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of
the Company. In August 2002, the Urban Planning Commission and the Kaohsiung
Municipal Government (per Order Kao-Shih-Fu-Du Tze (2) No. 0920050789 issued

on October 13, 2003) approved the company’s application to change the land use

from industrial to mixed commercial through a special development project.

(2) The above real estate investments were provided as collateral for loans. Please refer to

Note 39 for further details.

16. FIANACIAL ASSETS CARRIED AT COST
Name of Investee

December 31, 2009

Companies Shares (in thousands) Carrying Value % of Ownership
Yieh United Steel 255,274 $2,481.201 14.62%
Corporation
Shuo Huang Enterprise 980 - 19.60%
Co., Ltd.
Universal Venture 1,100 9,130 0.91%
Capital
Investment Co., Lid.
Chateau Bridgetop Inc. 5,000 - 10.00%
Pacific Harbour 300 3,300 6.00%
Stevedoring Corp.
Grand Fortune Special 3.558 - 5.73%
Steel Co., Ltd.
Ascentek Venture 2,352 23,520 6.42%
Capital Corp.
Eastern Broadband 4,500 - 0.14%
Telecommunications
Co., Ltd.
Neoflex Technology 88 1.060 0.59%
Co., Ltd.
Strategic Advisory 100 - 10.00%
Investment Limited.
Kuo FU Venture 4,200 15,880 10.00%
Investment Corp
Dance & Jump 88 535 1.60%

Software Co., Ltd.
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December 31, 2009

Shares (in thousands) Carrying Value % of Ownership

Ambeon Corporation Ltd 150 1,500 3.42%
Auto Parts Industnal Ltd 10,100 100,000 4.41%
Microlinks Technology 3,000 4,440 11.63%
Corp.

Tatwan Ves-Power Co.,Ltd 4,321 81,105 3.60%
Windance Co., Ltd. 18,469 2.68%
New Springs 5,375 41,833 19.31%
Construction Corp.

Yieh Corporation Limite 200 2,002 6.67%
Rodan (Taiwan) Ltd. 176 492 1.07%

Total $2,765,998

Name of Investee

Companies

Shares (in thousands)

December 31, 2008

% of Ownership

Yich United Steel

Corporation

Shuo Huang Enterprise

Co..Ltd.

Universal Venture

Capital Investment Co.,

Ltd.

Chateau Bridgetop Inc.

Pacific Harbour
Stevedoring Corp.
Grand Fortune Special
Steel Co., Ltd.
Ascentek Venture
Capital Corp.
Eastern Broadband
Telecommunications
Co.,Ltd.

Neoflex Technology
Co.,Ltd.

Carrying Value
255274 $2.477974
980 -
1.100 9.130
5,000 -
300 3,300
3,558 -
2,940 29,400
6,000 -
255 3,063
— 35 —_
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Name of Investee December 31, 2008
Companies Shares (in thousands) Carrying Value % of Ownership

Strategic Advisory 100 - 10.00%
Investment Ltd.
Kuo Fu Venture 4,200 15,880 10.00%
[nvestment Corp.
Dance & Jump ' 88 535 1.60%
Software Co.. L.td.
Ambeon Corporation 150 1.500 3.42%
Auto Parts Industrial Ltd 10,100 100,000 . 4.41%
Microlinks Technology 3,000 4,440 11.63%
Corp.
Taiwan Ves-Power Co.,Ltd 4,321 81.105 3.60%
Windance Co., Ltd. 18.469 - 2.68%
New Springs 4,705 41.833 19.30%
Construction Corp.
Adv Group Limited. 431 - 1.02%
Cyber Living Holdings 1 - 4.00%
Ltd.
Yieh Corporation Limite: 200 2,002 6.67%
Glorious Communication 250 984 0.55%
Semiconductors Inc.
Rodan (Taiwan) Ltd. 176 492 1.07%

Subtotal $2,771,638
Prepayments for stocks

Aceros De China, S.L.. $32,901

Subtotal $32,901

Total $2,804,539

(1) The above equity investments, which had no quoted prices in active market and
of which fair value could not be reliably measured, were carried at cost.
(2) Due to serious ditficulty in operation and financial crisis of certain investees, the

Company has recognized impairment loss for these assets.
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(1)The Company had the following property, plant and equipment as of December 31, 2009:

Accumulated

Cost of Acquisition

Depreciation

PUBLIC FILE
263

Carrying Value

Land $2,937,031 $ - $2,937,031
Buildings 6,903,580 2,684,071 4,219,509
Machinery equipment 28,151,351 11,341,883 16.809.468
Molding equipment 1,248,825 781,144 467,681
Utilities equipment 348,843 205,296 143,547
Computer 339,525 262,121 77,404
communication equipment

Testing equipment 90.901 61,488 29,413
Transportation equipmen 900,368 570.310 330,058
Other equipment 565,467 417,347 148,120
Construction in progress 627,774 - 627,774
Prepayment for 1,998,029 1.998.029
business facilities

Total 44,111,694 16,323,660 $27,788.034
Less: Accumulated impairment (141,475)
Net $27,646,559
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(2)The Company had the following property, plant and equipment as of December 31, 2008:
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Accumulated
Cost of Acquisition Depreciation Corrying Value

Land $2,963,726 - 32,963,726
Buildings 6,635,182 2,401,512 4,233,670
Machinery equipment 26,357,206 10,333,728 16,023,478
Molding equipment 1,230,396 707,199 523,197
Utilities equipment 351,490 185,268 166,222
Computer 332,675 215,309 117,366
communication equipment

Testing equipment 69,896 44,142 25,754
Transportation equipmen 826,315 540,975 285,340
Other equipment 566.278 420914 145364
Construction in progress 931,289 - 931,289
Prepayment for 3,883,899 - 3,883.899
business facilities

Total 44,148,352 14,849,047 $29.299.305

Less: Accumulated impairment

Net

(143.986)

$29,155,319

(3) The buildings and operating cquipment of Yieh Hsing Entetprise Co., Ltd.'s originally
suspended Pingnan factory amounted to NT$1,674,390 thousand. The subsidiary expanded
new product lincs in 2008, and reassembled such original equipment as part of the new
expansion equipment. In accordance with the Order No. 053 issued by the ARDF in 2002,
the carrying value of original equipment after deducting the impairment loss were transferred
to construction in progress and prepayments of equipment amounting to NT$202,170
thousand and NT$1,472,220 thousand, respectively. As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, the
expansion equipment cost occurred was NT$572,995 thousand, and NT$386,773 thousand

. respectively.

(4) Partial property, plant and equipment has been pledged for loans. Please

reter to Note 39 for the information.

(5) As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Company's properties had not been revalued.

(6) The details of interest capitalized were as follows:

Items

2009

2008

Capitalized interest expense

Capitalized interest rates

$135,564

$115,930

0.17%-7.16%

2.83%-7.16%
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(7) Insurance coverage on property, plant and equipment (including assets leased to others)
amounted to NT$36,854,147 thousand and NT$37,512,279 thousand as of December
31, 2009 and 2008 respectively; Insurance coverage on operation break off amounted to
NT$2,354,457 thousand and NT$2,674,961 thousand as of December 31, 2009 and
2008, respectirely.

(8) The subsidiary, Chang Shu Chief Leading Edge Materials Co., Ltd. recognized impairment
loss of RMB 30,000 thousand based on the recovering amount estimated as of
December 31, 2009.

18. OVERDUE RECEIVABLE, NET

December 31

Items 2009 2008
Overdue receivable $40,579 $45,356
Less: allowance for doubtful accounts (40,579) (45.356)
Total $ - b -

19. ASSETS LEASED TO OTHERS

Cost 2009 2008
Land ) $119.875 $123,711
Buildings and structures 227,466 229,131
Machinery and cquipment 472,801 474,620
Other equipments 35,347 36,523
Total $855,489 $863,985
Less: accumulated depreciation (187.117) (140,977)
Net $668,372 $723,008

(1) Yich Hsing Enterprise Co., Ltd., the Company’s consolidated subsidiary, leased the
stainless stecl manufacturing plant to Yieh Mau Corp. The lease term was for the period
from October 26, 2005 to October 25, 2010, with a monthly rental payment of NT$ 200
thousand. The lease agreement also stipulates an additional rental payment equivalent to
40% of net income in any profit-making year.

(2) Partial assets leased to others have been pledged for loans. Please refer to Note 38. for the
information.

(3) Pleasc refer to Note 17 for insurance coverage on assets leased to others.
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20. IDLE ASSETS, NET 2¢0

(1) As of December 31, 2009, the Company had the following idle assets:

Cost of Acquisition

Accumulated

Depreciation

Carrying Value

Land $208,101 - $208,101
Other equipments 16,098 13,389 2,709
Total $224,199 $13,389 3210810
Less: Accumulated impairment (1,705)
Net $209,105

(2) As of December 31. 2008, the Company had the tfollowing idle assets:

Cost of Acquisition

Accumulated

Depreciation

Carrying Value

Land $208.101 - $208,101
Machinery and 33,104 14,551 18.553
equipment

Transportation 8,141 3135 5.006
equipment

Utilities equipment 2,753 1,005 1,748
Other equipments 19,002 15238 3,764
Total $271,101 $33.929 $237,172
Less: Accumulated impairment (5,727)
Net $231,445

(3) The above idle assets included assets transferred from the consolidation with Lien Kang

Heavy Industrial Co., Ltd. and equipment not used in the operations. The impairment loss

was recognized based on the recovering amount. As of December 31, 2009, the

accumulated impairment loss was NT$1,705 thousand.

(4) Partial idle assets have been pledged for loans. Please refer to Note 39 for the information.
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21. OTHER ASSETS-OTHERS 23§
December 31
Items 2009 2008

Prepaid royalties $1,033 $1,240
Prepaid pension costs 60,346 48,082
Land in use 115,460 135,384
Assets with suspended expansion-Pingnan 1,040,809 1,042,038
factory construction

Total $1,217,648 $1,226,744

(1) Please refer to Note 40 for details of prepaid royalties.

(2) Land in use

A. Land in use-the parent company referred to the amount used to purchase No.0154 ~ 132 -

132-1 ~ 132-2 of Guan-Shui Duan and NO.1015 ~ 1016 of An-Zhao Duan of Yen-Chao Hsing,
as the ownership of the land can not be transferred to the Company due to the legal restriction
of the land category. It is provisionally registered under the seller's name, however, mortgage
registration has been conducted in order to ensure the right of the Company. As the restructure
of land category has enabled the land free from legal restrictions, the ownership of land has
thus been transferred to the Company in March 2009, and the land had been reclassified as
property, plant and equipment-land from other assets — others.

B. Land-the parent company of No. 107 of Sanyepi Duan was schedulled for raw material
storage area, though the right was schedulled to register under the Company's name. As the
duration was expired in October 2006 and the creditor bank of the seller seeked a court seizure
of the land, the Company has requested the seller to complete the registration of transfer of
property right within prescribed period in order to ensure the right of the Company. The
purchase agreement of the land will be nullified if the transfer is not implemented within the
prescribed period. As of August 18, 2007, the transfer was expired and thus the Company
transferred the schedutled payment to other payable. Though the Company has successfully
won the bid after the land was auctioned by court, however, the regulatory restriciton
prohibited the purchase of agricultural land by a company. To solve the issue, the ownership
of the land was transferred to the finanical vice gencral manager of the Company under trust
decd in March 2009 and the ownership certificate of the land was kept by the Company.

C. Subsidary-Yieh Hsing Enterprise Co., Ltd.

a. Land-Lot 136(NTS 8,000 thousand), Paimi section in Kangshan Township was used to
warehouse scrap matcrials. Due to regulatory restrictions, ownership of the propeity could not
be transferred to the acquirer, Yieh Hsing Enterprise Co., Ltd. The current property owner, Ms.
Tin, Su-Yun has handed over the title deed for custody by Yeih Hsing Enterprise Co., Ltd.,
which also has the principal claim over the property. The seller has also issued a Letter of
Undertaking to relinquish all rights to pursue legal action.

— 4 l —
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b.Yieh Hsing Enterprise Co., Ltd. purchased the land located at Lot 200-3(NT$72,806
thousand), Paimi section in Kangshan Township to warehouse raw materials and finished
goods. Current regulations do not allow purchase of argricultural land by a company. The land
was purchased under a trust agreement and on October 9, 2008, the title was transferred to the
assistant vice manager of Yieh Hsing Co, Ltd.. The title deed was kept under the custody of
Yieh Hsing Enterprise Co., Ltd. '

¢.The ownership of land (NT$ 26,138 thousand) totaling 4,854.87m2 in area located at Niuo
Shih Kan section in Dashe Township acquired by Yieh Hsing Enterprise Co., L.td. could not be
transferred to Yeih Hsing Enterprise Co., Ltd. due to current regulatory restrictions. The
owners, Lin Chih-Lung, Lin Mei-Feng and Chen Chang-Hsiung have issued a Letter of
Undertaking to confirm purchase of the land by Yieh Hsing Enterprise Co.. Ltd. and
guaranteed to transfer the title upon disposal or use of the land. The sellers also presented the
title deed for custody by Yieh Hsing Enterprise Co.. Ltd.

Assets with suspended expansion- Pingnan factory construction project was originally part of
the Company s business expansion plan adopted by the Board of Directors in their meeting
held on August 28, 2006 to invest and build a factory in the Pingnan Industrial Park. In view of
the opinions of the local government and residenis, the Board of Directors resolved to
terminate the Company s expansion project on December 19, 2006. The Company planned for
subsidiaries to take over the expansion projects. As of December 31, 2009, the Company has
not liaised with any subsidiary regarding the transfer/acquisition of the investment. Derails of
the investment project were as follows:

December 31

Items 2009 2008

Land $940,740 $940,740
Land improvement 1,092 1,092
Buildings 26,604 26,604
Construction in progress 16,862 16,862
Prepayments for equipment 135,582 135,582
Less: accumulated depreciation (3,571 (2,342)

accumulated impairment (76,500) (76,500)
Total 51,040,809 $1.042,038

The Company has provided sonie of the other assets-others as collateral for loans. Please refer
to Note 39 for turther details.
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December 31, 2009

Items Amount Interest rates
Unsecured loans $2,500,941 1.47%-5.84%
Material loans 6,410,811 0.81%-3.10%
Mortgage loans 1,423,527 1.01%-4.86%
Total $10,335,279

December 31, 2008

Items Amount Interest rates
Unsecured loans $1,713,137 1.95%-6.66%
Material loans 6,941,267 1.82%-6.31%
Mortgage loans 2,016,558 2.78%-7.47%
Total $10,670,962

The Company pledged part of its assets as collaterals for loans. Please refer to Note 39 for the

information.

SHORT-TERM NOTES AND BILLS PAYABLE

December 31

Guarantor 2009 2008
China Bills Finance Corp. $100,000 $845.000
Mega Bills Finance Corp. 261,600 315,200
International Bills Finance Corp. 200,000 200.000
Taiwan Bills Finance Corp. 50,000 50,000
Chinatrust Bills Finance Corp. 100.000 100,000
Land Bank (Kangshan Branch) 40,000 40,000
Da Chung Bills Finance Corp. - 100,000
Total $751,600 $1.650,200
Less: unamortized discount on bonds payable (895) (2,831
Net $750,705 $1,647,369
Interest rate 0.35%-2.89% 1.67%-3.25%

The Company pledged part of its assets as collaterals for short-term bills payable. Please refer

to Note 39 for the information.
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December 31 236
[tems 2009 2008
Equipment payables ) $60,525 $70.585
Cash dividends payable 22,189 22,149
Business tax payable 5514 38,265
Quantity discounts payable 34,568 22,651
Payable on purchase contract loss - 16,010
Others 28,689 41,945
Total $151,485 $211,605

25, ADVANCE RECEIPTS

December 31

Items 2009 2008
Advance sales receipts $208.419 $338.659
Advance other receipts 26,090 8.485
Advance construction receipts 2,367,479 1,925.944
Less: transferred from construction in progress (403,292) (263,157)
Less: transferred into deduction of construction in (1.914.258) (1.584,448)
progress
Total $284 438 $425,483

(1) According to Statements of Financial Accounting Standards No. 11-Construction Contracts
”, if the balance of construction in progresss exceeds the balance of partial advance

construction receipts, partial advance construction receipts arc deducted from construction in
progress.

(2) If the balance of partial advance construction receipts exceed the balance of construction in
progress, construction in progress is deducted from partial advance construction receipts.
Please refer to Note 11 for the information.

26. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES- CURRENT PORTION

December 31

Items 2009 2008
Long-term liabilities- current portion $3,775.348 $3,722,743
Lease payable 540 : 1,230
Total $3,775,888 $3,723,973
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27. LONG-TERM LIASILITIES AND CURRENT PORTION OF LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

December 31

Maturity

Loan Institutions Date 2009 2008 Repayment
Taiwan Business Bank-Kaohsiung 2014.3.17 $200,000 3 - Repayable in installments
Syndicated banks led by Chang 2011.7.29 2,500,000 3,000,000 Repayable in installments
Hwa Commercial Bank
(Kaohsiung Branch)
Syndicated banks led by Mega ~ 2011.3.25 - 280,000 cPeyaciem
International Commercial Bank and fully repaid in 2009
(Kaohsiung Branch)
Yuanta Bank (Kaohsiung Branch) 2009.5.22 - 37,500  Repayable in installments
Standard Chartered Bank 2009.5.22 - 60,000 Repayable in installments
(Duanbei Branch)
Mega International Commercial 2015.3.24 480,000 480,000  Repayable in installments
Bank (Kangdu Branch)
Mega International Comimercial 2013.6.9 469,000 603,000  Repayable in installments
Bank (Kangdu Branch)
Mega International Commercial 2016.5.4 343,000 - Repayable in installments
Bank (Kangdu Branch)
Mega Intemational Commercial 2016.9.29 750,000 - Repayable in installments
Bank (Kangdu Branch)
Syndicated banks led by Taiwan 2013.7.22 4,000.000 4,000,000 Repayable in instaliments
Cooperative Bank (Kaohsiung Branch)
Syndicated banks led by TaChong  2010.3.21 - 787,200  Repaid in advance
Bank
Syndicated banks led by Taiwan 2010.6.29 - 721,600  Repayablc in instaliments
Coopcerative Bank
Syndicated banks led by Taiwan  2012.12.11 319,900 Repayable in installments
Cooperative Bank
Mega Intemnational Commercial 2010.2.14 - 164,000  Repaid in advance
Bank
Hypo-und Vereinsbank AG 2010.12.28 639,800 820,000 Repayable in instaliments
Jih Sun International Bank 2011.7.15 - 656,000  Repaid in advance
Syndicated banks led by Taiwan  2012.12.24 1,759,450 - Repayable in installments
Business Bank
China Construction bank 2010.4.30 - 72,806  Repaid in advance
China Construction bank 2010.4.30 22,844 70,227  Repayable in installments
China Construction bank 2010.10.30 38,996 119,993  Repayable in installments
China Construction bank 2011.3.10 70,212 119,999  Repayabie in installiments
China Construction bank 2011.3.15 105,317 179,999  Repayable in installments
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December 31 : 23¢
Maturity
Loan Institutions Date 2009 2008 Repayment
China Construction bank 2010.10.30 27,984 86.028  Repayable in installments
China Construction bank 2011.3.21 115,851 197,816  Repayable in installments
China Construction bank 2011.2.15 35,688 146,314  Repayable in instaliments
China Construction bank 2011.1.13 85,688 146,314  Repayable in installments
China Construction bank 2011115 102,826 175,576  Repayable in installments
China Construction bank 2011.2.15 68,551 117,051  Repayable in installments
China Construction bank 2011.3.21 68,551 117,051  Repayable in installments
China Construction bank 2011.3.21 89,483 150,225  Repayable in installments
Bank of Overseas Chinese 2012.12.30 768.337 1,113,491  Partial repaid in advance
Syndicated banks led by BNP 2010.4.10 1,278,568 2,183.970  Repayable in installments
Washington First Intemational 2012.12.30 496.609 - Repayable in installments
Bank HSBC bank 2012.12.30 234,249 - Repayable in installments
7 syndicated banks led by Land 2016.6.26 2,500,000 - Repayable in instaliments
Bank of Taiwan
8 syndicated banks led by Mega 2013.6.29 1,416,780 1,822,860  Repayable in instaliments
International Commercial Bank
Chang Hwa Commercial Bank 2013.6.28 185,052 238,452 Repaid at maturity
TaChong Bank 2011228 280,000 - Repayable in installments
Total $19,502,736 $18,667.472
Less: Current portion (3,775,348) (3,722,743)
Long-term liabilities $15,727,388 $14,944,729
Interest rates 1.15%-5.35%  2.06%-8.10%

(1) Pleasc refer to Note 39 for details of collateral provided for the above bank loans.
(2) Restrictive covenants: v
A.Special clauses governing long-term loan agreements between the Company and
the lenders (banks) were as follows:
a.The lender (bank) is the principal beneficiary over the insurance claim.
b.Transfer, pledge, lease or disposal of the collaterals shall be consented by the
lender (bank).
c.Alteration to, improvement of, addition to and-scarping of the collaterals shall be
conscnted by the lenders (banks).

— 46—
NON-CONFIDENTIAL




PUBLIC FILE
NON-CONFIDENTIAL 233
B.Special clauses governing the syndicated loan agreement cntered into between the

Company and Taiwan Cooperative Bank were as follows:
The following financial ratios computed based on the Company’s audited financial
statements shall meet the following criteria:
a.Current assets to current liabilities ratio shall be not less than 100%.
b.Total liabilities to total net assets ratio shall be not greater than 100%.
c.Interest coverage ratio (net income before income tax+ interest expenser depreciation
and amortization/interest expense): less than 3 times.
d.Net intangible assets shall be greater than NTS 17 billion (incl.).
C.The special terms agreed between the bank and the creditor bank regarding the long
term loan of syndicated loan project with Changhwa Bank- Kaohsiung branch are as
follows:
The semmiannual and annual audited financial statement of ouwr company shall maintain the
following financial ratio:
a.The ratio of current asset to current liability shall not be tower than 100%.
b.The debt-equity ratio shall not be higher than 150%.
c.Interest coverage ratio (net income before tax + interest expense + depreciation and
amortization / interest expense) shall not be lower than two times.
D.Special clauses governing the long-term loan agreement between Yich Phui (China)
Technomaterial Co., Ltd. and the lenders (banks) were as follows:
a.Guarantor: The financial ratios computed based on the audited financial statements of
Yich Phui Enterprise Co., Ltd. shall meet the following criteria:
(1) Current assets to current liabilities ratio: no less than 100%.
(2) Total liabilities to total net assets ratio shall be no greater than 175%.
(3) Interest coverage ratio (net income before income tax+ interest expense+ depreciation
and amortization/interest expense): less than 2.5 times.
b.Borrower: The financial ratios computed based on the financial statements of Yieh Phui
(China) Technomaterial Co., Ltd. shall meet the following criteria:
(1) Debt ratio shail not be in excess of 2.5 for year 2008 and thereafter.
(2) Interest coverage ratio (net income before income tax + interest expense+ depreciation
/interest expense) shall not be less than 1.5 for 2007 and thereafier.
¢.Mickey Regent Inc. provided a certificate of time deposit and credit guarantee as
collateral for the loan extended by the Overseas Chinese Banks to Yieh Phui (China)
Technomaterial Co., Ltd, allowing the borrower to use the revolving credit facility up
to the pre-specificd limit. The credit guarantee provided by Mickey Regent Inc. was
for 3 years.
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E.Special clauses governing the syndicated loan agreement entered into between 23
Yieh Hsing Enterprise Co., Ltd. and Land Bank of Taiwan were as follows:
a.The following financial ratios computed based on the Company’s non-consolidated
audited financial statements shall meet the following criteria:
(a)Liability ratio (total liabilities to total equity ratio) shall be no greater than 200%.
b.If Yieh Hsing Enterprise Co., Ltd. couldn't maintain the above mentioned financial
ratio, the company shouid improve within 5 months starting from May 1 of the year
following the audited year. The bank will raise 0.20% of interest rate during the
improvement period. If the company couldn't meet the improvement deadline
{September 30), the Company should pay punishment fee, which is 0.05% of
unpaid loan, together with the improvement period interest rate plus another
0.20% until full improvement.
F.Special clauses governing the long-term loan agrecment between Mickey Regent
Inc. and the lenders (banks) were as follows:
Guarantor: The financial ratios computed based on the audited financial statements of
Yieh Phui Enterprise Co., Ltd. shall meet the following criteria:
a.Current assets to current liabilities ratio shail not be less than 70%.
b.Total liabilities to total net assets ratio shall be no greater than 150%.
c Interest coverage ratio (net income before income tax+ interest expense+
depreciation /interest expense) shall not be less than 2.5 times.
d.Net intangible assets (total equity - intangible assets) shall not be less than
NT$ 17 billion.
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(1) The defined benefit plan under the Labor Standards Law is disbursed based on the units
of service years and the average salary in the last six months of the service year. Two
units per year are entitled for the first 15 years of services while one unit per year is
entitled after the completion of the fifteenth year. The total units shall not exceed 45 units.
A.In accordance with SFAS No.18, the Company carried out actuarial valuations

with measurement dates of December 31, 2009 and 2008. Pension information on

the defined benefit plan was summarized as follows:

(a) Components of net pension cost:

Items 2009 2008
Service cost $12.909 $13,236
Interest cost 13,016 15,449
Projected return on plan assets (11,954) (13,164)
Amortization of net transition obligation 2.621 2,621
Amortization of unrecognized net gain or ioss 1,253 2,107
Net pension cost of parent compant $17.845 $20,249
Net pension cost of subsidiary 17.972 16,591
Total $35,817 $36,840
(b) Reconciliation of funded status of the plans and accrued pension liability as of
followings:
December 31, 2009:
Items The Company Subsidiary
Benefit obligation:
Vested benefit obligation ($38.435) ($45,945)
Non-vested benefit obligation (421,197) (185,984)
Accumulated benefit obligation ($459.632) ($231,929)
Additional benefits based on future salarie (94,706) (69,026)
Projected benefit obligation ($554,338) ($300,955)
Fair value of plan assets 505,914 50,467
Funded status ($48,424) ($250,488)
Unrecognized transition benefit obligation 9.666 37,602
Unrecognized pension gain(loss) 96,332 (13,990)
Additional pension liabilitics - (2,881)
Prepaid pension cost (accrued pension liabilities) $57,574 ($229,757)
Vested benefit $49,751 $52,573
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December 31, 2008: 250
Items The Company Subsidiary
Benefit obligation:
Vested benefit obligation ($28,978) ($42,085)
Non-vested benefit obligation (342,824) (158,640)
Accumulated benefit obligation ($371,802) ($200,725)
Additional benefits based on future salarie (148,854) (60,907)
Projected benefit obligation ($520,656) ($261,632)
Fair value of plan assets 478,150 47,529
Funded status ($42,506) ($214,103)
Unrecognized transition benefit obligation 12,286 45,841
Unrecognized pension gain(loss) 75877 (43,85%)
Additional pension liabilities - (5,266)
Prepaid pension cost (accrued pension liabilities) $45,657 ($217,383)
Vested benefit $33,512 $50,530

(c) As of December 31, 2009, the Company's prepaid pension cost amounted to
NT$57,574 thousand, which was classified as other assets-others of NT$60.346
thousand and accrued expenscs of NT$2,772 thousand; the subsidiaries' accrued
pension liabilities were classified as accrued pension liabilities of NT$229,732
thousand, and accrued expenses of NT$25 thousand.

(d) As of December 31, 2008, the Company's prepaid pension cost amounted to
NT$45,657 thousand, which was classified as other assets-others of NT$48,082
thousand and accrued expenses of NT$2,425 thousand; the subsidiaries' accrued
pension liabilities were classified as accrued pension liabilities of NT$217,358
thousand, and accrued expenses of NT$25 thousand.

(€} Actuarial assumptions:

December 31, 2009:
The Conmipany Subsidiaries
Discount rate 2.0% 2.25%-2.75%
Future salary increase rate 1.5% 2.0%
Expected rate of return on plan assets 2.0% 2.0%-2.75%




NON-CONFIDENTIAL PUBLHC FILE
December 31, 2008: 229

The Company Subsidiaries
Discount rate 2.5% 2.5%-3.0%
Future salary increase rate 1.5% 2.0%-2.5%
Expected rate of return on plan assets 2.5% 2.0%-3.0%

B.The Labor Pension Act of R.O.C (the Act). which adopts a defined contribution ptan
. became effective on July 1. 2005. Employces may choose either the Act, by retaining
their seniority before the enforcement of the Act, or the pension mechanism of the
Labor Standards Law. According to the Act, the rate of contribution by any employer
to an employee's pension account per month shall not be less than 6% of each
employee's monthly salary. The Company has made monthly contributions based on
each individual employee's salary to employees’ pension accounts since July 1, 2005,
which amounted to NTS$36.147 thousand and NT$57,030 thousand for the years
ended December 31. 2009 and 2008, respectively. '

29. CAPITAL STOCK

December 31

Items 2009 2008
Authorized capital $20.000.000 $20,000,000
Issued capital 14,542,192 14,591,543
Issued shares (unit: thousand) 1,454,219 1,459.154
Par value (NT dollars) $10 $10

The Company's shareholders' meeting approved earnings transferved to capital by NTS423,559
thousand on Junc 16, 2009. In addition, the Ministry of Economic Affairs has approved the
retirement of treasury stock and the Capital reduction of NTS472,910 thousand on March 27,
2009.
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30. TREASURY STOCK i
(Shares in thousand)
Reason Ttems 2009 2008

To maintain the Beginning shares 47,291 -
Company's creditibility ~ Addition - 47,291

and shareholders’ Reduction (47.291) -
interest Ending shares - 47,291

31.

(1) Under the Securitics and Exchange Law, the buyback amount of treasury stock should not
exceed 10% of total issued shares, and the buyback cost should not exceed the sum of the
retained eamnings, additional paid-in capital in excess of par value and realized capital surplus.
On October 23, 2008, the Company's board of directors approved a share buyback plan to
repurchase up to 100.000 thousand shares of the Company's common stock between October
24, 2008 and December 23, 2008, and 47,291 thousand shares were repurchased at totalling
3418,867 thousand during this period. The Company's board of directors resolved March 12,
2009 as the record date of the capital reduction on February 17, 2009, and the capital reduction
was registered with the authority on March 27, 2009.

(2) Under the Sccurities and Exchange Act, the Company shail neither pledge treasury stock
nor exercise shareholders’ rights on these sharcs, such as rights to dividends and to vote.

CAPITAL SURPLUS

In accordance with regulations of R.O.C Company Law, the Capital Surplus shall first be used
to oftset losses from the previous years; afterwards, it, so-called the realized Capital Surplus, if
any, can be transferred to the Company's Capital. The above-mentioned realized Capital
Surplus includes the excess of the issue price over the par-value of the capital stocks and the
donations. Under the regulations of the Security Exchange Law, the maximum amount
transferred from Capital Surplus to the Company's Capital per year shall not be over 10% of the
Company's Issucd Capital. In addition, capital increase by transterring paid-in capital in excess
of par value can be commence in the following year.
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32. APPROPRIATION OF RETAINED EARNINGS AND DIVIDEND POLICY
(1) As part of a growing enterprise, the Company considers its expanding plan and financial
goal in determining the stock or cash dividends to be paid. That is, the Company's dividend
distribution is based on the availability of excess funds. According to the Company Law of the
ROC and the Company's Articles of Incorporation, 10% of the Company's annual net income
less any deficit should first be set aside as legal reserve. The remainder of the unappropriated
earnings , less special reserve based on relevant laws and regulations or business requirements,
should be distributed as dividends and bonus. The appropriation of eamings should be resolved
in the shareholders' meetimg. However, there should be appropriations of 1% as bonuses to
employees and not more than 0.2% as remuneration to directors and supervisors. In
consideration of its expanding plan and future cash demands, the Company intends to distribute
stock dividends. The Company's dividend policy stipulates that at least 20% of total dividends

may be distributed as cash dividends. and no more 80% of total dividends may be distributed
as stock dividends.

(2) Pursuant to Article 41 of the Securities and Exchange Law of the R.O.C., a special reserve
is set aside from the current net income and prior unappropriated earnings with an amount
equal to the amount of items that is accounted for as deductions to stockholders’ equity such as
unrealized loss on long-term investment and cumulative translation adjustments. When the
deductions to stockholders' equity are reversed, the set-aside special reserve can be distributed.

(3) Employees' bonuses and remuneration to directors and supervisors

A. Based on the resolution of the annual stockholders' meetings held on June 16, 2009. the
information on employees' bonuses, and directors' and supervisors' remuneration appropriated
from the distributable retained earnings of 2008 was as follows:

Items Amount
Bonus to employees - $2,858
Remuneration to directors 572
and supervisors
Total $3.430

The above distributions of retained earnings did not differ from the resolutions made by the
meetings of the board of directors on April 23, 2009.
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B.The appropriations of earnings for 2008 and 2007 had been approved by the shareholders’
meetings in June 2009 and 2008. The appropriations and dividends per share were as follows:

Appropriation of Eamings Dividends Per Share
Items 2008 2007 2008 2007
Legal reserve $101,536 $160,248
Special reserve - 1,387
Cash dividends 282,372 694,835 0.2 0.5
Stock dividends 423,559 694,835 0.5
Remuneration to - 1,224
directors and supervisors
Bonus to employees - 6,119
Total $807.467 $1,558,648

Bonus to employees and remuneration to directors and supervisors for 2008, which amounted
to NT$2,858 thousand and NT$572 thousand, respectively, were resolved by the shareholders’
meeting held on June 16, 2009. Bonus to employees and remuneration to directors and
superrisors recognized in the 2008 financial statements were NT$5,908 thousand and
NT$1,181 thousand, respedively. The variation of NT$3,050 thousand and NT$609 thousand
was due to profit adjustment, and was adjusted currently in profit or loss of 2009.

C.The related information regarding employees' bonus and directors' and supervisors'
remuneration 1s available at the Market Observation Post System website.

(4) For the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, the bonus to cmployees and
remuncration to directors and supervisors, which amounted to NT$3,533 and NT$7.089
thousand totally, were accrued based on the Company's Articles of Incorporation and past
experiences. If the amount of bonus and remuneration approved subsequently by the Board of
Directors has significant variation, the variation should be adjusted currently in profit or loss as
changes in accounting estimate.

2.Pursuant to the Articles of Incorporation of the Company’s subsidiaries Top Point Investment
Properties Ltd., Excellent Rewards International Co., Ltd., Best Perfect Holding Ltd., Good
Honor Holdings Ltd., Worthing Honor Holding Ltd., Mickey Regent inc. and Applied Wireless
Identifications Group Inc., the Board of Directors Atticles of Incorporation of the above
subsidiaries provided that the Board of Directors should propose the appropriation of the
annual eamings as dividends or bonuses.

3.The Articles of Incorporation of Gen-Wan Technology Corp. provided that the current
carnings, if any, should be appropriated in the following order: (1) Payment of taxes and
duties; (2) offset prior years' accumulated deficit, if any; (3) After deducting items (1) and (2),
set aside 10% of the remaining amount as legal reserve;(4) Distribution of dividends proposed
by the Board of Directors and approved by shareholders in the general meeting; (5) After
deducting items (1) to (4), appropriating at least 1% of remaining earnings remuneration to
directors and supervisors; and at least 10% as bonuses to employees. (6) Distributing the
remaining amount to shareholders.
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4.The Articles of Incorporation of Shin Phui Steel Corporation provided that the current
earnings, if any, should be used to pay taxes and offset prior years’ accumulated deficit and
then set aside 10% of the remaining amount as legal reserve. The Board of Directors should
propose appropriation of the remaining earnings which may include at least 1% as bonuses to
employees and no more than 0.5% as remuneration to directors and supervisors.

5.The Articles of Incorporation of EMMT Systems Corp. provided that the current earnings. if
any, should be used to pay taxes and offset prior years’ accumulated deficit and then set aside
10% of the remaining amount as legal reserve. The Board of Directors should propose
appropriation of the remaining earnings which may include distribution of common stock
dividends (at 1% of par value per share) and of the remainder. no more than 3% as
remuncration to directors or supervisors and 3% of bonuses to cmployees. A fter making all the
above appropriations, the shareholders should then resolve to retain the remainder as special
reserve or distribute the remaining amount to shareholders.

6.The Articles of Incorporation ot Groupco Technology Inc. provided that the current earnings.
if any, should be used 1o pay taxes and offset prior years” accumulated deficit and then set aside
10% of the remaining amount as legal reserve. Of the remainder, if any, 15% as bonuses to
employees, dividends and 0.2% as remuneration to directors and supervisors. Shareholders
should then resolve the manners in which the remaining amount would be appropriated.

7.The Articles of Incorporation of AWID Asia Co.. L.td. provided that the current earnings, if
any, should be used to pay taxes and offset .prior years® accumulated deficit and then set aside
10% of the remaining amount as legal reserve. The remaining amount plus prior years’ retained
earnings may be appropriated as preferred stock dividends and bonuses which are to be
approved by shareholders in the general meeting. Bonuses to employees shall be between 15%
to 20% of the retained earnings while remuneration to directors and supervisors shall not
exceed 0.2%.

8.The Articles of Incorporation of Yieh Phui (China) Technomaterial Co., Ltd., Changshu
Chief Leading Edge Construction Materials Company. and Jiangsu § & Y Engineering Co..
Ltd. provided that the current earnings. if any. should be used to pay taxes and offsct prior
years® accumulated deficit and then be appropriated in the following order of presentation:

A Set aside a specific percentage as savings reserve fund, incentive bonus to employees and
employee welfare fund;

B.Distributing the remaining amount to shareholders.

The Board of Directors shall resolve the amount of the respective reserves and earnings
distribution.
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9.Yieh Hsing Enterprise Co., Ltd.

(1) The company operates in a capital and technology intensive industry. The businesses have
reached the “maturity™ level. In light of the company’s sustainable operations and future market
demands, the company adopts a “residual dividend policy”. The company’s current earnings, if
any, should be used to pay taxes and offset prior years’ accumulated deficit and then set aside 10%
of the remaining amount as legal rescrve. A special reserve may be provided according to actual
requirement. The remaining amount, if any, shall be appropriated as follows: no greater than 0.5%
as remuneration to directors and supervisors; 1% as bonuses to employees; preferred stock
dividends and the remaining amount plus prior years' retained earnings shall be distributed to
shareholders (made up by 50% ~ 100% of stock dividends and 0% ~ 50% of cash dividends). The

Board of Directors shall propose the aforementioned apbropriation of eamings for approval by
shareholders.

(2) The Company’s stockholders in their April 2009 and 2008 meetings. approved the following’
appropriations of the 2008 and 2007 eamings and dividends per share as follows:
Appropriation of Earnings Dividends Per Share ($)
2008 2007 2008 2007
L.egal Reserve 3 - $ -

Special reserve - -
Common Stock:

Cash dividends - -
Stock dividends - - -
Remuneration to - -

directors and

SUpervisors

Bonus to employces - -

Total $ - ) -

A.Bonus to employees and remuneration to directors and supervisors for Year 2008, which
amounted to both NT$0 thousand. were resolved by the shareholders' meeting held on Apni 29,
2009. There was no variation between the amounts resolved by the sharcholders’ meecting and
recognized in the 2008 financial statements.

B.The related information regarding bonus to employees and remuneration to directors and
supervisors is available at the Market Observation Post System website.

(3) For the year ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, the bonus to employees and remuneration to
directors and supervisors, which were both NTS$0 thousand, were accrued based on the Company's
Articles of Incorporation and past experiences. If the amount of bonus and remuneration approved
subsequently by the Board of Directors has significant variation, the variation should be adjusted
currently in profit or loss as change in accounting estimate.
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33. MISCELLANEOUS INCOME 223
[tems 2009 2008
Gain on disposal of scraps $14,020 $42,125
Technical service fec 8,208 6,860
Rental income 3,163 1,307
Host and road menagement 2,737 -
Computer use and workforce support 2,727 -
Allowance for doubtful accounts transferred to - 10,049
income
Others 47,058 15,338
Total $77.913 $75,679
34. IMPAIRMENT LOSS
[tems 2009 2008
Impairment loss on financial assets carried at $972 $164.448
cost
Impairment loss on noncurrent assets held for 3.302 -
sale
Impairment loss on idle assets 5188 58,384
Impairment loss on other assets- others 76.500
Impairment loss on property, plant & equipment - 138,412
Total $9,462 $437,744
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35. EXPENSES OF EMPLOYEES, DEPRECIAION AND AMORTIZATION 2
For the year ended December 31, 2009
[tems Operating cost Operating cxpenses Total
Employees Expense
Salary expense $945,428 $480,505 $1,425933
[nsurance expense 77,540 37,004 114.544
Pension expense 64,297 24,690 88,987 ‘
Other expenses 135,336 38,045 173,381
Depreciation 1,581,352 130,846 1,712,198
Amortization 21,836 23,778 45614
TFotal $2.825,789 $734,868 $3,560,657
Note 1: Excluding NT$ 120 thousand of pension cost, which was included in prepayments
for equipment.
Note 2: Excluding interest expense for current amortization of syndicated loan of
NTS$26.331 thousand.
For the year ended December 31, 2008
Accounts Operating cost Operating expenses Total
Employees Expense
Salary expense $980.528 $499,200 $1,479.728
Insurance expense 79,639 38,492 118,131
Pension expense 69,601 23,851 93,452
Other expenses 248,565 61,686 310,251
Depreciation 1,591,386 126,610 £.717,996
Amortization 20,799 22,963 43,762
Total $2,990,518 $772.802 $3,763,320

Note 1: Excluding NT$ 418 thousand of pension cost, which was included in prepayments
for equipment.

Note 2: Excluding interest expense for current amortization of syndicated loan of
NT$23.953 thousand.
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36. INCOME TAX 27

(1) Net deferred income tax assets and liabilities comprise of the following:
A. Current:

December 31

Accounts 2009 2008
Over provision of allowance for doubtful accounts $1,019 $11,322
Unrealized foreign exchange losses (gains) 5,481 7.886
Sales allowances 6914 27.409
Unrealized (realized) gains on goods sold 5,300 2,143
Unrealized value decline and obsolescence losses 8,863 53,793
on inventories
Difterences arising from recognition of operating 2,362 48,160
revenues
Deferred income fax assets of subsidiaries 996 5,088
Others 10,561 11.659
Subtotal $41.496 $167.460
Less: Valuation allowance - -
Deferred income tax assets, net $41,496 $167,460
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B. Non-current: 270
December 31
Accounts 2009 2008
Differences arising from recognition of operating 35,734 $8,070
revenues
Investment losses recognized under the cost 71,426 9,282
method
Investment losses (gains) recognized under the 318.040 428,361
equity method
Provision for overseas investment loss (84,657) (120,479)
Others 11,917 13,766
Unused losscarryforwards 13,807 -
Deferred income fax assets of subsidiaries 292.768 288,753
Subtotal . $629.035 $707.,753
Less: Valuation allowance (59.062) (73,835)
Total $569.973 $633918
Cumulative translation adjustments (102,774) (169,748)
Deferred income tax assets, net $467,199 S464,170

(2) The components of income tax expense (benefit) were as follows:

Accounts : 2009 2008
Current year income tax expense based on b - $525.690
statutory income
Additional 10% corporate tax on undistributed 20,276 1,798
earnings
Deferred income tax expense (benefit) 115,791 (223.275)
Prior years’” income tax adjustment (55,708) 7.944
Effect of changes due to change in income tax 77,035 -
law
Income tax expensc (benetit)- parent company $157,394 $312,157
Income tax expense (benefit)- subsidiaries 2,156 1,904
Prior years’ income tax adjustment- subsidiarics (42) 34
Deferred income tax expenses (benefits)- (4.070) 26,694
subsidiaries .
Income tax expense (benefit) $155,438 $340,839
— 60 .
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The Legislative Yuan amended Clause 5 of Income Tax law on May 2009 to reduce

the Profit-Seeking Enterprise Income Tax from 25% to 20% and is scheduled to be
entorced in 2010. The Company has re-calculated the deferred income tax assets in
accordance with the amended clause and listed the difference of NT$77,035 thousand

generated from such calculation as income tax expense.

(3) Change in income tax payable {refundable)
December 31, 2009

[tems The Company Subsidiaries
Income tax currently pavable 3 - $2,156
Additional 10% corporate tax on undistributed 20.276 -

earnings

Prior years® income tax adjustment - -
Less: payment in current year (769) (1.371)
07 $783

income tax payable $19,

h

Income tax payable from subsidiaries amounting to $785 thousand were included in the
tollowing accounts: NT$1,203 thousand in income tax payable and NT$418 thousand
In prepaynients.

December 31, 2008

Items The Company Subsidiarics
Income tax currently payable $525,690 $1.904
Additional 10% corporate tax on undistributed 1,798 -

earnings
Prior years® income tax adjustment - -

Less: payment in current year (258.963) (6,142)

Income tax payable (refundable) $268,525 ($4,238)

Income tax refundable from subsidiaries amounting to $4,238 thousand were included
in the following accounts: NT$878 thousand in income tax payable and NT$5.116
thousand in prepayments.
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(4) A reconcitiation of income tax expense based on income before income tax of the parent
company at the statutory rate and inconie tax payable was as follows:
Accounts 2009 2008

Current year income tax expense based on statutory $110,776 $332,609
income

Tax effect on adjusting items:

(1) Realized (unrealized) exchange foreign (1,035) 11,340
exchange gains or losses

(2) Tax-exempt income (3,570) {19.570)

(3) Investment losses (gains) recognized under the 47,421 79,848
equity method

(4) Reversal (provision) for overseas investment 14,658 25.559
loss reserve

(5) Unrealized (realized) sales income from affiliate 4,482 (8,933)

(6) Difference between tax reporting and financial (3,066) (3.760)
reporting — pension costs

(7} Inventory obsolescence and market price (46,908) 20,092
decline losses

(8) Realized (unrealized) valuation losses (gains) on (86,292) 6.288
financial assets (liabilitics)

(9) Impairment losses (71.224) 61,112

(10) Others (9,426) 21,105

(11) Operating loss carryforward 46,184 -

Income tax expense — parent company $ - $525,690

(5) As of December 31, 2009, the consolidated entities” income tax returns through to
2007 have been cleared by the Tax Authority.
{6) As of December 31, 2009, information about the investment tax credits of the
consolidated entities pursuant to the Statute for Upgrading Industries were as follows:
Total Credits/

Law/Statute Qualified Expenditure Unused Credits Year of Expiration
Statute for Upgrading  Machinery equipment $470/8279 2013
Industries
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Accounts 2009 2008
Imputation credit account (ICA) $1,455,439 $1,555,954
Unappropriated eamings generated before 1997 111,907 111.907
Unappropriated earnings generated after 1998 3,557,644 4,064,954
Accounts 2009 2008
The creditable ratio for distribution of earnings 41.46% 43.50%
(estimated) (actual)

The imputation credit allocated to the shareholders is based on the balance of the ICA

as of the date of dividend distribution. The estimated creditable ratio for 2009 may

change when the actual distribution of imputation credit is made.

37. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Items 2009 2008

A.Basic eaming per share :

Consolidated net income $202,145 $956,611

Add: Minority interest ' 83,604 61,710

Net income attributable to shareholders

of the parent company $285,749 $1,018,321

Weighted average shares of outstanding 1,454.219 1,451,272

shares (in thousands)

Weighted average shares after retroaction 1454219 1.494 810

(in thousands)

Basic earnings per share:

Consolidated net income 50.14 $0.64

Add: Minority interest 0.06 0.04

Shareholders of the parent company $0.20 $0.68
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B.Diluted earning per share :

Consolidated net income

Add: Minority interest

Net income attributable to shareholders
of the parent company

Convertible bonds adjustments

Adjusted net income for diluted EPS
Weighted-average shares outstanding after
retroactive adjustments (in thousands)
Estimated shares of convertible bonds
adjustments (in thousands)
Weighted-average shares outstanding for
diluted EPS (in thousands)

Diluted eamings per share:

Consolidated net income

Add: Minority interest

Attributable to:

Shareholders of the parent company

Weighted average shares outstanding in 2009=(1,459,154-47 291)

PUBLIC FILE

21b
$202,145 $956,611
83,604 61,710
$285,749 $1,018,321
- $1,162
285,749 1,019,193
1,454.219 1,494 810
- 4,179
1,454.219 1,498,989
$0.14 $0.64
0.06 0.04
$0.20 $0.68

*1.03=1,454,219 (47.291 thousand shares were retirement of treasury stock)
Weighted average shares outstanding in 2008=1,451,272*1.03

=1,494,810
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The significant transactions with related parties were as follows:

(1) Relationship with Related Parties
Related Parties

pyUBLIC FILE
uUs

Yieh Hsing Enterprise Co., Ltd.

Yieh Mau Corp.

Yieh United Steel Corp.
I-Shou University

Yieh Trading Corp.

Cheng Shin House Management Consulting
Co., Ltd.

E-DA HOSPITAL

Chain Dollars Enterprise Co., Ltd.

Broad Victory Enterprise Co., I.td.
Yieh Hong Enterprise Co., Ltd.

Wei Hung Investment & Development
Co., Lid.

Yu Hong Enterprise Corp.

United Brightening Development Corp.
Asiazone Co., Lid.

Unipattern Co.

Glorious Falcon International Ltd.

Lian Zhong Stainless Steel Corp.
Lin Mei Feng

Eliter Intemational Corp.

Lu Yi Enterprise Co., Ltd.

Yich Corporation Ltd. |

Twsafe Inc.

Relationship with the Company .
Equity-method investee(Complied until in
consolidated statements was included since :
Nov. 2008)
Equity-method investee

Same chairman

Same chairman i
The chairman is the second degree relative of
the Company's chairman.

Equity-method investee

Samne chairman

The chairman is the second degree relative of
the Company's general manager

Substantial related party

Substantial related party

Same chairman

Substantial related party

Equity-method investee

Equity-method investee

Substantial related party

Equity-method investee of the Company's
subsidiary

Substaintial related party

Substaintial related party

Equity-method investee

Substaintial related party

The chairman is the second degree relative of
the Company's chainman.

Chairman of the related party is a secornd
degree relative of the Company's Cairmon

(The chairman resigned in Auguest 2008)
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Yeou Yih Steel Co., Ltd.
Sym Wang iron steel Co., Ltd.
E-DA Development Corp.

Synn Industrial Co., Ltd.
Zheng Xin Security Co., Ltd.

Tianjin Lianfa Precision steel Corp.

Beneficiary.
Chen Yung Hsien
Lin Chin Lung

You Jing Sheng

MTECH Corporation

(2) Purchases

Related Partics

NON-CONFIDENTIAL
Pacific Harbour Stevedoring Corp.

PUBLIC FILE
A

The chairman is the Company's vice
chairman.

The chairman is the Company's vice
chairman.

The chainnan is the spouse of the
Company's vice chairman.

Same chairman

Equity-method investee

Equity-method investee

Equity-method investee of the Company's
sudsidiary

The vice financial general manager

The secondary relative of the Company's
chairman.

The financial assistant vice manager of Yieh
Hsing Enterprise Co.. Ltd.

The chairman is the second degree relative of

the Company's chairman.

Asiazone Co., Limited

Yieh Hong Enterprise Co., Ltd.

Yieh United Steel Corp.

Related Parties

Asiazone Co., Limited

Yieh Hong Enterprise Co.. Ltd.

Yieh United Steel Corp.

2009
Amount % to Total
$1,569,780 5.10%
2,668,593 8.67%
3,717,138 12.08%
2008
Amount % to Total
$672,292 1.36%
4,133,233 8.93%
901,077 1.95%

Purchases from related partics were mainly rolled steel and steel plates. The above
purchases were made at arms-length terms. The payment term for all other purchases

was between | to 2 months.
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(3) Operating Revenue (Sales or Services): 213
2009
Related Parties Amount % of net sales

Operating Revenue:

Yieh United Steel Pte Ltd. $98,766 0.22%

Chain Dollars Enterprise Co., Ltd. 48,311 0.11%

Asiazone Co., Limited. 2,200,969 4.91%

Glorious Falcon International Ltd. 5,074,849 11.32%

Yieh Corporation Ltd. . 640.035 1.43%

Lian Zhong Stainless Steel Corp. 259,508 ' 0.58%

Tianjin Lianfa Precision steel Corp. 153,298 0.34%

Lu Y1 Enterprise Co., Ltd. 6.702 0.01%

Others 7.034 0.02%
Construction revenue:

Eliter International Corp. 14912 0.03%

Others 269 -
Revenue from salc of scraps: ‘

Yieh United Steel Corporation 290,949 0.65%
Processing revenue:

Others 448 -

2008
Related Parties Amount % of net sales

Operating Revenue:

Yieh United Steel Pte Ltd. $50.408 0.09%

Glorious Falcon International Ltd. 7.592,831 13.01%

Chain Dollars Enterprise Co., Ltd. 201,851 0.35%

Asiazone Co., Limited. 2,963,459 5.08%

Lu Yi Enterprise Co., Ltd. 86,407 0.15%

Yieh Corporation Ltd. 1,057,433 1.81%

Lian Zhong Stainless Steel Corp. 275,443 0.47%

Others 5,124 -
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Revenue from sale of scraps:

Yieh United Steel Corporation 544,960 0.93%
Processing revenue:

Others 608 -
Construction revenue:

Yieh United Steel Corporation 72,872 0.12%

Others . 17,252 0.03%

a.The Company's operating revenue and revenue from sale of scraps such as stainless
steel billets and carbon steel slabs to related parties at general arms-length prices
expect those sold to Yieh Hsing Enterprise Co., Ltd. and Glorious Falcon International
Ltd. for which comparable prices for similar products were unavailable. The credit term
tor the above sales was between 1 to 2 months, except where both parties agreed on interes
charge for late payment.

b.The prices for construction contracts were negotiated between both parties to the
transaction. Payment was collected based on the percentage-of-completion method.

Both parties may negotiate to extend the payment term according to the actuat
financing status.

(4) Asset transactions:

(a) The Company purchased the following properties from related partics in 2009 and 2008:

2009
Name of Related Party Transaction Details Amount
Unipattern Co. Purchase of equipment $190.700
Others Purchase of equipment 554
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2008
Name of Related Party Transaction Details Amount
Yieh United Steel Corporation. Purchase of equipinent 31,068
Yieh Mau Corp. Purchase of 1,143

equipments &
consturction contracting
Yich Mau Corp. Acquisition of 24,000 240,000
thousand shares of
Yieh United steel Corp.
Acquisition of 20,000
2,000,000 shares of Eliter
International Corp.
Unipattern CO. Purchase of equipment 1,128

Others Purchase of equipment 58

Prices for the above property transactions were negotiated and agreed upon

between both the Company and its related parties.

(b) The Company sold the following property, plant and eq\{ipmem to related parties
in 2009 and 2008:

2009
Related Party : Item Amount (Loss) Gain
MTECH Corporation  Sale of equipment $101,312 $17,473
2008
Related Party Item Amount (Loss) Gain
Others Sale of equipment $507 $ -

The above sales prices were negotiated and agreed upon between both the
Company and related parties.
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(5) Construction Contracts
As of December 31, 2009:

Work in Progress/

Contract Billings on
Related Parties Items Amount uncompleted contracts
E-DA development Steel Structure $336,310 291317
Corp. construction -
Eliter Inetrnational ~ Steel Structure 49,136 38,942
Corp. construction A -
Others crown block stecl 13,226 6,878

structure engineering etc. -
As of December 31, 2008:
Work in Progress/

Contract Billings on
Related Parties Items Amount uncompleted contracts
Eliter Inetmational  Steel Structure $15.312 $13.901
Corp. construction 9.810
E-DA development Steel Structure, 230,555 55,843

Corp.

foundation, and

bridge construction

The prices for the above construction contracts were negotiated and agreed upon

between the Company and related parties. Payments were collected based on the

percentage-of-completion method.
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(6) Accounts receivable (payable) as of December 31, 2009 and 2008:
December 31, 2009

PUBLIC FILE 2

Name of Related Parties Amount

Percentage
(a) Notes Receivable S1d4 0.07%
Eliter International $144 0.07%
(b) Accounts receivable
Gilorious Falcon International Ltd. $917,450 23.31%
Asiazone Co., Limited 417,244 10.60%
Yieh United Steel Corporation. 45,365 1.15%
Lianzhong Stainless steel Co., Ltd. 54,410 1.38%
Tianjin Lianta Precision Steel Corp. 14,209 0.36%
Yieh Corporation Ltd. 13,841 0.35%
Chain Dollars Enterprise Co., Ltd. 3,794 0.22%
Others 271 0.01%
Total $554.134 14.07%
(c) Other Receivables
MTECH Corporation $93,132 21.71%
Synn Industrial Co., Ltd. 63,199 14.73%
Yieh United Steel Corp. 44,075 10.27%
Others 5,407 1.26%
Total $205,813 47.97%
(d) Notes Payable
Pacific Harbor Stevedoring Corp. $6,576 0.33%
E-DA Hospital 1.434 0.07%
Others 466 0.02%
Total $8,476 0.42%
(e) Accounts payable
Asiazone Co., Limited $245,407 26.11%
Others 1.641 0.17%
Total $247,048 26.28%
(f) Advance receipts:
Others Si61 0.06%
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(2) Accrued expenses

E-DA Hospital

PUBLIC FILE

$5,041 0.80%
Pacific Harbor Stevedoring Corp. 3,140 0.50%
Others 1,667 0.27%
Total $9,848 1.57%
(h) Other payables )
Others $738 0.49%
December 31, 2008
Name of Related Parties Amount Percentage
(a) Notes Receivable
Others $153 0.08%
(b) Accounts receivable
Yieh United Steel Corporation. $18,853 0.76%
Chain Dollars Enterprise Co., Ltd. 4,820 0.19%
Lianzhong Stainless steel Co., Ltd. 25332 1.02%
Glorious Falcon International Ltd. 550,830 2221%
Asiazonce Co., Limited 45333 1.83%
Yieh Mau Corp. 1,418 0.06%
Yieh Corporation Ltd. 13,934 0.56%
Others 815 0.03%
Total $661,335 26.66%
(c) Other Receivables
Synn Industrial Co., Ltd.-Cash Dividends $29,874 12.04%
Others 1,742 0.71%
Total $31,616 12.75%
(d) Notes Payable
Others $318 0.01%
(€) Accounts payable
Yich United Steel Corp. $131,141 19.89%
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(f) Accrued expenses
Pacific Harbour Stevedoring Corp.
E-DA Hospital
Yieh United Steel Corp.
Others
Total
(g) Other payables
Others
(h) Advance receipts
"Others

(7) Financing

PUBLIC FILE 2.7

$6,578 1.26%
6,203 1.19%
4,027 0.77%

898 0.17%
$17,706 3.39%
$258 0.12%
$161 0.04%

Range of interest/

Related Parties Highest Balance Ending Balance Amount of interest

2009:
Others $4,920 -
2008: -
Others $4.920 $4.920 -
(8) Rent Expense
Related Parties Description 2009 2008

Others Land, building $6,826 $5,913
(9) Rent Income
Related Parties Description 2009 2008

Others Land, building $3.067 $1.195

Arising from the leasing of tand and buildings by Yieh Hsing Enterprise Co., Ltd.
(the Company’s subsidiary) to Yieh Mau Corp. Please refer to Note 19 for further

details.
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(10)Others
a.Other income:
2009
Name of Related Party Amount Description Account
Yieh United Steel $9,103  Income from sale of Other income
Corporation scraps
Others 10,385  Host usage fees Other income
2008
Name of Related Party Amount Description Account
Yieh United Steel $10,315  Income from sale of Other income
Corporation scraps
Others 10,100  Host usage fees Other income

b.Other expenses:

2009
Name of Related Party Amount Account
Zheng xin Security Co., Ltd. $30,799  Miscellaneous
expenses
Pacific Harbor Stevedoring Corporation 55,568  Export expense
E-Da Hospital 14.104  Miscellancous
expenses
Lianzhong Stainless Steel Corp. 79,634  Outsourcing
processing expenses
I-Shou Univei'sity 113539  Miscellaneous
expenses
Others 12.853  Repair and
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Name of Related Party Amount Account
Cheng Shin House Management Consulting Co., $25,072  Miscellaneous
Ltd. expenses
Pacific Harbor Stevedoring Corporation 76,807  Export expense
E-Da Hospital 12,054  Miscellaneous
expenses
Lianzhong Stainless Steel Corp. 117,482  Outsourcing

processing expenses
Others 12,906  Service fees

(11)The 'Other assets-others' cannot be registered under the Company’s name due to the
legal restriction and was registered under Lin Mei-Feng name. However. Lin had issued
a promise note to promise that once the lcgal restriction is lifted, the assets would be
registered back to the name of the Company unconditionally. Due to the lift of legal
restriction, the land has been registered under the Company’s name, and was reclassified
as property, plant and equipment-land from other assets-others in March 2009.

(12)The land of No.107, Sanyebei Duan, Luzhu Township, which was recorded as land in
use under other assets-others, has been registered under the name of the vice financial
general manager, Chen Yung Hsien.

(13)Yieh Hsing Enterprise Co., Ltd (subsidiary ot the Company) acquired the land located at
Lot 200-3, Paimi section in Kangshan Township on September 4, 2008 and registered
the property under a trust in the name of Mr. You Jing Sheng. However, Yieh Hsing
Enterprise Co., Ltd. was in possession of the certificate of land title.

(14)Information about compensation of directors, supervisors and management personnet:

Accounts 2009 2008
Salaries $61.280 $124,599
Bonus 2,149 3,122
Fees received for 1,925 3,102

pertorming duties

wS -

Total $65,354 $130,823

The information about the compensation of directors and management personnel is
available in the annual report for the shareholders’ meeting.
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3%. ASSETS MORTGAGED OR PLEDGED

The following assets have been mortgaged or pledged as collateral for long-term

and short-term loans.

PUBLIC FILE 70¢%

December 31t

Accounts 2009 2008

Restricted account-current $1,526,092 $1,429,466
Restricted account-noncurrent 85,975 663,600
Accounts receivable 153,435 114,000
Financial assets carried at cost-noncurrent - 237,580
Financial assets at fair value through profit or 279,243 -
loss
Real estate investments 2,736,585 2,736,585
Land 2,533,966 1,717,303
Buildings (net) 3,579,796 2,642,134
Machinery (net) 14,296,474 14,763,404
Electricity equipment 39,781 8.408
Transportation equipment (net) 7,253 45,318
Other equipments 131 -
QOther intangible assets 136,108 142,872
Other assets-others 964,798 965,640
Cnstruction in progress 202,170 -
Prepayments for equipiment 1,471,832 -
Idle assets (net) 208,101 -
Assets leased to others (net) 896,239 663,070
Noncurrent assets held for sale 7,466 -

Total $29,125,445 $26,129,380
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40. SIGNIFICANT COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

December 31

. 2009 2008
(1) Guarantee notes issued for loans and $25,741,517 $25,934,046
purchases
(2) Performance guarantee notes received from 390,140 272,493
customers
(3) L/C issued but yet to be utilized Unit: In Thousands
December 31, 2009
L/C Amount Guarantee Amount
UsD 29,530 USD 2,300
NTD 293,739  NTD -
JPY 13,406 JPY -
ECR 1.240 ECR -
December 31, 2008
L/C Amount Guarantee Amount
usD 3885 USD
NTD 149209 NTD -
JPY 51,625 RMB 2,577
EUR 2025 RMB 12,220
SEK 2,189

(4) Major contracts:
A For the purpose of expanding the plant for the manufacturing of galvanized and paint
coating steel sheets, the Company entered into an agreement with the Taiwan Sugar
Co., Ltd. (Kaohsiung) to obtain the following surface rights:
a.Duration of surface rights: January 1, 1996 to December 31, 2045.
b.Rent on land and payment method: The rent is charged annually at 10% of the -
declared land value. The rent is adjusted according to any adjustment in the declared
land value.

c.Payment of royalty: At the time of signing the agreement, the Company made a
royalty payment for the first 20 years at 4 times of the first rental installment.
Upon expiration of 20 years, royalty payment at 4 times of the first rental installment
is payable by the Company within 10 days.
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d.Royalties paid in advance to the Taiwan Sugar Co., Ltd. for the next 12 months were _
NT$ 207 thousand as of December 31, 2009 and 2008. These amounts were included L
in prepayments. Royalties paid in advance for the period beyond 12 months totaled
NT$ 1,033 thousand and NT$ 1,240 thousand, respectively, included in “other assets-
others”.

(5) EMMT Systems Corp., a consolidated subsidiary of the Company, renewed the lease

agreement for the land (4,353 sq. m. in area, where the subsidiary’s office building
was located) with the Taichung Branch of the Export Processing Zone Administration,
MOEA. The new lease term was for 10 years, expiring on November 30, 2018. The
monthly rental payment was NT$ 40 thousand. '

(6) As of December 31. 2009 and 2008, guarantees provided by the Company amounted
to NT$55,650 thousand and NT$104,217 thousand, respectively.

(7) The supplier, Trafigura Beheer B.V Company, terminated the contract due to Company's
not being in accordance with the contract that should issue the Letter of credit, and applied
for arbitration in LME seeking monetary damages of US$7.904 thousand plus interest. The
Company contradicted no obligation to issuc the Letter of credit or do the payment due to
that Trafigura Beheer B.V didn't deliver certain quantitics of zinc on the agreed day
according to the contract. The result of the arbitration cannot be determined at this time.

(8) Regarding the purchase transactions between the Company and Lin Kang Heary Indastral
Co., Ltd. in 2004, National Tax Administration of southern Taiwan Province, Ministry of
Finance had dispute on business tax recognition in December 2008. The disputed business

tax amount and related fine were both $8,725 thousand, and the Company filed an
application for recheck in January 2009. Upon consultation with legal experts, the Company
is confident in winning the case. Based on conservatism, the Company estimated and
recognized above amounts (as other loss and a write-off from tax refundable).

The application for recheck had been processed by National Tax Administration of southern
Taiwan Province. As of April 21, 2010, the result of above-mentioned recheck hasn't been
determined.
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(9) SIGNIFICANT CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS

A.As of December 31, 2009, some important constructions have been contracted With contract
price over NT$ 150 million but not yet completed. The estimate total cost, prepaid construction
cost and projected completion years of the important constructions were as follows:

Prepaid construction  Projected completion

Contract price/Estimated cost/Completion year/Accumulated
Constructions Construction cost percentage recognized gain(loss)
Idle Handling & Scrap 253,500 158,191 2010
Charging E.D.T Crane 240,522 45.74% 5,936

for Tung Ho Steel

Taoyuan works 156,600 125,030 2010
Procurement Section

One lot of E.D.T Crane

for Tung Ho Steel 152,792 69.57% 2,649
Taoyuan works 330,394 376,370 2010
Procurement Section

New Construction

Project of "Glory 391,619 93.28% (61,225)
Collective Residence"

Lijin Consturction-AS 301,048 308,135 2010
Consturction 317,540 92.87% (16.492)
New Construction 785,834 670,207 2010

. Project of Da Qian 730,363 86.63% 48,056
Collective Residence
New Construction 185,702 115,451 2010
Project of "Glory 185,603 10.00% 10
Collective Residence"
New Construction 150,906 126451 2010
Project of Stuctural 135,149 90.57% 14,270 .
steel of izuchi I
Stuctural steel 152,890 142,561 2010
Consturction Project 149,540 - -
of E-Da Development
Corp.
Project of Te San 188,326 4,229 2011
Collective Residence 188,062
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As of December 31, 2008, some important constructions have been contracted With contract
price over NT$ 150 millon but not yet completed. The estimate total cost, prepaid construction
cost and projected completion years of the important constructions were as follows:

Prepaid construction  Projected completion

Total contract price cost Completion year/Accumulated
Constructions Estimated total cost percentage recognized gain(loss)
New Construction 330,394 258,524 2010
Project of "Glory 358,850 15.60% (28,456)
Collective Residence"
New Construction 180,023 195,653 2010
Project of "Tian xi 5th 211,196 52.87% 31,173y
Collective Residence"
New Construction 785,834 633,542 2010
Project of Da Qian 730,363 32.15% 28.928
Collective Residence
Minghung Construction- 322,667 ' 332,241 2009
The Art of Sin Si 342,542 91.27% (19,875)
Collective Housing
Project
Fu Tsu Cbnstruction 177,000 141,027 2009
Co.,Ltd.-CBU Building 176,469 89.76% 477
Project in Plant in
Taichung base of AU
Optronics Corp.
Lijin Construction, 301,048 308,166 2009
Zhenyi Construction- 317,540 88.55% (16,492)
AS Construction
Ladle Handling & Scrap 253,500 5,295 2010
Charging E.O.T Cranes 240,522 20.00% 2,596
for Tung Ho Steel
Taoyuan works
Procurement Section
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B.Yieh Phui (China) Lid. had entered into some construction contracts with some compantes. The contents of

some important constructions with contract price over RMB 5,000 thousand were as follows:

2009: None
2008:

Objects

Items

Total Billing on Contract

contract price this year

unit: thousand
Construction

cost Occurred

Danieli & C. officine
Meccaniche Spa
Fintec GGhbh
Shanghai Baoye
Construction Corp.
Ltd.

Shanghai Baoye
Construction Corp.
Lid.

hangsu Tianmu
Construction Corp.

Co.. Ltd.

No.3 galvanizing

line equiptment

Construction of

factory huildings

Construction of

civil engneering

Manufacturing
project of

equipments for

EUR 18,489 EUR 10,779
RMB 20,898 RMB 2,724
RMB 20,434 RMB 4.476
RMB 12,620 RMB 11,704

No.3 galvanizing line

EUR 16.668

RMB 20,898

RMB 17.801

RMB 11,704

C.Yieh Hsing Enterprise Co., Ltd. entered into purchasing agreements with the following vendors in 2009 and
2008. The contects of some important constructions with contract price over NT$150 million werce as tollows:

2009: None
2008:

Objects

ftems

Total

contract price Prepaid cost

Unpaid cost

Danieli Far East

Co.. Lid.

Equipments of
ping nan carbon
steel electric

furnace mill

EUR 33,020 EUR 1.542

(NTD 73,642)

—81—
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41. ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES
1.Following are the additional disclosures for the Company and its investees in which all
significant intercompany balances and transactions are eliminated upon consolidation:
(1) Loans to others: Please see TABLE 1 attached;
(2) Endorsements and guarantees: Please see TABLE 2 attached;
(3) Marketable securities held at period-end: Please see TABLE 3 attached:
(4) Marketabie securities acquired and disposed of at costs or prices of at least
NT$100 million or 20% of the paid-in capital: Please see TABLE 4 attached..
(5) Acquisition of individual real estate properties at costs of at least NTS100 million or
20% of the paid-in capital: TABLE 5 attached;
(6) Disposal of individual real estate properties at prices of at least NT$100 million or
20% of the paid-in capital: Please see TABLE 6 attached;
(7) Total purchases from or sales to related parties amounting to at least NT$100 million or
20% of the paid-in capital: Please see TABLE 7 attached:
(8) Receivable from related parties amounting to at least NT$100 million or 20% of the paid-in
capital: Please see TABLE 8 attached:
(9) Derivative transactions: Please refer to Notes 5 and 43 for further details.
(10)Significant direct or indircct transactions with the investee: Please sec attached TABLE 9.
2.Names, locations, and related information of investees over which the Company cxercises
significant influence: Plcase see TABLE 10.attached.
3.Information on investment in Mainland China: Please see TABLE 11 attached.

4.Organization chart of affiliated cnterprises: Please see TABLE 12 attached.
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42. Maturity Analysis of Assets and Liabilities
Assets and liabilities of the consolidated entities related to steel structure engineering
businesses are classified as current and non-current according to their operating cycles.
The amounts receivable or due and payable within or after one year after the balance sheet
date were summarized as follows:
December 31, 2009

Assets Due within one year  Due after one year Total

Cash and cash equivalents $3,549873 % - $3,549,873
Financial assets at fair value 1,009,038 1,009,038
through profit or loss-current
Bond investments with no 2,000 - 2,000
accive market-current
Notes receivable 215.726 - 215,726
Accounts receivable (incl. 3,871,691 - 3.871.691
related parties) :
Other receivables (incl. related 429,031 - 429,031
parties)
Inventories 6.529.845 112,570 6,642,415
Prepayments 2,148,199 2,148,199
Noncurrent assets held for 9,675 - 9,675
sale
Deferred income tax assets- 41.496 - 41,496
current
Restricted assets-current 1,526,092 - 1,526,092
Total $19,332,666 $112,570 $19,445.236

Liabilitics
Short-term loans $10335279 § - $10,335,279
Short-term bills payable 750.705 - 750,705
Notes payable 2,015,824 - 2,015,824
Accounts payable (incl. related 939,867 939,867
parties)
[ncome tax payable 20,710 - 20,710
Accrucd expenses 627,540 - 627,540
Other payables 151,485 - 151,485
Advance receipts 284,438 - 284,438
Long-term lhabilities-current 3,775,888 - 3,775,888
portion
Total $18901,736 S $18,901,736

— l —
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Assets Due within one year ~ Due after one year Total
Cash and cash equivalents $5,980,549 % - $5,980,549
Financial assets at fair value 683,988 - 683,988
through profit or loss-current
Bond investments with no 2.000 - 2,000
active market-current
Notes receivable 179,283 - 179,283
Accounts receivable (incl. 2,398,162 - 2,398,162
related parties)
Other receivables <inbl. related 236.374 - 236,374
parties)
Inventories 6,304,552 665,478 6.970,030
Prepayments 710.106 710,106
Deferred income tax assets- 167,460 - 167.460
Current
Restricted assets-current 1,429,466 - 1,429,466
Total $18,091,940 $665,478 $18,757,418
Liabilities
Short-term loans $10,670,962  § - $10,670,962
Short-term bills payable 1,647,369 - 1,647,369
Notes payable 2,353,072 - 2,353,072
Accounts payable (incl. related 659.438 659.438
parties)
Income tax payable 269,403 - 269,403
Accrued expenscs 522.861 - 522,861
Other payables 211,605 - 211,605
Advance receipts 425,483 - 425,483
Long-term liabilities-current 3,723,973 - 3,723,973
portion
Total $20,484,166 § - $20,484,166
- 106~

NON-CONFIDENTIAL




NON-CONFIDENTIAL PUBLIC ®jL- (13

43. DISCLOSURES FOR FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(1) Fair values of financial instruments were as follows:

December 31, 2009

Non-derivative Financial Instruments Carrying Amount Fair Value
Assets

Cash and cash cquivalents $3.549.873 $3,549.873
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 1,002,132 1,002,132
Assets-Current

Bond investments with no active market-current 2.000 2,000
Notes and accounts receivable 4.516.448 4516448
Restricted assets-current 1.526.093 1,526,093
Financial assets carried at cost-noncurrent 2,765,998 -
Bond investments with no active market-noncurrent 4,000 4,000
Refundable deposits 58.776 58.776
Restricted assets-noncurrent 85,975 85975

Liabilities

Short-term loans 10,335,279 10,335,279
Short-term bills payable 750,705 750.705
Notes and accounts payable 3,107,176 3,107,176
Long-term liabilitics-current portion 3,775,888 3,775,888
Long-term liabilities 15,727,388 15,727.388
Guarantee deposits 1.687 1.687

Derivative Financial Instruments

Assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Asscts-current

Investment-linked life insurance 6,906 6,906
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Assets-noncurrent

Compound instruments ‘ 279.243 279.243

—107—
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December 31, 2008

Non-derivative Financial Instruments Carrying Amount Fair Value
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $5,980,549 $5,980,549
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 667,160 667,160 |
Assets-curtent '
Bond investments with no active market-current 2,000 2,000
Notes and accounts receivable 2,813,819 2,813,819
Restricted assets-current 1,429,466 1,429,466 ;
Financial assets carried at cost-noncurrent 2,804,539 - '
Bond investments without active market-noncurrent 6.000 6.000 !
Restricted assets-noncurrent 663,600 663,600
Refundable deposits 34,400 34.400
Liabilities
Short-term loan 10.670.962 10.670.962
Short-term bills payable 1.647.369 1,647,369
Notes and accounts payable 3224115 3,224,115
Long-term habilities-current portion 3,723973 3,723,973 :
Long-term labilitics 14.944.729 14,944,729
Lease payable 11,173 114,173
Guarantce deposits 960 960

Derivative Financial [nstruments

Asscts

Financial assets at fair value through protit or loss
Assets-Current
Investment-linked life insurance 6,927 6.927

Investment-linked bonds 9.901 9.901

A.The methods and assumptions used to estimate the fair values of the above financial
instruments are summarized as follows:

(A) For short-term instruments, the fair values were determined based on their carrying
amounts because of the short maturities of the instruments. This method was applied
to cash and cash equivalents, notes and accounts receivable, restricted assets- current,
short-term loans, short-terin bills payable, notes and accounts payable, long-term

liabilities- current portion and lease payable.

— 10‘ —
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(B) Financial assets at fair value through profit of loss:
The fair values of financial assets at fair value through profit of loss are determined at
their market value. If there is no market value available for reference, the fajr values are
determined by using the valuation technique. The information used as basis for
determining the Company’s assumptions in applying valuation technique is consistent
with that used by market participants in determining the prices of the financial instruments.
The Company is capable of obtaining such information.

(C) Financial assets carried at cost- noncurrent:
Financial assets carried at cost are financial instruments issued by non-public corporations
which do not have active market price and whose verifiable fair value cannot be
determined at a reasonable cost.

(D) Debt service fund:
The fair values of bank deposits are estimated at their carrying amounts on the balance
sheet date.

(E) The fair value of bond investments with no active market is detcrmined at amortized cost.

(F) The fair values of other non-current financial assets and liabilities including refundable
deposits, restricted assets— non-current and refundable Deposits are determined at their
carrying amounts as payments are cither made or received in cash and the time to receive
or make the payment is certain.

(G) Derivative financial instruments:
The fair value of derivative financial instraments is determined by using the valuation
technique as no market price is available. The information used as basis for determining
the Company’s assumptions in applying valuation technique is consistent with that used
by market participants in determining the prices of the financial instruments. The fair
value was provided by the counterparty financial institution.

(H) Long-term liabilities and Lease payables:
The fair values of long-term liabilities and lease payable are determined by the present
values of future cash flows, with the values discounted at the interest rates of similar
long-term liabilities and lease payables available for the Company.

(I Corporate bonds pavahle:
The fair values of corporate bonds payables arc determined at the contracted selling
price plus interest compensation.

B.The fair values of the Company’s tinancial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss excluding those of listed (OTC) shares and fundiFunds, which are determined at
their quoted market prices, are determined using valuation techniques.

C.Changes in fair values of assets or liabilities using valuation techniques recognized in the

NOM-CONFIDENTIAL
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D.Financial assets exposed to cash flow interest rate risk as of December 31, 2009 and 2008 :
were NT$ 3,203,861 thousand and NT$5,889,646 thousand, respectively; while financial '
liabilities totaled NT$29,761,319 thousand and NT$29,350,837 thousand, respectively; !
financial assets exposed to fair value interest rate risk totaled NT$1,492.085 thousand
and NT$1,877,813 thousand as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively; while
financial liabilities totaled NT$819,401 thousand and NT$ 1,647,369 thousand, respectively.

E.Interest income from the financial assets other than the financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 was NT$46.551 thousand
and NT$70,527 thousand, respectively; interest expenses resulting from the financial assets
other than the tinancial assets at fair value through profit or loss for the years ended December
31, 2009 and 2008 were NT$788.770 thousand and NT$1,042,750 thousand, respectively.

(2) Information of major financial risk
A Market risk

a.The Company’s investment in Funds and listed (OTC) stocks were classified as

“financial assets at fair value through profit or loss- current™. These asscts were

measured at their fair values, which will be intluenced by the market interest rate change.
b.The Company undertook investment in subordinate financial bonds which are mostly
issued at floating interest rates. The impact of market interest rate changes on the fair
values was considered to be immaterial.
B.Credit risk
Credit risk represents the potential loss that would be incurred by the Company it the
counter-parties or third-parties breached the contracts. The Company’s financial instruments
are atfected by its credit risk concentration, component. contract amounts and other
receivables. The maxintum credir risks associated with the tinancial instruments on hand as
of the balance sheet date approximate their carrying amounts.
C.Liquidity risk
The Company maintained sufficient tund to meet operating capital requirements.
The Company does not anticipate any liquidity risks associated with failure 1o source required
funding.
Part of the Company’s equity investments (financial assets at fair value through profit or loss)
could be sold rapidly at prices approximating fair value because those financial assets could
be sold in secondary financial market at market value. There are liquidity risks for the financial
assets carried at cost and bond investments with no active market because no active market
prices are available

D.Cash flow risk due to changes in intercst rate

— 10—
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Certain accounts in the 2008 financial statements were reclassified to be in accordance with the

presentation of accounts in the 2009 financial statements.

SEGMENT FINANCIAL INFORMATION

(1) Financial information by industry: The Company operates in one industry. Therefore, the

disclosure of the industry financial information is not applicable to the Company.

(2) Financial information by geographic areas:

2009

Asia

Adjustments &

Taiwan Elimination

Total

Operating revenues
trom external
customers
Operating revenues
trom internal
scgments

Total operating
revenuc

Segment profits
General income
Investment loss
recognized

under the equity
method

General expenses
Interest expenses
Net income before
income tax of
continuing
operations

Identifiable assets

S11.831.379

$32.988.634 3 R

$44,820,013

424,183 1,158,936 (1.583,119) -

$12,255.562 $34.147.570 ($1.583.119) $44,820.013
$195,927 $458,682 $24.829 $679.438
552.091

9.239

(144,415)
(738.770)

$357,583
$15,880,691 $58,718,932 ($10,114,761) $64.484.862

-1l
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Operating revenues
from external
customers
Operating revenues
from internal
segments

Total operating
revenue

Segment profits
General income
Investment loss
recognized

under the equity
method

General expenses
Interest expenses
Net income before
income tax of
continuing
operations
Identifiable assets

(3) Export sales by geographic areas:

(4) Information on major customers:

2008
Adjustments &
Asia Taiwan Elimination Total
$17,323,319 $41,046,874 § - $58,370,193
1,246,797 895,257 (2,142,054) -
$18,570,116 $41.942,131 ($2,142,054) $58.370,193
$578.230 $1,722.029 $18,445 $2.318.704
615.205
(34,768)
(558.941)
(1,042,750)
$1,297,450
$18,427,819 $57,148,592 (3$10,480.618) $65.095,793
Area 2009 2008
America $4,042,005 $8.702,989
Asia 13,178,371 19.931.403
Europe 2,534,667 4,835,237
Others 3,494 430 2,944 014
Total $23,249,473 $36.413.643
2009
Client Name Amount %
Company A $5,088,440 11.35%
2008
Client Name Amount %
Company A $7,592,831 13.01%
— 12—
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Stock Code: 2023

Yieh Phui Enterprise Co., Ltd. and Its Subsidiaries

Consolidated Financial Statement and
Independent Auditor’s Report

2010 and 2009

Yieh Phui Enterprise Co., Ltd.

Address  : No0.369, Yuliao Rd.. Qiaotou Dist., Kaohsiung City
Telephone :(07)611-7181

HORWATH CHIEN HSING Certified Public
Accountants, A Member of Crowe Horwath

International
Address - 12F, No. 21, Linshen 2nd Road, Kaohsiung, Taiwan,
R.O.C.

Telephone :(07) 331-2133 (Representative line) '
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Yieh Phui Enterprise Co., Ltd.
Declaration

The enterprises to be included in the consolidated financial statements of affiliated
enterprises prepared by the Company for Year 2010 (From January 1, 2010 to December 31,
2010} in accordance with the “Standards Governing Preparation of Consolidated Business
Reports of Affiliated Enterprises, Consolidated Financial Statements of Affiliated Enterprises
and Affiliated Enterprise Reports™ are identical with those to be included in the consolidated
financial statements of the parent company and subsidiaries in accordance with the Statement
of Financial Accounting Standards No. 7. and relevant intormation to be disclosed in the
consolidated financial statements of affiliated enterprises has already been disclosed in the
consolidated tinancial statements of the parent company and subsidiarics. Therefore, the

Company does not prepare the consolidated financial statement of affiliated enterprises
separately.

Declared by

Name: Yieh Phui Enterprise Co., Ltd.
Responsible person: Lin Yi-Shou

April 6. 2011
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HQRWATH CHIEN HSING Certiﬁed }‘f:,;“,‘\:;h;':‘;:“;:{\‘"_n
Public Accountants, A Member of Crowe 5;%\;)“: o7 3312133
Crowe Horwath Horwath International (Representative ne1
Fax: (0713331710
Certified Public Accowntants

A member of Crowe Horwath Intemational

Yieh-Phui Enterprise Co., Ltd. and Its Subsidiaries
Independent Auditor's Report

To Yieh Phui Enterprise Co., Ltd.:

We have audited the consolidated balance sheet of Yieh Phui Enterprise Co., Ltd and its
subsidiaries as at Decemder 31, 2010 and 2009, and the consolidated statement of income,
consolidated statements of changes in shareholders’ equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the periods January 1 to December 31, 2010 and 2009. The preparation of the
above financial statements was the responsibility of the management of the company; our
duty as an auditor was to express an opinion based on our audit. Some long-term investments
accounted for using the equity method of Yieh Phui Enterprise Co.. Ltd and its subsidiaries
for FY 2010 and FY 2009 were not audited by us. Therefore. in our opinion on the tinancial
statements referred to above, long-term equity investments amounting to $442.164 thousand
and $480.698 thousand as of December 31, 2010 and 2009. respectively. and investment gain
(loss) amounting to $5.516 thousand and ($15.039) thousand recognized for FY 2010 and FY

2009, respectively. as well as relevant information disclosed in Note 43 were based on other
auditors” reports.

We have conducted our audits in accordance with the Rules Governing Auditing and
Certification of Financial Statements by Certitied Public Accountants and the Generally
Accepted Auditing Standards to obtain reasonable assurance of whether the financial
statements were free of misstatements. This audit also involved random verifications of
supporting evidence for the amounts and disclosures presented in the financial statements.
assessments of accounting principles and major accounting estimates used by the
management in their preparation of financial statements, and evaluations toward the overall
representation of the the financial statements. We believe that our audits and the reports of the
other auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, based on our audits and the reports of the other auditors, the financial
statements referred to in the first paragraph present fairly, in ail material respects. the
financial position of Yieh Phui Enterprise Co.. Ltd., and its subsidiaries as ot December 31,
2010 and 2009, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the years then
ended, in conformity with Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by
Securities Issuers, requirements of the Business Accounting Law and Guidelines Governing
Business Accounting relevant to financial accounting standards and accounting principles
generally accepted in the Republic of China.
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As described in Note 3 of the financial statements, Yieh Phui Enterprise Co., Ltd and its
subsidiarics had adopted the newly amended Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No.10 - “The Accounting for Inventory” since 1 January 2009. This change of the accounting

principle resulted in a decrease of $37,210 thousand in net income and a decline of $0.03 in
earnings per share for FY 2009.

HORWATH CHIEN HSING Certitied Public Accountants,
A Member of Crowe Horwath International

CPA: Huang Ling-Wen

CPA: Li Ching-Lin

6 April 2011
Approval document number: (91) Tai-Tsai-Cheng (6)
168354

Approval document number: (96) Chin-Guan-Cheng (6)
0960043735
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Code

4110
4199

4500
5000

5910
5920
5930

6300
6100
6200

6000

6900

nie
7120
n2
7130
7140
7310
7480

7100

7510
7520
7521
7530
7560
7630
7640
7650
7880

7500

7900

MY

9600

9601

9602

9750

The accompanyng notes are an integral part of the ¢
Chairman of Board- Lin Yi-Shou

NON-CONFIDENTIAL

Yieh-Hsing Enterpnse Co.. L.td. and Its Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Income

For the Periods | January to 31 December 2010 and

I January to 31 December 2009

item

Note

Unit: Thousand NTD

OPERATING REVENUE
Sales revenue
Less: Sales Retum & Allowances

NET SALES
COST OF SALES

GROSS PROFIT (LOSS)
Unreslized gain from inter-affiliate accounts
Realized gain from inter-affiliate accounts
OPERATING EXPENSES

R&D

Marketing

General and administrative

Toial operating expenses
INCOME FROM OPERATION
NON-OPERATING INCOME AND GAINS

Interest income
Investment gain

o

[

Invesiment income recogmzed under equity method 214
Gain trom disposal of property. plant & equipment

Gamn on disposal of investment

235
Gaw on valuation of financial assets 28
Miscellancous income Lk}

Total non-operatng mcome and gains
NON-OPERATING EXPENSES AND LLOSSES

Interest expense
ventory losses
Invesunent loss recognized under equity method 214
Loss from dispusal of property. plant & equpment
Foreign exchange loss 2
Impairment loss 34
L.oss on valuation of financial assets 25
Loss on vatuatian of financial habilities 25
Miscellaneous income 35

Total non-operating expenses and losses

INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX

The components of income tax expense thenefit) are as 2

follows

Consolidated total profit (loss)
Consolidated net profit {1oss)
Minority equity income

Basic eamings per sharc

Consolidated net profit (loss)

Net micome (loss) for minority interest
Consolidated total profit (loss)

-
<

-
73

lid

d financial

General Manager Wu Lin-Mao

NON-CONFIDENTIAL

2010 2009
Amount % Amount %
$63.380.367 100.30 $45.271.165 101.00
504,301 0.80 451,152 1.00
$62.876.366 100.00 $44.820.013 100.00
58.52549! 93.08 42035365 93.79
$4.350.875 6.92 $2.784.648 621
18972 0.03 10.965 0.03
0.02 8.057 0.02
0.06 49512 011
2n 1.390.104 3.09
106 662.686 1.48
$2417332 3385 §2.102.302 4.68
$1.925.536 306 $670.438 1.52
$26.778 0.04 $46.551 noe
163.845 026 2138 005
. . 9.239 002
260 - 16461 RS
ss 46.338 10
- - 343.690 077
131110 77913 017
0.51 $561.330 124
$797.118 1.27 $738.770 1.65
6.851 0.0] 2975 -
97.536 .15 . .
10432 0.02 3.296 001
156.185 025 30812 0.07
28.000 0.04 3.490 0.02
22141 0.36 - -
4.703 - -
335.120 0.54 98.342
$1.658.086 264 $883.185 1.97
$589.498 0.93 $357.583 0.79
123.686 019 155438 0.34
$465.812 0.74 $202.145 045
$309.971 049 $285.749 064
$155.841 02§ $-83.604 -0.19
After Income Tax After Income Tax
$0 20 S0 19
0.10 -0.06
$0.30 $0.13

(With Horwath Chien Hsing audit report dated April 6, 2011)

Head of Accounts: Chen Yung-Hsien
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NON-CONFIDENTIAL

Yieh-Hsing Enterprise Co,, Ltd. and Its Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

January 1, 2010 ~ December 31.
January 1. 2009 ~ December 31.

2010
2009

PUBLIC FILE /ST |

Unit: Thousand NTD

Item 2010 2009
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Consolidated total profit (loss) $463.812 $202.145
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by
operating activities:
Depreciation 1.863.692 1.759.828
Amortization 65.368 71.945
Bad debt provided (restated as income) -11.339 5886
DifT;rcncc bcrwcgn the pension costs amv‘l the amount of 15651 14.759
contribution provided for the current period
Inventory devaluation, impairment. and obsolescence losses 116.640 1232613
(or reversal gains)
Investment loss (income) recognized under equity method 97.536 -9.239
Cash dividends received from investees under equity method 1.800 -
Loss (ggin] from disposal and obsolescene of property. plant 10172 13,165
and equipment
Property, plant and equipment restated as expenses 3.330 941
Loss (gain) from disposal and obsolescene of idle assets - -159
Losses (gains) on disposal of other assets -3.494 -
Loss (gain) on disposal of investments -5§ -46.338
Unrczvll.izcd losses (gains) on evaluation of financial assets and 136.844 .343.690
liabilities
Impairment loss on financial assets 6.851 2,975
Impairment loss on non-financial assets 28.000 8,490
Realized profit (loss) from affiliated companics 18972 10.964
Unrealized profit (loss} from associated companies -10.965 -8.057
Other adjustments to shareholders’ equity 8.763 -16.010
Total adjustments §206.517
Net changes in working capital assets and liabilities
Net changes in working capital assets:
Decreasc (increase) in financial assets held for trading $255.370 $55.118
Decrease (increase) in notes receivable 11,107 -35.103
Decrease (increase) in notes receivable- related party -113.994 -
Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable -528.235 -668.592
Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable- reiated party 385412 -810.248
Decreasc (increase) in other receivable 214,714 225181
Increase (decrease) in other receivable- related party 33.175 -47.765
Pecreasc (increase) in inventories -1914.556 1.809.562
Decrease (increase) in prepayments -208.228 -1,438.093
Decrease (increase) in deferred income tax assets 120,088 188.756
Decreasc (increase) in other operating assets 3,600 4,777
Total net changes in working capital assets: $-2.168.975 $-976 322
Net charges in working capital habilities:
Increase (decrease) in notes payable $2.144.211 $-337,248
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable -16,221 164,522
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable- related party -243.069 115907
Increase (decrease) in income tax payable -15.859 -248.693
Increase (decrease) in accrued expense 90.434 104.679
Increase (decrease) in other payables 30,008 34,049
Increase (decrcase) in advance receipts 13,745 -141,045

(To be continued)
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ltem

Total net changes in working capital liabilities:
Total net changes in working capital assets and liabilities
Net cash provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Acquisition of financial assets designated at fair value through
profit or loss
Repayment of bond investments with no active market
Acquisition of financial assets carried at cost
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets carried at cost
Return of paid-in capital for capital reduction of financial assets
carried at cost
Increase in long term equity investments recognizad under the
equity method
Increase/decrease in prepaid long-term investments
Proceeds from disposal of noncurrent asscts in-available-for szle
Acquisition of property. plant & equipment
Proceeds from fixed asset disposal
Proceeds from the disposal of leased and idle assets
Increase/decrease in deposits paid
Increase in deferved expenses
Increase/decrease in restricted assets
Purchase of intangible assets
Increase/decrease in accounts receivable
Increase/decrease in other assets

Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Increase/decrease in short-term loan
Increase/decrease in short-term bills payable
Long-term loan
Repayment of long-term loans
Increase/decrease in deposits received
Increase/decrease in lease payable
Distribution of cash dividends
Changes in minority equity

Net cash provided by (used in} tinancing activities
Exchange rate ctfects
thv increase/decrease in cash and cash equivalents for the current
%:IE:NCE OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS.
BEGINNING OF YEAR

BALANCE OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS. END OF
YEAR

SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Interest paid
Less: capitalized interest

Interest paid (excluding capitalized interest)

Income tax payable

Pus

2010 2009
(Brought Forward)
$2.003.246 $-375927
$-165.729 $-1.352.250
$2,740.049 $-943,588
$- $-280.000
6.000 2,000
-10.000 -3.226
- 10.593
9.029 32,901
-19.000 -333.936
25668 -
9.675 -
-491.34 -811.824
1473 21.766
10.201 14.285
42,204 -24374
-77.394 -80.169
-37443 480.998
.50 .
128,412 12,600
-15823 -22.657
90 $-981.043
$-2.985.085 $-335.683
71,657 -896.664
8.555,700 9.531.214
6,452,020 -8.695.951
2,025 727
-383 -1.740
-436.266 -282372
-1.000 507
$-1.388.386 $-680.976
$194.995 $174.931
$1.127.768 $-2.430.676
3.549.873 5.980.549
$4.677.641 $3.549.873
$818.498 $895,580
-26.559 -135.564
$791,939 $760.016
319,489

$215,837

(To be continued)
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Item 2010 2009
{Brought Forward)
NONCASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
long-term liabilities- current portion $3.775.888

Capital increase through recapitalization of earnings
Property. plant & equipment restated as inventories
Non-current assets held for sale transferred fiom fixed assets
Leased assets transferred to property, plant & equipment
Idle assets transferred from leased assets
Other assets transferred to property, plant & equipment
Inventories restated as property. plant & equipment
Cumulative translation adjustments

Cash and noncash investing activities:
Increasc in fixed assets
Increase/decrease in payables for purchase of equipment
Fixed asset purchases paid in cash

Proceeds from the sale of fixed assets
Increasc/decrcase in other receivables — sale of fixed assets

Cash collected from the sale of fixed assets

Claim payment receivable transferred from impairment loss on
fixed assets

Cash collected from reccivables and the recovery of financial assets

Recall of financial assets carried at cost — noncurrent
Increase/decrease in other receivables

Receipt of cash

Receipt of cash dividends from long-term investment under the
equity method:

Cash dividends from investments accounted for using the equity

method
Increase/decreasc in other receivables

Receipt of cash

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements (With Horwath Chien Hsing audit report

$311.549
5 $20.086
$36.106 $8.782,
$-579.810 $-98.144
$500.050 $301.764
-8.706 10.060
$491.344 $811.824
$1.475 $114.897
-93.131
$1.475 $21.766
$234.716 $-
$- $38.781
- 5.880
$- $32.901
$1.800 $33.300
- -33.300
$1.800 5

dated April 6. 2011)

Chairman of Board: Lin Yi-Shou

General Manager: Wu Lin-Mao

NON-CONFIDENTIAL

Head of Accounts: Chen Yung-Hsien
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Yieh Phui Enterprise Co., Ltd. and Its Subsidiaries
Notes to consolidated financial statements

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

(Amounts in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Unless Specitied Otherwise)

1. The names of subordinate companies, a description of their relationship with the

controlling company, the nature of their business, and the controlling company's .
shareholding in each i

(1) Investment relationship and shareholdings between the Company and its subsidiaries at
the end of 2010: Please refer to Table 10 on P.94.

(2) Nature of the business between the Company and cach of its subsidiaries:

A. Yieh Phui Enterprise Co., Lid. (hereinafter referred to as the “Company™)

a.  Yieh Phui Enterprise Co., Ltd. (the “Company” hencetorth) was incorporated
on April 14, 1978. The Company’s shares are currently traded on the Taiwan
Stock Exchange. The Company engages in the processing, marketing and
import/export of rolled steel coils, refined steel, molded steel, steel and iron !
wires, galvanized, pre-painted, and surface treated metal.

b. The Company’s board of directors resolved on May 23, 2005 to merge with !
Lien Kang Heavy Industrial Co., Ltd, with the Company as the surviving
company. The base date of the merger was set on August 30, 2005. Every 2.5
common shares in Licn Kang Heavy Industrial Co., Ltd. were convertible into
1 common share in the Company. The Company issued an additional 4,859
thousand common shares for this merger. Rights and obligations of holders of
the newly issued shares were the same as those of the Company's existing
shareholders.

c. Lien Kang Heavy Industrial Co., L.td. was incorporated on November 23, 1989.
Its main activities include the manufacturing, processing and trading of the
various mechanical spare parts and pipe installation, manufacturing and
engineering design.

NON-CONFIDENTIAL
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Subsidiaries included into the consolidated financial statements (hereinafter referved to as the
“Subsidiaries™)

Shareholding or Capital
Contribution Ratio

Name of [nvestor Name of Subsidiary Main Activities 2?6;(;?8‘” D}elcezn(;g;r
The Company Top Point Investment Steel products trading and 100.00% 100.00%
Properties Limited related businesses
The Company Mickey Regent Inc. Investment company 100.00% 100.00%
The Company Good Honor Holdings Investment company 100.00% 100.00%
Lid.
The Company Best Perfect Holding Steel products trading and 100.00% 100.00%
Limited related businesses
The Company Excellent Rewards Investment company 100.00% 100.00%
Intemational Co., Ltd.
The Company yieh Phui (Hong Kong) Investment company 100.00% (Note) -
Holding Limited
The Company Yieh Hsing Enterprise Wire ords trading, rolled 54.82% 54.82%
Co.. Ltd. steel processing
The Company Shin Phui Steel Electronic materials trading 100.00% 100.00%
Corporation
The Company Worthing Honor Holdings Investment company 100.00% 100.00%
Liud.
The Company and Gen-Wan Technology Telecommunications 86.99% 86.99%
WORTHING HONOR Corp contracts
HOLDINGS LTD.
The Company and EMMT Systems Corp. Manufacturing and 93.86% 91.06%
Gen-Wan Technology marketing of military
Corp specification printed circuit
boards
YI1EH PHUI(HONG Yieh Phui (China) Manufacturing and 100.00% (Note) -
KONG) HOLDING Technomaterial Co., Lid.  marketing of pickled. cold
LIMITED rolled, galvanized and
pre-painted steel coils.
Mickey Regent Inc. Yieh Phui (China) Manufacturing and - (Note) 100.00%
Technomatenal Co., L.td.  marketing of pickled, cold
rolied. galvanized and
pre-painted steel coils.
Excellent Rewards Changshu Chief Leading  Stee! structure design and 100.00% 100.00%
Intemational Co.. Ltd.  Edge Construction manufacturing
Matertals Company
Excetlent Rewards JiangsuJ & Y Steel Structure. Electrical 100.00% 100.00%
Intemational Co.. Ltd. Engineering Co., Ltd. Engineering (Manufacturing
& Installation)
EMMT Systems Corp. Applied Wireless RFID 74.68% 72.94%
Identifications Group, Inc.
Applied Wireless AWID Asia Co., Ltd. Telecommunications 100.00% 100.00%
Identifications Group, equipment retailing
Inc.
EMMT Systems Corp. Groupco Technology Inc.  Wholesale and retail of 92.50% 92.50%
and Shin Phui Steel telecom equipment and
Corporation electronic materials

(Note) In the current period, the Company’s Board of Directors resolved the revision of the
investiment structure of the Company’s indirect investment in Yich Phui (China)
Technomaterial Co., Ltd., through Yich Phui (Hong Kong) Holding Limited instead of
MICKEY REGENT INC. YIEH PHUI (CHINA) TECHNOMATERIAL CO., LTD.

NON-CONFIDENTIAL
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(3) Increase/decrease in consolidated subsidiaries: The Company newly set up 100% owned
Yieh Phui (Hong Kong) Holding Limited in October 2010. Therefore, the Company can
exercise control over it. !

(4) Subsidiaries not included into the consolidated financial statements: None.

(5) As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries had
3,186 and 3,106 employees, respectively.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
Guidelines Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers, Business
Accounting Law, Guidelines Governing Business Accounting and accounting principles

generally accepted in the Republic of China (“ROC™). Summaries of significant accounting
policies are as follows:

(1) Consolidated matters
A. Principles for preparation of consolidated financial statements

As stated in Note 1, the Company would include investees with controlling interest '
into the consolidated financial statements.In the process of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements, the important transactions and balance thereof
between parent company and subsidiaries would be netted off.

B. Subsidiaries’ foreign currency financial statement transfation basis

The tinancial statements of overseas subsidiaries denominated in toreign currency
were translated into those in NTD in the following manners: the exchange rate prevailing
on the balance sheet date, in the case of assets and liabilities; the historical exchange rate,
in the case of shareholders’ equity; the average exchange rate prevailing in then year, in
the case of income titles.The exchange differcnce generated from translation of
subsidiaries’ financial statements demonated in foreign currency was stated as the
cumulative translation adjustment and under the shareholders’ equity title independently.

(2) Construction contracts

Construction contracts are stated at cost on an individual contract basis. Where the
contract period is in excess of 12 months and provided that the contract price.
construction costs and the progress can be reasonably estimated, the Company calculates
the profit or loss on the construction contracts using the percentage-of-completion
method.Construction costs are recorded as “construction in progress” when incurred and
construction revenue received in advance are recorded as “partial construction billing”.
At the end of each fiscal period, the Company calculates the cumulative construction
profit or losses under the percentage-of-completion method for the current period and
account for the amount as construction profit or loss for the current period after
deducting the cumulative gains or losses recognized in the previous period. The amount
of cumulative construction profit recognized in the previous period in excess of the
cumulative construction profit recognized in the current period shall be charged to the
current income statement. Any subsequent reduction in the loss recognized shall be
reversed and recognized as construction profit in current income.

(3) Classification of Current and Non-current Assets and Liabilities
A. Rolled Steel (Product) Department:

NON-CONFIDENTIAL
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Current assets are those assets to be realized or consumed within one year from
the balance sheet date; otherwise, they are classified as non-current assets.
Liabilities expected to be paid within 12 months from the balance sheet date are

classified as current liabilities: otherwise they are classified as non-current
liabilities.

B. Heavy Industry Department:

The business cycle of the majority of our construction contracts is 12 months.
Assets and liabilities related to the construction contracts are classified as current or
non-current assets and liabilities according to the business cycle.

(4) Cash Equivalents

Government bonds, negotiable certificate of deposits, commercial papers, bank
acceptance and bonds with resell agreement acquired with maturities of less than three

months from the date of purchase are classified as cash equivalents. The carrying amount
approximates fair value.

(5) Financial Instruments at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss

Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss refer to financial assets or
liabilities held for trading purposes or those designated to be initially recognized .at fair
value with subsequent changes in fair value recognized in current income. These
financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value and related transaction costs
are expensed currently. When subsequently measured at fair value, the changes in tair
value are recognized in current income. Cash dividends received after the date of
investment are recognized in current income. All regular way purchases or sales of

- financial assets are recognized and derecognized on a trade date basis.

Derivatives that do not meet the criteria for hedge accounting are initially
recognized as financial assets or liabilitics for trading purposes. When the fair value is
positive, the derivative is recognized as a financial asset; when the fair value is negative,
the derivative is recognized as a tinancial liability.

Fair value is based on the closing price of listed (OTC) securities, net asset value of
open-end funds or reference price of bonds published by the Gretai Securities Market on
the balance sheet date. Fair values of financial instruments with no active market are
estimated using valuation techniques.

Financial assets or liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss are
hybrid tinancial instruments. Financial instruments are designated as financial assets at
tair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition to remove significant accounting
inconsistency. Portfolios of asscts and liabilities jointly managed in accordance with the
Company’s risk management policies and specitic investment strategies were also
designated at fair value.

(6) Bond investments with no active market

Bond investments with fixed or determinable payments and with no quoted prices in
active market are carried at cost less amortization. Gains or losses on bond investments
are recognized upon disposal, decline in value or amortization. All regular way

purchases or sales of financial assets are recognized and derecognized on a trade date
basis.

NON-CONFIDENTIAL
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If there is objective evidence, which indicates that a financial asset is impaired, a
loss is recognized. If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease is clearly attributable to an event, which occurred after the
impairment loss was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is reversed
to the extent of the decrease. The reversal may not result in a carrying amount that

exceeds the amortized cost that would have been determined as if no impairment loss had
been recognized.

Allowance for doubtful accounts

An Allowance for doubtful accounts is provided based on a review of the
collectibility of notes and accounts receivable and nonpertforming loans as at the balance
sheet dates. The Company determines the amount of the Allowance for doubtful
accounts by examining the aging analysis and collectibility of outstanding notes and
accounts receivable.

Inventories
A. Rolled Steel (Product) Departinent:

Inventory includes raw materials, commodities, work-in-progress, and finished
goods. Prior to January 1 2009, inventory was valued at the lower of cost or market value
where costs and market values were compared on an aggregate basis. The market values
of raw matenials and commodities were determined based on their replacement costs,
while the market values of work-in-progress and finished goods were determined based
on their net realizable value. As described in Note 3, from January 1 2009 onwards
inventory was valued at the lower of cost or net realizable value where the costs and net
realizable values were compared within each stock category. The net realizable value is
defined as the estimated selling price less any additional costs and marketing expenses
until completion under normal circumstances. The cost of inventory was calculated using
the weighted-average method.

B. Heavy Industry Department:
Construction contracts are treated in accordance with accounting principles (2).
Long-term stock investment recognized under the equity method

Investments in which the Company holds 20 percent or more of the investees’
voting shares or exercises significant influence over the investees’ operating and
financial decisions are accounted for by the equity method.

Prior to January 1, 2006, the difference between the acquisition cost and the
Company’s proporticnate share in the investee’s equity was amortized by the
straight-line method over S years. Etfective January 1, 2006, pursuant to the revised
Statement of Financial Accounting Standard (“SFAS”) No. 5, “Long-term Investments
Accounted for by the Equity Method”, the acquisition cost is allocated to the assets
acquired and liabilities assumed bascd on their fair values at the date of acquisition, and
the excess of the acquisition cost over the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired
is recognized as goodwill. Goodwill is not being amortized but instead, goodwill is
subject to the impairment test on a ycarly basis or in a specitic event or where changes in
the environment indicate a likely impairment of goodwill. The excess of the fair value of
the net identifiable assets acquired over the acquisition cost is used to reduce the fair
value of each of the non-current assets acquired (except for financial assets other than

NON-CONFIDENTIAL
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investments accounted for by the equity method, assets to be disposed of, deferred
income tax assets, prepaid pension or other postretirement benefit) in proportion to the
respective fair values of the non-current assets, with any excess recognized as an
extraordinary gain. Effective January 1, 2006, the accounting treatment for the
unamortized investment premium arising on acquisitions before January 1, 2006 is the
same as that for goodwill and the premium is no longer being amortized. For any
investment discount (deferred credits portion) arising on acquisitions before January 1,
2006, the unamortized amount continues to be amortized over the remaining
year.Investment loss on the non-controlled entities over which the Company has the
ability to exercise significant influence is recognized to the extent that the amount of
long-term investments in such investees is written down to zero. However, if the
Company continues to provide endorsements, guarantees or financial support for such
investees, or that the investment loss is temporary, the investment loss is recognized
continuously in proportion to the Company's equity interest in such investees. If
recognition of the investment loss results in a credit balance of the investment carrying

amount, the amount is off against accounts receivable from the investee or included as
Other liabilities— other.

When the Company subscribes for its investee’s newly issued shares at a percentage
different from its percentage of ownership in the investee, the Company records the
change in its equity in the investee’s net assets as an adjustment to investments, with a
corresponding amount credited or debited to capital surplus. When the adjustment should
be debited to capital surplus. but the capital surplus arising from long-term investments is
insufficient, the shortage is debited to retained earnings. Mutual ownership of shares
between the Company and investees are recognized using treasury stock accounting.
Investment gain or loss on subsidiaries attributed to mutual shareholding between
subsidiaries is accounted for under the regular way method.

An impairment loss is recognized when there is objective evidence that the asset is
impaired on the balance sheet date. The carrying amount of non-controlled investee over
which the Company exercises significant influence was evaluated on an individual basis.

The number of stock dividend received is added to existing shareholding and will
not increase the carrying amount of the investment or be recognized as investment
income. The cost per share is re-computed using the new total number of shares. Cost and
gains or losses on disposal of shares are computed using the weighted average method
upon disposal or transter.

It an investee’s functional currency is a foreign currency, differences will result
from the translation of the investee’s financial statements into the reporting currency of
the Company. Such differences are charged or credited to cumulative translation
adjustments, a separate component of shareholders’ equity.

Gains or losses on sales from the Company to equity-method investees are deterred
in proportion to the Company's ownership percentages in the investees until such gains
or losses are realized through transactions with third parties. Gains or losses arising from
depreciable or amortizable assets arc recognized over the economic lives.

Financial assets carried at cost

Investments in equity instruments with no quoted prices in active market and with
fair value that cannot be rehably measured, such as non-publicly traded stocks and
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emerging stocks are measured at their original cost. Stock dividends are not recognized
as investment income but are recorded as an increase in the number of shares. The total
number of shares subsequent to the increase is used for recalculation of cost per share.
An impairment loss is recognized when there is objective evidence that the asset is
impaired. A reversal of this impairment loss is not allowed.

(11) Property, Plant and Equipment, Leased Assets and Idle Assets:

Property, plant and equipment, except land, are stated at cost or cost plus
revaluation increment, less accumulated depreciation. Borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition or construction of property, plant and equipment arc
capitalized as part of the cost of those assets. Major additions, renewals and

improvements are capitalized, while costs of maintenance and repairs are expensed
currently.

Depreciation is calculated by the straight-line method over service lives. Property,
plant and equipment still in use beyond their original estimated useful lives are further
depreciated over their newly estimated useful lives. The service lives of major property,

plant and equipment are 8 to 35 years: machinery equipment, 3 to 33 years; and other
cquipment 2 to 20 years.

Upon sale or obsolescence of property, plant and equipment, the related cost and
accumulated depreciation are written off from the corresponding accounts, with any gain
or loss recorded as non-operating gains or losses in the year of sale or obsolescene.

Upon lease of property, plant and equipment, the related cost and accumulated
depreciation are restated as property. plant and equipment — leased assets at the lower of

the net realizable value or carrying amount. Depreciation is calculated by the
straight-line method over service lives.

When property, plant and equipment are detenmined to be idle or useless, they are
transferred to “Other assets- idle assets™ at the lower of the net realizable value or
carrying amount.

(12} Other intangible assets
The rights to use land, amortized under the straight-line method over 50 years as
approved.
(13) Deterred charges
Refers to contribution in aid of construction cost, arrangement fee for syndicated
loans, telephone installation fee, which are amortized averagely over 3~10 years.
(14) Pension Fund

A. Yieh Phui Enterprise Co., Ltd., Yieh Hsing Enterpnse Co., Ltd. and EMMT
Systems Corporation:

The companies accounted for employees™ pension in accordance with SFAS
No. 18 “Accounting for Pension Plans” and recognized net pension costs and
accrued pension liabilities in accordance with the standards.

The Labor Pension Act came into eftect on July 1, 2005. The new system
adopts the defined benefit concept. Employecs have the option of continuing under
the “l.abor Standards Law” (the old system), or switching over to the new system
and retain their years of service accounted for under the existing system. For
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employees covered under the new system, the Company shall make a monthly
contribution equivalent to no less than 6% of the employees’ monthly salaries.

B.  Shin Phui Steel Corporation:

Its workers were dispatched by its parent company. The Company only paid
the salaries, while the other personnet expenses were paid by the parent company.
Therefore, no employees” pension rules are defined by it.

C. Gen-Wan Technology Corp.:

Al of its employees have been laid off in consideration of the operation in June
2005. Therefore, there are no employees’ pension rules available.

D. Groupco Technology Inc. and AWID Asia Co., [.td.:

For employees covered under the new system, the employer shall make a
monthly contribution equivalent to no less than 6% of the employees'monthly
salaries pursuant to the Labor Pension Act.

Contributions made under a defined contribution plan are recognized as the
expenses during the year in which employees render services.

E. The overseas subsidiaries, including TOP POINT INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
LIMITED, BEST PERFECT HOLDING LIMITED, GOODHONOR HOLDINGS
LTD., WORTHING HONOR HOLDINGS LTD, EXCELLENT REWARDS
INTERNATIONAL CO., LTD., YIEH PHUI (HONG KONG) HOLDING
LIMITED, MICKEY REGENT INC. and APPLIED WIRELESS
IDENTIFICATIONS GROUP, INC., did not define the employees' pension rules,
and the local government laws and regulations also did not provide any compulsory
requirements about the employees’ pension rules.

F. Yieh Phui (China) Technomaterial Co., Ltd., Chanshu Chief Leading Edge
Construction Matenals Company and Jiangsu J & Y Engineering Co., Ltd. did not
define the employees™ pension rules, but paid the employees’ pension premium
perodically pursuant to the local government laws and regulations.

(13) Deferred Credits (Debits)-Profits (Losses) From Affiliates

Related to sale of merchandise and assets to subsidiaries or elimination of
unrealized internal gain by equity-method investees in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. The accounting treatments are carfied out in accordance
with SFAS No. 5 “Long-term Investments Accounted for Using the Equity Method”.
The long term stock investiments accounted using the equity method and the unrealized
gains/losses of investees for the current period were nctted off until the year in which
such gains or losses are realized. Where the investor has no contro! but only exercises
stgnificant influence over the investee company, any unrealized gains or losses arising
from downstream trausactions between the investor and investee shall be eliminatcd in
proportion of the investor’s ownership percentages in the investees.

(16) Classification of Capital and Income Expenditures

Significant recurring expenses were capitalized as assets, while others were
expensed or charged to current income.

(17) Revenue Recognition
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A, Sales revenue

Revenue shall be recognized in the process of gaining profits and recognized as
realized or to be realized. Any sale not in satisfaction of the aforementioned criteria
are recognized as revenue upon satisfaction of the criteria.

Revenues are measured at fair value, the price (net of trade discounts and sales
discounts) agreed to by the Company and customers. But if the related receivable is
due within one year, the difference between its present value and receivable amount
is immaterial, and sales transactions are frequent, the fair valuc of receivables is
equivalent to the nominal amount of cash to be received.

B. Construction revenue:

In accordance with the Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 11,
when the profit or loss on a construction contract can be reasonably estimated and
the construction period is more than | year, the construction profit or loss is
recognized by using the percentage-of-completion method. When the construction

period is less than | year, the profit or loss is recognized by using the completed
contract method.

(18) Bonus to Employees and Remuneration to Directors and Supervisors

Starting January 1, 2008 (incl.), the Company adopted Interpretation 96-052,
“Accounting for Bonuses to Employees, Directors and Supervisors™ issued by the ARDF
and makes an accrual for the amount of directors and supervisors’ remuneration for
inclusion in the accounts as either “costs of operation” or “operating expenses” according
to the nature of the remuneration. Any variance between the accrued or actual
remuneration amounts adopted in sharcholders’ meeting is treated as changes in
accounting accruals and charged or credited to current income.

(19) Foreign-currency Transactions

The Company’s transactions are recorded in New Taiwan Dollars. Foreign currency
transactions of non-forward foreign exchange contracts are translated into New Taiwan
Dollars at the exchange rates prevailing on transaction dates. Balance sheet date balances
of assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the balance
sheet date exchange rates. Realized and unrealized foreign exchange gains or losses
caused by actual settlement and the translation of assets and liabilities denominated in
forcign currencies are credited to or charged against current income.

(20) TREASURY STOCK

Treasury stock is stated at cost and shown as a deduction in shareholders’ equity
when the Company requires its issued shares. The Company’s stock held by its
subsidiaries is treated as treasury stock. When treasury stocks are transterred, the gains
resulted trom disposal of the treasury stock held by subsidiaries and cash dividends
received by subsidiaries from the Company are recorded under capital surplus - treasury
stock transactions. 1f the disposal price is lower than book value, the difference should
first be offset against capital surptus from the same class of treasury stock transactions.
and the remainder, if any, should be debited to unappropriated retained earnings. The
book value of treasury stocks is calculated separately according to the class of treasury
transaction using the weighted average method.
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When the Company retires treasury stock, the treasury stock account is reduced and
the common stock as well as the capital surplus - additional paid-in capital are reversed
on a pro rata basis. When the book value of the treasury stock exceeds the sum of the par
value and additional paid-in capital, the difference is charged to capital surplus — weasury
stock transactions and to retained earnings for any remaining amount. When the book
value is lower than the sum of the par value and additional paid-in capital, the difterence
is credited to capital surplus arising from the same class of treasury transaction.

(21) Income Tax

The Company applies intra-period and inter-period allocations for its income tax in
accordance with SFAS No.22 “Accounting for Income Tax”, whereby tax effects of
taxable temporary differences are recognized as deferred tax liabilities and tax effects of
deductible temporary differences, carry-forward loss and income tax deductions are
recognized as deferred income tax assets. Valuation allowances are provided to the
extent, if any, that it is more likely than not that deferred income tax assets will not be
realized. A deferred tax asset or liability is classified as current or non-current in
accordance with the classification of its related asset or liability or the expected length of
time before it is realized or settled.

Excesses and shortages of income tax paid in previous years are prescnted as
adjustments to income tax expenses for the current year.

An additional 10% surtax on undistributed carnings is recorded as income tax
expense in the year when the sharcholders® meeting resolves to retain the earnings.

Income tax credits are accounted for in accordance with SFAS No. 12 Accounting
for Income Tax Credits™. Any tax credits arising from purchases of machinery,
equipment and technology, research and development expenditures, personnel training

expenditures, and investments in important technology-based enterprises are recognized
when granted.

The “Income Basic Tax Regulations” came into effect on January 1, 2006. The
basic tax is computed on taxable income under the Income Tax Act plus allowable tax
deductions under the Income Tax Act and other relevant laws, muitiplied by the statutory
tax rate of 10% stipulated by the Executive Yuan. The higher of the basic tax amount and
taxable income per the Income Tax Act equals the income tax payable for the current
fiscal year. The Company has incorporated the effects of the Income Basic Tax
Regulations in the current income tax return.

In the event of changes to income tax laws, deferred income tax assets and liabilities
are recalculated using the new standards in the year of announcement; differences arising
trom tax law adjustments are recognized as income tax expenses for the current period.

(22) Minority equity
[t means the equity of subsidiaries held by any investor other than the affiliates.
(23) Impairment of Assets

When a change in the environment or a specific event occurs indicating that the
recoverable amount of an assct is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
Company is required to recognize loss on impairment of assets. The recoverable value is
the higher of net fair value and useful value of an asset. The useful value of an asset refers
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to the present value of cash flows expected to be generated over the service life of the
asset.

If an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is
increased accordingly, but the increased carrying amount may not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognized for the
asset in prior years. Impairment loss on goodwill recognized cannot be reversed.

3. REASONS AND EFFECTS OF ACCOUNTING CHANGE

Effective January 1, 2009. the consolidated company adopted revised Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 10 “The Accounting for Inventory”. Some of the
major amendments included:

A. A, Inventory is valued at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Only inventories of
the same category are compared.

B. Unamortized fixed manufacturing costs are recognized as cost of goods sold in the period
incurred.

C. Extraordinary manufacturing costs and inventory obsolescence losses (or the write back
which) should be recognized as cost of goods sold.

This change of the accounting principle resulted in a decrease ot $37.210 thousand in net
income and a decline ot $0.03 in earnings per share for FY 2009.

To more appropriately present product-related costs, The Company has included the
costs of inventories sold. the unallocated fixed manufacturing costs, the extraordinary
manufacturing costs, and inventory obsolescence losses (or the write back of which) etc. as
costs ot goods sold.

Cash & cash equivalents

Item December 31, 2010 December 31, 2009

Petty cash $2,556 $2.574
Checking accounts 820,115 465,499
Demand deposits 1.551.347 2,545,670
Foreign currency 2.210,134 234.130
deposits

Time deposits 93,489 302,000
Total $4.677,641 $3.549,873

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
Item December 31, 2010 December 31, 2009

Financial assets held for trading purposcs - current
Shares traded on the Taiwan Stock Exchange or

OTC exchange $686,959 $910,524
Beneficiary certificates of funds 86,185 64,768
Corporate bonds 5871 16,844
Subordinated bank debenture 10,000 9,996
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Item December 31,2010  December 31, 2009

Financial assets designated at fair vatue through
profit or loss -current

Investment-linked life insurance 6,277 6,906
Total $795,292 $1,009,038

Financial assets designated at fair value through
profit or loss ~non-current

Structured investments $ - $279,243
Total $ - $279,243
Financial liabilities held for trading purposes -

non-current

Interest rate swap contract $4,483 $ -
Total $4,483 3 -

() As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, the structured instruments were held by the
consolidated company for receiving interest income. The relevant details and risk
information are disclosed as follows:

Item December 31,2010  December 31, 2009

Farglory Life Principal Guaranteed

2
Investment-linked Life Insurance- current 36,277 $6.506
NTI)-denommated credit-linked structured - 279,243
investment-Non-current
Total $6,277 $286,149

A.  Structured instruments held by the consolidated company for FY 2010 and FY 2009
were principal protected investment-linked insurance and principal protected
structured notes, which were hybrid structure notes. Therefore, the consolidated
company designated such instruments as financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss — current in accordance with applicable regulations.

The above structured notes were linked to SGAM’s 10-Year guarantced income
bonds and portfolios of several designated stocks.

B. For the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, details for unexpired term of
credit-linked structured instruments denominated in New Taiwan Dollars ot the
consolidated company are summarized as follows:

End of 2010: None (early redemption through indirect advice by TC Bank in

December 2010).
2009
Counterparty and product Contracted nominal
category principal Interest rate Contracted period
Ta Chong Bank- 280,000 0.921% 2009. 3.18
NTD-denominated 2011.3.18

credit-linked
Structured investments
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The relevant investment instructions are disclosed below:

a. Credit references include:

(a) Yieh-Hsing Enterprise Co., Ltd or its successor.

(b) China Steel Corporation or its successor.

(¢) China Telecomn Corporation Limited or its successor.

(d) Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited or its successor.

b. The major risks involved are listed below:

(a) Credit risk: should a credit event occur to any of the credit references above,
Ta Chong Bank shall notify the Company of the credit event occurrence.
The date of notification of the credit event shall be the termination date, and
effectively trom the termination date, the Company’s investment principals
and accrued gains are lost entirely. Ta Chong Bank is not obligated to any
settlements or payments, and the Company is not entitled to make any claims
against Ta Chong Bank related to the investment.

(b) Liquidity risk: from the product issuance date (inclusive) to the maturity date,
the contract may not be terminated for any reason. The occurrence of a credit
event shall render the entire investment principals lost. However, Ta Chong
Bank has the right (but not the obligation) to terminate this deal early, in
whole or in part, on any business day during the product's duration (except
the maturity date).

(c) Risk of changes in transaction terms: in the event that market volatility
results in a change in terms or renders the deal untransactable, Ta Chong
Bank reserves the right to alter the transaction terms and the right to enter or
exit the transaction. The actual transaction terms and prices shall be based on
the deal confirmation drafled and issued by Ta Chong Bank.

(d) Risk of uncertain income: if a credit event or a potential credit event occurs
during the span of the investment, the Company may only recover low or 0
value from its investment.

(e) The maximum loss of this investment product: in the event of a credit event
or a potential credit event occurrence, all investment principals will be lost.

(2) The financial derivatives managed by the subsidiary, MICKEY REGENT INC., refer to
the interest rate swaps which are intended to evade the risk from the interest rate
fluctuation of the interest-bearing liabilities and summarized as following:

December 31, 2010:
Unit: Thousand NTD

Nominal Principal Duration Interest Rate
) Range
USD 1,000 2010. 1.26-2012. 1.26 Note 1
USD 1,000 2010. 1.26-2013. 1.26 Note 2
USD 6,000 2010. 6.29-2012. 6.29 Note 3

Note |: Pay the interest expenses at the fixed rate, 1.295%, for three months, and
collect the interest revenue at LIBOR interest rate tor three months.

Note 2; Pay the interest expenses at the fixed rate, 1.99%, for three months, and
collect the interest revenue at LIBOR interest rate for three months.
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Note 3: Pay the interest expenses at the fixed rate, 1.90%, for three months, and
collect the interest revenue at LIBOR interest rate for three months.
December 31, 2009: None

For the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, the consolidated company's net gain
(loss) from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss amounted to ($219,497)
thousand and $362,917 thousand, respectively; and net gain (loss) from financial

liabilities at fair value through profit or loss amounted to ($6.636) thousand and ($847)
thousand, respectively.

6. Bond investments with no active market

Item December 31,2010  December 31, 2009

Bond investments— current

Bowa Bank subordinated bank debenture $5,000 $5.000

Chinfon Bank subordinated bank debenture - 2,000

Total $5,000 $7.000

Less: Accumulated impairment (5,000) (5,000)

Net $ - $2,000
Bond investments- non-current

Chinfon Bank subordinated bank debenture $ - $4,000

Total $ - $4,000

(1) On December 28, 2005, the Company acquired the 5.5-Year subordinated bank

)

debenture issued by Bowa Bank at the face value of NT$ 5,000 thousand and a matunty
date of June 28, 2011. Bowa Bank was currently under the management of the Financial
Restructuring Fund of the Executive Yuan. As such, the Company has recognized
impairment losses equaling to the full amount of investment in Quarter 2, 2007.

On June 28, 1995, the Company purchased a 7-year subordinated financial bond of
Chinfon Bank at face value of $10,000 thousand, which expires on June 28, 2012. The

bond was early redeemed in February 2010. As of December 31, 2009, the interest rate
was 2.975%.

7. Notes receivable- Net

Item December 31,2010  December 31, 2009

Notes receivable — general $204.855 $215,962
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts— general (129) (380)
Notes receivable — general, net $204,726 $215,582
Notes receivable - related party $114,138 $144
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts - related

(571 -
party
Notes reccivable- related parties, net $113,567 $144
Notes receivable- Net $318,293 $215,726
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(1) Please refer to Note 39 for details of notes receivable from related parties.

(2) Until December 31, 2010 and 2009, notes receivable totaling NT$ 5,533 thousand and
NT$ 0 thousand were provided to financial institutions as collateral for loans. Piease refer
to Note 40 for details of the Company’s pledged assets.

8. Accounts receivable- Net

Item

December 31.2010

December 31, 2009

Accounts receivable — general

Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts—~ general
Accounts receivable —general, net

Accounts receivable - related party

Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts - related

party

Accounts receivable - related party. net
Accounts receivable- Net

$2.990,261 $2,465.065
(45,959) (57,999)
$2.,944,302 $2,407,066
$1,086.172 $1,471.584
(5,753) (6.959)
$1,080,419 $1,464,625
$4,024,721 $3,871,691

(1) Please refer to Note 39 for details of accounts receivable from related parties.

(2) Until December 31, 2010 and 2009, accounts receivable totaling NT$ 3.000 thousand
and NT$ 153.435 thousand were provided to financial institutions as collateral for loans.
Please refer to Note 40 tor details of the Company’s pledged assets.

9. Other receivable

Item December 31,2010  December 31, 2009
Purghase discount $59.195 $17,260
receivable
Sa]c§ tax refund 216,097 195,574
receivable
Proceeds receivable
trom sale of tunds and 15,534 5,880
stocks
Clanm payment 385,340 )
receivable
Interest receivable 420 898
Others 9,542 7,432
Total $686,128 $227.044
Less: Allowance for

2 2
doubttul accounts (3.826) (3.826)
Net $682,302 $223218

Claim payment receivable is the claim payment for loss caused by floods estimated
in the current period. Please refer to Note 42 for details.
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Item December 31,2010  December 31, 2009
Purchase return $11,306 $46.309
receivable
Proceeds receivable A 93,132
from sale of assets
Cash dividends 33.300 62,700
receivable
Others 3,500 3,172
Total $48,106 $205,813

11. Inventory and cost of sales

Item

December 31, 2010

December 31, 2009

Rolled Stee! (Product) Department:
Raw materials

$3,978,142 $3.031.152
Material 56,407 60,869
Work in process 1,153.124 849,651
Finished products 2,790.734 2,035,162
Other inventories 144 437 108,730
Total $8,122.844 $6.085.564
Less: Allowance for inventory valuation and <
obsolescence losses o (254,849) (157,546)
Subtotal, Rolled Steel (Product) Departiment $7.867,995 $5,928.018

Heavy Industry Department:
Construction in progress $1,649,658 $3,068,521
Less: transferred to partial construction billings (537,091) (403,292)
L._cs; transterred from partial construction (514.859) (1914258)
illings

Subtotal, Heavy Industry Department $597.708 $750,971
Lcss': Allowance for Ipssps on obsolesce and (50.928) (36.574)
market value decline in inventories
Net $546,780 $714,397
Total $1,691,268 $2,179,765

(1) Pursuant to SFAS No.ll “accounting for Long-term Construction Contracts™: If the
balance of construction in progress for the same construction contract exceeds the
balance of partial construction billings, partial construction billings is deducted from

construction in progress and presented as current assets. Please refer to Note 25 tor
further details.

If the balance of partial construction billings exceeds the balance of construction in
progress, construction in progress is deducted from partial construction billings and
presented as current liabilities.
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(2) Inventory-related gain (loss) recognized as operating cost in 2010 and 2009 is
summarized as follows:

Item 2010 2009

Cost of inventories sold $57,200,176 $41,307,377
Engineering costs 1,134,883 1,274,716
Inventory devaluation losses {reversal gains) 111,640 (1.232,613)
Unallocated manufacturing overheads 125,977 286,635
OEM costs 12,673 15,260
Provision (reversal) for loss on irrevocable 3,763 (16,010)
purchase agreements

Claim payment receivable (68,621) -
Total operating costs $58,525,491 $41,635,365

In 2010, due to the drop in market prices, a loss of $111,640 thousand was provided
for reduction of inventory to market.

In 2009, the stable market price and de-stocking resulted in a gain from price
recovery ot $1,232.613 thousand.

(3} As of the end of 2010 and 2009, insured amounts for inventories against fire were
$2,139,371 thousand and $1,701,022 thousand, respectively; and insured amounts for
comprehensive construction insurance were $608,967 thousand and $2,235,442 thousand,
respectively, which were not provided as collateral for borrowing.

12.  Prepayment

Item Deccember 31,2010 December 31, 2009
Prepaid material $1.969,615 31,746,195
purchases
Prcpajd insurance 24 454 30,158
premium
Input (output) taxes 14,637 71,158
Prepaid royalty 207 207
Prepaid rental 3,596 2,995
Consumables on hand 189,202 248,888
Other prepayments 164,885 48,598
Total $2,366,596 $2,148,199

Pleasc refer to Note 41 for details on prepaid royalties.
13. Available-for-sale non-current assets

Item December 31,2010 December 31, 2009
Land $- $12.977
.Less:. Accumulated ) (3,302)
impairment
Net 3- $9,675
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(1) The Company's land located at Pao-Tien-Hsi Section was expropriated by the
government and the ownership transfer was completed in January 2010. Therefore, the
expropriated land was transferred as non-current assets held for sale. Loss resulting from

the expropriation amounted to $3,302 thousand, for which an impairment loss was
provided.

(2) In accordance with the Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 38, related
assets and liabilities in previous years may not be reclassified in the balance sheets.

(3) Part of the non-current assets held for sale has been provided as collateral for borrowing.
Please refer to Note 40 for details.

14. Long-term stock investment recognized under the equity method

December 31, 2010

Name of I[nvestee Shares (thousand shares) Carrying Amount %% of Ownership
Yieh Mau Corporation 31252 $499,766 23.00%
Chen Shin House Management 5 3 )
Consulting Co., Ltd. 393 1280 39.50%
Eliter Intemationai Corp. 66,351 686,798 28.57%
United Brightening 80.128 $40,887 44.56%
Development Corp.
I‘lan-Yu_e Hol?pnng & Resont 1170 3.736 19.50%
International Corp.
Global Partners Link Co., Ltd. : 1.000 9,578 33.33%
Synn Industrial Co., Lid. 43,920 $10,594 30.00%
Asiazone Co., Limited 3.970 372,275 19.50%
Kuo Chang Enterprise Co., Ltd. 39,537 451,031 45.00%
E-Da Development Corp. 107,574 957.457. 29.07%
Zheng Xin Security Co., Ltd. 1,800 24989 45.00%
Champion Logistic Inc. 89,000 2,564,218 49.44%
Yi Lian Japan Co., Ltd. - 2,530 47.00%
G'lor'mus Falcon Intemational 3.350 350,447 50.00%
Limited
Wlsg Universal Intemational 1.500 14.543 50.00%
Limited
United Winner Metals - 60,311 33.75%
E-Da Cultural Creative Industry 950 6.134 19.00%
Co., Lid
E-DA Bus 1,500 16,501 17.09%
Tycoons Steel International 14,700 333418 20.40%
Co.. Ltd.
Hsing Jui Investments Limited 5.797 177.354 31.00%
Da Yac Engincering & nem ] o
Consulting Co., Ltd. 980 10.257 49.00%
Total $7,933,604
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Name of Investee Shares (thousand shares) Carrying Amount % of Ownership
Yieh Mau Corporation 37,252 $505.967 23.00%
Chen Shin House Management N 3 0
Consulting Co.. Ltd. 395 1,079 39.50%
Eliter International Corp. 66,351 699,191 28.57%
United Brightening 5

g g 5 ) 4 o,

Development Corp. 80,128 999.209 44.36%
Tlan—Y\{e Hot Spring & Resort 1170 4.649 19.50%
International Corp.
Global Parmers Link Co., Lid. 1.000 8.04S 33.33%
Svnn Industrial Co., Ltd. 39.120 464,388 30.00%
Asiazone Co., Limited 8.970 408,760 19.50%
Kuo Chang Enterprise Co.. Ltd. 39,537 530,555 45.00%
Tycoons Steel International 199 1 : 'Y
Co., Ltd, 14,700 372,247 49.00%
Hsing Jui Investments Limited 4,247 135,326 31.00%
Da Yao Engineering & 5 . .
Consulting Co., Ltd. 980 10.203 49.00%
E-Da Development Corp. 107,574 1,063,463 29.07%
Zheng Xin Security Co.. Lid. 1,800 22,171 45.00%
Champion Logistic Inc. 89.000 2,861,917 49.44%
Yi Lian Japan Co.. Ltd. - 5.828 47.00%
E-Da Cultural Creative Industry 950 0.404 19.00%
Co.. Lud
G]oqous Falcon International 3.350 340,713 50.00%
Limited
Wise Universal Intemational o
Limited 1,500 48,815 50.00%
United Winner Metals 1 63,893 34.00%

Subtotal

Prepayments for share
subscription

Hsing Jui Investments [Limited
Subtotal

Total

$8,565.323

$78.509
$78,509

$8,643,832

(1) Outstanding balances and gains (losses) of long term equity investments recognized
under the equity method:

December 31, 2010:

Long-term equity

Investment gains/

Item investment losses
In accordance with financial statements audited by 9
the CPA $7,488,910 ($99,622)
Exempted from CPA audits 2,530 (3,430)
In accordance with financial statements audited by 442,164 5.516
other CPAs
Total $7,933,604 ($97,536)
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Investment gains/

investment losses
In accordance with financial statements audited by ae £EY
the CPA $8,157,306 $26,662
Exempted from CPA audits 5,828 (2.384)
In accordance with financial statements audited by
ﬁ
other CPAs 480,698 (15.039)
Total $8,643,832 $9.239

(2) a  Thejoint ventures in which the Company holds 50% of the equity include Glorious
Falcon International Limited and Wise Universe International Limited, with the
capital stock in the amount of US$6,700 thousand and US$3,000 thousand

respectively.

b. The amount shared by the Company with Glorious Falcon International Limited and
Wise Universe International Limited under the various account titles is specified as

tollowing:

December 31, 2010:

Glorious Falcon

Wise Universe

International International
Title Limited Limited Total
Current assets $690.442 $44.553 $734.995
Non-current assets 13,797 - 13,797
Current liabilities 344,792 10 344,802
Revenue (including 2,410,250 134 2,410,384
non-operating revenue)
Expenses 2,367,237 37 2,367,274
(including costs and non-operating losses)
December 31, 2009:
Glorious Falcon Wise Universe
International International
Title Limited Limited Total
Current assets $798.750 $48.425 $347,175
Non-current asscts 18,247 - 18,247
Current liabilities 467,284 10 467,294
Revenue (including 2,546,174 172 2,546,346
non-operating revenue)
Expenses 2,468,504 39 2,468,543

(including costs and non-operating losses)

¢. The Company only exercises significant influence over the joint ventures but has no
control over the joint ventures. Therefore, the Company’s interest in the joint
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ventures was only expressed under the equity method, while they were not included
inot the consolidated financial statements.

(3) The Company made investments in Tianjin Lianfa Precision Steel Corporation through
Hsing Jui Investments Ltd. (BVI) with the approval of the Investment Commission,
MOEA. The registered capital was USD 13,500 thousand.

15, Real estate investments

December 31, 2010 December 31, 2009
Item Occupied Area Amount Occupied Area Amount
Lungdong lot and 38,730 m* $2.736,585 38,730 m” $2.736,585

Lunghua lot lands in
Gushan Disctrict,
Kaohsiung City

(1) The subsidiary, Yieh Hsin Enterprise Co.. Ltd.. was approved by the Urban Planning
Committee, Ministry of Interior in August 2002 and Kao-Shih-Fu-Tu-Il Letter No.
0920050789 of the Kaohsiung Government on October 13, 2003, to be altered from
industrial land to project development for comprehensive commercial district.

(2) The investment in real estate has been provided as collateral for borrowed funds. Plcase
refer to Note 40 for details.
16. Financial assets carried at cost— Non-current

December 31,2010

Name of Investee Shares (thousand shares) Carrying Amount % of Owmership

Yieh United Steet Corp. 306.329 $2,481,201 14.62%
{Note )

ISI::O Huang Enterprise Co., 080 R 19.60%
Universal Venture Capital o
Investment Co., I.td. 1100 2.130 0.91%
Chateau Bridgetop Inc. 7.500 - 15.00%
Pacific Harbor Stevedoring o
Corporation 300 3.300 6.00%
Grand Fortune Special Steel 3.558 } 573%
Co., Lid.
Ascentke Venture Capital Corp. 2,352 23520 6.42%
Asia Pacific Telecom Co., Ltd. 4.500 - 0.14%
Neoflex Technology Co., Ltd. 88 1,060 0.59%
Strategic Advisory Investinent 100 i 10.00%
Lid.
{)ladnce & Jump Software Co., 38 535 1.60%
Ambicom Technology, Inc. 150 1,500 3.42%
Auto Parts Industrial Lid. 10,100 100,000 4.41%
Microlinks Technology Corp. 3,000 4,440 11.63%
Taiwan Ves-Power Co., Ltd. 4,321 81,105 3.60%
Windance Co., Ltd. 18,469 - 2.68%
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December 31, 2010

Name of Investee Shares (thousand shares) Carrying Amount % of Ownership
New Springs Construction . 319
Corp.. Lid. 5,958 41,833 19.31%
Yieh Corporation Limited 200 2,002 6.41%
Taiwan Implant 1000 10.000 5.00%
Technology Company,itd
Groupeo Technology Inc. 86 492 1.07%
Total $2,760.118

(Note): The amount after write-off of the internal gains, NT$185.431 thousand

December 31, 2009

Name of Investee Shares (thousand shares) Carrying Amount % of Ownership

Yieh United Steel Corp. 255,274 $2.481,201 14.62%
(Note)
1S-huo Huang Enterprise Co.. 930 ; 19.60%
td.
Universal Venture Capital 3 o
Investment Co., Ltd. 1,100 2.130 0.91%
Chateau Bridgetop Inc. 7,500 - 15.00%
Pacific Harbor Stevedoring 300 3300 6.00%
Corporation
Grand Fortune Special Steel 3.558 . R 573%
Co.. 1id.
Ascentke Venture Capital Corp. 2,352 23,520 6.42%
Asia Pacific Telecom Co., Ltd. 4,500 - 0.14%
Neoflex Technology Co.. Ltd. 88 1,060 0.59%
Strategic Advisory Investment 100 ) 10.00%
Ltd.
guo Fu Venture Investment 4.200 15.880 10.00%
orp.

I[?la(;lce & Jump Software Co.. 38 535 1.60%
Ambicom Technology. Inc. 150 1,500 3.42%
Aulo Parts Industrial Ltd. 10,100 100,000 4.41%
Microlinks Technology Corp. 3,000 4,440 11.63%
Taiwan Ves-Power Co., Ltd. 4,321 81,105 3.60%
Windance Co.. Ltd. 18.469 - 2.68%
New Springs Construction < a9z 11 Q1 o
Corp.. Ltd. 5375 41,833 19.31%
Yieh Corporation Limited 200 2,002 6.67%
Groupco Technology Inc. 176 492 1.07%
Toral 32,765,998

(Note): The amount after write-off of the internal gains, NT$185,431 thousand

(1) The above equity investments, which had no quoted prices in active market and of which
tair value could not be reliably measured, were carried at cost.

(2) The Company has recognized impairment losses cqualing to the full carrying amount of
some of above investec companies experiencing financial difficulties.
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17. Property, plant & equipment, net

(1) Details tor December 31, 2010 are summarized as follows:

Cost of Accumulated

Item Acquisition Depreciation Net Book Value
Land $3.045,334 $- $3,045,334
Buildings 7,259,364 2,930,334 4.329,030
Machinery equipment 29,680,036 12,279,716 17.400.320
Molding equipment 1,341.696 890,284 451,412
Utilities equipment 343,159 220,610 122,549
Corpputer communication 290,296 232370 57.926
equipment
Testing equipment 83,258 54414 28,844
Transportation equipment 864.818 602.274 262,544
Other equipment 587.644 434,034 133,610
Construction in progress 38,684 - 58.684
Prepayment for 354,950 . 354,950
equipment purchase
Total $43,909,239 $17,644.036 $26,265.203
Less:. Accgmu]ated (395.513)

impairment

Net $25,869,690

(2) Details for December 31, 2009 are summarized as follows:

Cost of Accumulated

Item Acquisition Depreciation Net Book Value
Land $2,937,031 $- $2.937,031
Buildings 6,903,580 2,684,071 4,219,509
Machinery equipment 28.151.351 11,341,883 16.809,468
Molding equipment 1,248,825 781.144 467.681
Utilities equipment 348.843 205,296 143,547
Loxpputer communication 339,525 262,121 77.404
equipment
Testing equipment 90,901 61,488 29413
Transportation equipment 900.368 570,310 330,058
Other equipment 565,467 417,347 148,120
Construction in progress 627,774 - 627,774
Prepayment for 1,998,029 - 1,998,029
equipment purchase
Total $44,111,694 $16,323,660 $27,788,034
Lcss:. Accgmulated (141,475)

impairment

Net $27,646,559
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The construction and production equipment for the suspended Pingnan Factory Project of
the consolidated subsidiary, Yieh Hsing Enterprise Co., Ltd., totaled NT$1,674,390
thousand. Because it has engaged in expanding the new production lines in 2008, the
original equipment was re-combined as a part of the expanded facilities. According to
the letter under (91) Kee-Mi-Tze No. 053, the original equipment was transferred to the
construction in progress and prepayment for equipment purchase totaling NT$2020.170
thousand and NT$1,472,220 thousand respectively according to the carrying amount
upon evaluation of impairment. The expansion project was completed in March and
September 2010 individually and transterred as buildings and production equipment.

Some of the Company’s property, plant and equipment was provided as collateral for
loan. Please refer to Note 40 for details.

As of the end of 2010 and 2009, no revaluation was conducted for fixed assets.

Capitalization of interest for years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, is summarized as
follows:

Item 2010 2009
Capitalized interest $26,559 $135,564
Capitalization rates 1.88%-4.67% 1.93%-7.16%

As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, insured amounts for fixed assets (including leased
assets) amounted to $38,169,472 thousand and $36,854,147 thousand, respectively; and

insured amounts for business interruption insurance amounted to $3.268,175 thousand
and $2,354,457 thousand. respectively.

As of December 31, 2010, an impairment loss of RMB30,000 thousand was provided
based on the recoverable amount for the investinent in Changshu Chief Leading Edge
Construction Materials Co., Ltd, a subsidiary ot the Company’s subsidiary.

As of December 31,2010, an impairment loss of USD29 thousand was provided based on

the recoverable amount tor the invesiment in AWID, a subsidiary of the Company’s
subsidiary.

(10) Due to floods caused by Typhoon Fanapi, estimated loss on fixed assets amounted to

$344,719 thousand stated under “Fixed assets - accumulated impairment loss™. The
Company has actively repaired damaged equipment. Accrued discard and repair
amounted to $82,003 thousand stated under “Reduction of accumulated impairment™. As
of December 31, 2010, accumulated impairment amounted to $262,716 thousand. Please
refer to Note 42. (1) for details.

18. Nonperforming Loans, Net

Item December 31,2010  December 31, 2009
Nonperforming loans $36,979 $40,579
Less: Allowance for
doubtful accounts (36,979) ) (40,579)
Nonperforming Loans, Net $- $-
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19. Leased assets

Item December 31,2010  December 31, 2009
Land $4,555 $119,875
Building and equipment - 227,466 !
Machinery equipment - 472,801 I
Other equipment - 35,347 l
Total $4,555 $355,489 l
Less: a.cc.umulated X (187.117) |
deprectation i
Net $4,555 $668,372

(1) The consolidated subsidiary - Yieh Hsing Enterprise Co., Ltd. leased its stainless steel
tube plant in Pingtung out to Yieh Mau Corp, for a period from October 26, 2005, to
October 25, 2010, at a monthly rental of $200 thousand. In addition, 40% of the net
annual income from the leased property, if any, would be paid as rental. However, Yieh
Mau Corp, did not renew the lease agreement and the Company got the plant back and
uses it as a storehouse.

(2) Some of the Company's leased assets was provided as collateral for loans. Please refer to
Note 40 for details.

(3) As of December 31, 2009, the subsidiary —Yieh Hsing Enterprise Co.. Ltd. has provided
accumulated reduction of assets (direct reduction from cost) for $411,273 thousand
before the Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 35 “Accounting for
Impairment Loss on Assets” became effective (on January 1, 2007). However, as stated
in paragraph (1) above, because some lessees of the leased property did not renewed their
lease agreements in 2010, under (94) Chi-Mi-Tzu Letter No. 255, the amount after
deduction of accumulated reduction was transferred into fixed assets for $311,329
thousand and into idle assets for $311,549 thousand individually based on subsequent
utilization.

(3) Please refer to Note 17 for details of insured amounts for leased assets as of December 31,
2010 and 2009.

20. IDLE ASSETS, NET

(1} The details about the idle assets until December 31, 2010 are specified as following:

Cost of Accumulated

Item Acquisition Depreciation Net Book Value
Land $208.101 $- $208,101
Machinery equipment 475,505 183,292 292213
Computer communication 364 364 )
equipment
Testing equipment 9,261 8478 783
Other equipment 42,111 30,343 11,268
Total $735,342 $222977 $512,365
Less: Ac;p}nulated i (1.705)

impairment
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Cost of Accumulated
Item Acquisition Depreciation Net Book Value
Net $510,660

(2) The details about the idle assets until December 31, 2009 are specified as following:

Cost of Accumulated
Item Acquisition Depreciation Net Book Value
Land $208,101 $- $208,101
Other equipment 16,098 13,389 2,709
Total $224,199 $13,389 $210,810
Less:' Accp.mulated (1,70%)
impairment
Net $209,105

(3) The atorementioned idle assets are Lien Kang Heavy Industrial Co., Ltd. transfer-in and
equipment not under operating use currently transfer-in. Impairment losses on idle assets
were provided based on their recoverable amounts. As of December 31, 2010 and 2009.
balances of accumulated impairment amounted to $1.383 thousand and $1.705 thousand.

(4) As stated in Note 19.(3), as of December 31, 2010, the subsidiary, Yieh Hsing Enterprise
Co.. Ltd. has provided the accumulated reduction of assets for leased assets transfer-in
(direct reduction from cost) for $205.038 thousand betore the Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 35 “Accounting for Impairment Loss on Assets” became
etfective (on January 1, 2007).

(5) Part of the idle assets had been provided as collateral for borrowed funds. Please refer to
Note 40 for details.

21. Other assets- other '
Item December 31,2010  December 31, 2009

Prepaid royalty £826 $1.033
Prepaid pension 76,375 60,346
Land- for business use 115,460 115,460
Assets with suspended

expansion- Pingnan factory 1,039,954 1.040.809
construction contract

Total $1,232,615 $1,217,648

{1) Please refer to Note 41 for details on prepaid royalties.

(2) Assets with suspended expansion- Pingnan factory construction project was originally
part of the Company’s business expansion plan adopted by the Board of Directors in their
meeting held on August 28, 2006 to invest and build a factory in the Pingnan Industrial
Park. In view of the opinions of the local government and residents, the Board of
Directors resolved to terminate the Company’s expansion project on December 19, 2006.
The Company planned for subsidiaries to take over the expansion projects. As of
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December 31, 2010, the Company has not liaised with any subsidiary regarding the
transfer/acquisition of the investment. Details of the investment project were as follows: '

Item December 31,2010  December 31, 2009
Land $940,740 $940,740
Land improvement 1,092 1,092
Buildings 26,604 26,604
Construction in progress 16.862 16,362
Prepayment for equipment 135,582 135,582
purchase .
. Less: apcgmulated (4.426) (3.571)
depreciation
Less:l Accumulated (76.500) (76,500)
impairment
Total $1,039.954 $1,040,809

(3) Said land registered under another person’s name includes:

A. The parent company’s land located at No 107. San-Yieh-Pi Section (amounting to
$8,516 thousand) is the storage area of raw materials. However, under the applicable
laws, the ownership transfer of agriculture land is not allowed to be made under the
name of a company. Accordingly, the ownership was transferred under the name of
Financial Vice General Manager of the Company by entering into a trust contract in
March 2009 and the ownership certiticate is in the custody of the Company.

B. Subsidiary-Yieh Hsing Enterprise Co.. Ltd.

a. The Kangshan Township Pai Mi Section Land No. 136 (amounting to
NT3$8,000 thousand) was used for scrap storage. Because it was impossible to
transfer the registration of the iand with cause, the title owner, Ting Su-Hseuh,
handed the title deed to Yich Hsing Enterprise Co., Ltd. for custody and

pledged the first-priority mortgage to the Company with a written undertaking
waiving her right to refute.

b. The Kangshan Township Pai Mi Section Land No. 200-3 (amounting to
NT$72,806 thousand) was used for raw material and tinished products storage.
However, due to regulatory restrictions, the agricultural land can not be
purchased under the Company's name. Therefore, a trust contract was
established on October 9, 2008 to transter the title deed to Yieh Hsing's
Assistant Vice President, while Yieh Hsing holds custody of the title deed.

C. 1t is impossible to transfer the registration of an area occupied 4,854.87m’ of the
Tashe Hsiang Nien Shi Keng Section Land (amounting to NT$26,138 thousand)
with cause for the time being. Therefore, the title owners, Lin Chi-Long, Lin
Mei-Feng and Chen Chang-Hsiung issued the written undertaking certifying that the
land was purchased by Yieh Hsing Enterprise Co., Ltd. and they would work with
Yieh Hsing to transfer the registration when Yieh Hsing would dispose or use the
land. They have also handed the title deed to Yieh Hsing for custody and pledged
the mortgage to Yieh Hsing. Meanwhile, the Tashe Hsiang Nien Shi Keng Section
Land Nos. 135-11, 135-12 and 135-17 registered under the name of Chen
Chang-Hsiung were auctioned by the court. Since Yieh Hsing was named as the first
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priority mortgagee of the land, the proceeds from the court’s auction were
distributed to Yieh Hsing as the first priority. Further, in order to safeguard the
integrity of the land, Yieh Hsing had its Deputy Finance Manager to participate in .
the tender in August 2010 (because it was impossible to purchase the land under the ;
Company's name due to the regulation restrictions on the purpose of the land) and
won the tender eventually. The Tashe Hsiang Nien Shi Keng Section Land Nos.
135-11, 135-12 and 135-17 registered under the name of Lin Chi-Ling were i
managed by Yieh Hsing centrally. In May 2010, the original title owner was
changed from Lin Chi-Ling to You Ching-Sheng, the Deputy Finance Manager of
Yieh Hsing, and both parties signed the trust contract defining that Yieh Hsing may
register the transfer of the land to Yieh Hsing or its nominee at any time.

(4) Part of other assets - others have been provided as coilateral for borrowing. Please refer
to Note 40 for details.

22. Short-term loan

December 31, 2010 |

Type of Loan Amount Interest rate :
Credit loans 31,384,000 1.15%-2.655%
Loans for material purchase 5.435.949 1.02%-5.838%
Secured loans 530,245 2.24%-5.10%
Total $7,350,194

December 31, 2009

Type of Loan Amount Interest rate
Credit loans $2,500,941 1.47%-5.84%
Loans for material purchase 6,410,811 0.81%-3.10%
Secured loans 1,423,527 1.01%-4.86%
Total $10,335,279

Please refer to Note 40 for further details of collateral provided to secure the above
bank loans.

23. Short-term bills payable

Guarantor December 31, 2010 December 31, 2009
China Bills Finance $100,000 $100,000
Corp.

Mega Bills Finance 130,000 261,600
Corp.

International Bills 100,000 200,000
Finance Corp.

Taiwan Bills Finance R 50,000
Corp.

Chinatrust Bills Finance 100,000 100,000
Corp.
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Land Bank of Taiwan - 40,000
Sunny Bank 150,000 -
Da Chung Bills Finance 100,000 )
Corp.

Total $680,000 $751,600
Less: unamortized

discount on bonds (952) (89%)
payable

Net $679,048 $750,705

Interest Rate Range

Please refer to Note 40 for details relating to collateral provided against the issuance of

the above short-term notes payable.

24. Other payables

1.47%-2.53%

0.35%-2.89%

Item December 31, 2010 December 31, 2009

Paygbles for purchase of $62.562 $60,525

equipment

Cash dividends payable 22232 22,189

Sales tax payable 76 5514

Quantity discounts 39,492 34,568

payable

Purchase contract loss 3.763 )

payable

Components and 48,159 15,538

consumables payable

Others 17,673 16,151

Total $198,957 $154,485

25. Advance receipts
Item December 31,2010 December 31, 2009

Unearned sales revenue $237.020 $208,419
Other advance receipts 17914 26,090
Partial construction billing 1,095,199 2,367,479
Less: transferred from construction in progress (537,091 (403,292)
Less: credited to construction in progress (514,859) (1,914,258)
Total $298,183 $284.438

Pursuant to SFAS No.l1 “Accounting for Long-term Construction Contracts™:

(1) If the balance of partial construction billings exceeds the balance of construction in

progress, construction in progress is deducted from partial construction billings and
presented as current liabilities.
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(2) If the balance of construction in progress exceeds the balance of partial construction
billings, partial construction billings is deducted from construction in progress and
presented as current assets. Please refer to Note 11 for details.

26. Long-term liabilities- current portion

Item December 31, 2010 December 31, 2009
Long-term liabilities- current portion $1.513.597 $3,775.348
Lease payable 2,446 540
Total $1,516,043 $3,775,888

27. Long-term liabilities- current portion

Lender

Maturity

December 31, 2010

December 31,
2009

Payment method

Taiwan Business Bank -
Kaohsiung

Chang Hwa Bank —
Kaohsiung and other
syndicated banks

Chang Hwa Bank -
Kaohsiung and other
syndicated banks

Shin Kong Bank - Chi
Hsien Bank

Mega Bank - Harbor City
Mega Bank — Harbor City
Mega Bank - Harbor City
Mega Bank — Harbor City
Taiwan Cooperative Bank —
Kaohsiung and other
syndicated banks

A syndicate of 7 lenders
including the L.and Bank of
Taiwan

A syndicate of 11 lenders
including Mega Bank - A
category

A syndicate of § lenders
including Mega Bank

Chang Hua Bank

Ta Chong Bank

2014, 3.17

2011.7.29

2015.12.10

2017.4.9
2015.3.24
2013.6.9
2016.5.4
2016.9.29
2013.7.22

2016. 6.26

2017.11.29

2013.6.29

2013.6.28

2011.2.28
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$200.000

3,000,000

90,000

432,000
335,000
343.000
750,000

4,000,000

2,500.000

3,585,000

$200.000

2.500.000

480.000
469.000
343,000
750.000
4,000,000

2,500,000

1,416,780

185,052

280,000

Installments

Instalments.
However the
balance was fully
repaid in 2010.

Instaliments

Installments

Installments
Instaliments
Installments
Installments

Installments

Instaliments

Installments

Installment
repayment, which
has been early
repaid in November
2010.

Installiment
repayment, which
has been early
repaid in November
2010.

Installment
repayment, which
has been early
repaid in December
2010.
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December 31,

Lender Maturity December 31, 2010 2009 Payment method
Syndicated loan arranged
by 11 banks including Mega 2000, 1.5 210,000 . installments
Bank - Item B (Note)
Ta Chong Bank and other Repaid fully at
= 2012.6.2 : -
syndicated banks 2012.6.29 174,780 maturity
Taiwan Cooperative Bank 2019 12 501 2 N
and other syndicated banks 20121211 291,300 319,900 Installments
Bayerische ’
Hypotheken-und 2010.12.28 - 639.800 Installments
Wechsel-Bank AG
Taiwan Business Bankand )5 5 5, 1,602,150 1759450  Installments
other syndicated banks
China Construction Bank 2010.4.30 - 22,844 Installments
China Construction Bank 2010.10.30 - 38,996 Installments
China Construction Bank 2011.3.10 21,306 70.212 Installments
China Construction Bank 2011. 3.18 31,958 105.317 Installments
China Construction Bank 2010.10.30 - 27.984 Installments
China Construction Bank 2011.3.21 36,246 115851 Installments
China Construction Bank 2011. 2.15 26.809 85.688 Installments
China Construction Bank 2011.1.15 26.809 35,688 Installments
China Construction Bank 2011.1.15 32,171 102.826 Installments
China Construction Bank 2011. 215 21.447 68.551 Installments
China Construction Bank 2011.3.21 21,447 68,551 Installments
China Construction Bank 2011.3.12 30.350 89,483 Installments
Bank of Overseas Chinese ~ 2012.12.30 - 768,337 Egzloy fepaymentin
Bank of Overseas Chinese 2013.2.10 147.693 - Instatlment
repayment.
Bank of Overseas Chinese 2013.2.24 284,631 - Installment
repayment.
BNP and other syndicated 2010.4.10 : 1278.568  Installments
banks
BNP and other syndicated 2013, 3.35 1341543 A Installment
banks repayment.
BNFT and other syndicated 2013. 3.5 175.940 3 Installinent
banks repayment.
First Sino Bank 2012.12.30 ; 496,609 Eg:'g repayment in
First Sino Bank 2013.1.21 175,940 Installment
repayment.
First Sino Bank 2013.3.1 145,151 . [Instaliment
repayment.
HSBC 2012.12.30 . 234,249 E“"y repaymentin
2010.
HSBC 2013.2.10 61579 . [Installment
repayment.
HSBC 2013.3.18 105,565 . [Installmenc
repayment.
HSBC 2013.3.28 52,783 Instatlment
repayment.
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December 31,

Lender Maturity December 31, 2010 2009 Payment method
Mizuho Bank 2012515 290,302 . [Installment
repayment.

Participant banks. such as 3 5
Yuan Ta Bank 2013.11.18 1.063,245 -
Total $21.606.145 $19.502,736
Less: long-term liabilities- current portion (1.513.597) (3.775.348)
Less: Unamortized discount on long-term <

- = 3N -
borrowing
Long-tenn loans $20,092,491 $15,727,388
Interest rate range-end 1.2%-5.526% 1.15%-5.35%

(Note): Use the revolving credit facility through commercial papers from November 2010 to November 2017,
(1) Please refer to Note 40 for details of collateral provided for the above bank loans.
(2)  Restrictive covenants:

A. Special clauses governing long-tenn loan agreements between the Company and the lenders (banks)

were as follows:
a. The lender (bank) is the principal beneficiary over the insurance claim.

b.  Transfer, pledge. lease or disposal of the collaterals shall be consented by the lender (bank).

c.  Alteration to, improvement of, addition to and revocation of the collaterals shall be consented
by the lenders (banks).

Special clauses governing the syndicated loan agreement entered into between the Company and
Taiwan Cooperative Bank were as follows:

The Company's audited semiannual and annual financial statements must maintain the following
financial ratios:

a.  Current assets to current liabilities ratio shall be no less than 100%.
b.  Total liabilities to total net assets ratio shall be no greater than 100%.

c. Interest coverage ratio (net income before income tax+ interest expense+ depreciation and
amortization/interest expense): no less than 3 times.

d. Net intangible assets shall be greater thani NT$ 17 billion (incl.).

The Company's long-term syndicate loan arranged by Chang Hwa Bank - Kaohsiung contained the
following covenants imposed by the syndicate banks:

The Company's audited semiannual and annual financial statements must maintain the following
financial ratios:

a.  The ratios of current assets to current liabilities at the end of 2010 and 2009 were not lower
than 85% and 100%, respectively.

b.  Total liabilities to total net assets ratio shall be no greater than 150%.

c. Interest coverage ratio (net income before income tax+ interest cxpense+ depreciation and
amortization/interest expense): no less than 2 times.

Asto MICKEY Company’s long-term borrowing, the special terms agreed on with bank creditors
are summanzed as follows:

a.  Restrictive covenants about the syndicated loans from Ta Chong Bank and other syndicated
barks arc specified as following:

(a). Guaranter: Yieh Phui Enterprise Co., Ltd.

{b). Financial ratio: The audited financial statements of Yieh Plui Enterprise Co., Ltd. must
maintain the following financial ratios:

(1}  The current ration shall be no less than 70%.
(2) The liabilities ratio shall be no greater than 150%.
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{3) Interest coverage ratio (net income before income tax* interest expenditure+
depreciation and amortization/interest expenditure): no less than 1.50 times.

(c). It is necessary to work with the lenders to hold TMU commoditics no less than
USD6,000 thousand.

b. Restrictive covenants about the syndicated loans from Taiwan Cooperative Bank and other
syndicated banks are specified as following:
(a). Guaranter: Yieh Phui Enterprise Co., Ltd.

(b). Financial ratio: The audited financial statements of Yieh Phui Enterprise Co., Ltd. must
maintain the following financial ratios:

(1) The current ration shall be no less than 100%.

(2) The liabilities ratio shall be no greater than 150%.

(31 Interest coverage ratio {net income before income tax: interest expenditure+
depreciation and amortization/interest expenditure): no less than 1.50 times.

¢. Restrictive covenants about the loans tfrom Bayerische Hypotheken-und Wechsel-Bank AG
are specified as following:

(a). Guaranter: Yieh Phui Enterprise Co.. Lid.

(b). Financial ratio: The audited financial statements of Yieh Phui Enterprise Co.. Lid. must
maintain the following financial ratios:

(1) The liabilities ratio shall be no greater than 175%.

(2) Interest coverage ratio (net income before income tax = interest expenditure~
depreciation and amortization/interest expenditure): no less than 2.50 times.

(3} The current ration shall be no less than 100%.

(4)  Net tangible assets shall not be less than NTID17 billion.

Restrictive covenants about the syndicated loans from Taiwan Business Bank and other
syndicated banks are specified as following:

(a). Guaranter: Yich Phui Enterprise Co., Ltd.

d.

{b). Financial ratio: The audited financial statements of Yieh Phui Enterprise Co., I.td. must
maintain the following financial ratios:

(1) The current ration shall be no less than 70%.
(2) The liabilities ratio shall be no greater than 150%.

(3)  Interest coverage ratio (net income before income tax+ interest expenditure+
depreciation and amortization/interest expenditure): no less than 1.50 times.

Special clauses governing the BNP syndicated loan agreement entered into between the Company
and Yieh Phui (China) Technomaterial Co.. Ltd. were as follows:

a.  Guarantor: The audited financial statements of Yieh Phui Enterprise Co., I.td. must maintain
the following financial ratios:

(1) Current assets to current labilities ratio shall be no less than 100% before 2009.

(2) Total liabilities to total net assets ratio shall be no greater than 175% before 2009, and
150% after 2010.

(3) Interest coverage ratio (net income before income tax+ interest expenditurc+
depreciation/interest expenditure): no less than 2.5 times.

(4) Net tangible assets (shareholders’ equity less intangible assets) shall be no less than
NT$25 billion.

b. 'Borrower: The financial statements of Yich Phui (China) Technomaterial Co., Ltd. must

maintain the following financial ratios:

(1) The habilities ratio shall be no greater than 3.5 in 2006, 3.25 in 2007, and 2.5 in 2008 and
thereafter.

(2) Interest coverage ratio (net income before income tax+ interest expenditure+

depreciation/interest expenditure) shall be no less than 1.0 in 2006, and 1.5 in 2007 and
thereafter. .
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c.  The facilities offered by OCBC, First Sino Bank and HSBC are secured by time deposits and
Stand-y L/C provided by MICKEY Company as collateral for the Company's borrowing.
Theretore, the Company may drawdown the revolving loan within the facility. The loans will
be secured by MICKEY for three vears.

d.  The facility oftered by Mizuho Bank was secured by a borrowing guarantee agreement
provided by Yieh Phui Enterprise Co.. Ltd. as collateral for the Company’s financing facility.
Therefore, the Company may drawdown the revolving loan with the facility. The security
provided by Yieh Phui Company will expire on May 15, 2012,

As 1o the long-term borrowing of Yieh Phui (Hong Kong) Holding Ltd., a svndicated loan amanged

by Yuanta Bank, special terms agreed on with bank creditors are summarized as follows:

a.  Guarantor: Yieh Phui Enterprise Co.. Lid., shall maintain the following financial ratios in its
annual consolidated financial statements audited by CPAs:

(1) Current assets to current liabilities ratio shall be no less than $§0%.
(2) Total liabilities to total net assets ratio shall be no greater than 140%.

(3) Interest coverage ratio (net income before income tax+ interest expense+ depreciation
and amortization/interest expense): no less than 150%.

b. Corporate guarantors give irrevocable commitments and confirm that the direct or indirect

shareholding in borrower should be 90% or more, and they shall maintain their control over

operation of the corporation.

If any of the syndicated loans (Item B to F) violates the requirements for financial ratios,
it is required to be improved within a certain period. If it is not improved within the certain
period, a commitment fee must be charged (compensation fee). The amount must be agreed on
between both parties.

The subsidiary, Yieh Hsing Enterprise Co., Ltd. entered into credit agreements of syndicated loans

with participant banks in 2010 and 2009. Key financial promises are summarized as follows:

a. The subsidiary, Yich Hsing Enterprise Co.. Ltd. entered-into a credit agreement of a
syndicated loan with 7 participant banks. such as Land Bank, in Junc 2009. Key financial
promises are summarized as follows:

{a). The Company undertook that as of the contract date. the Company should verify the
following financial ratios based on the information and data recorded in the Company’s
non-consolidated financial statements audited by an independent auditor at the end of
each fiscal year, and the financial ratios should comply with the agreed ones:

a. Liabilities ratio (total liabilities divided by shareholders™ equity) < 200%

(b). If the Company fails to maintain said financial ratios, it should rectify it within § months
as of May 1 of the year following the year of audit. The interest rate prevailing within the
time limit should be the annual interest rate escalated by 0.20%.1f the Company fails to
rectify it within the specific time limit. it should pay the fine to the custodian bank at
0.05% of the total balance of the outstanding principal, plus the escalated interest rate
prevailing within the specific time limit for rectification further escalated by 0.2% as of
the expiration of the time limit for rectification until the date of fulfilliment of
rectification.

b. The subsidiary, Yieh Hsing Enterprise Co.. Ltd. entered into a credit agreement of a
syndicated loan with 11 participant banks, such as Mega Bank in November 2010. Key
financial promises are summarized as follows:

(a). The Company has undertaken that relevant financial ratios calculated based on the
Company's annual and semiannual non-consolidated financial statements audited by
CPAs should be maintained in conformity with the following criteria during the duration
of the agreement from the date when the agreement was entered into:

a. The current ration shall be no less than 55% (incl.).
b. The liabilities ratio shall be no greater than 200%.(incl.).

c. Interest Protection Multiples should be maintained at a level of | time or above.
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(b). If the Company fails to maintain the aforementioned financial ratios, the interest rate
must be raised by 0.1% (annualized rate) from the date when the management bank
informs the Company of the violation of financial commitments and the Company shall
make improvements before the presentation of the next non-consolidated financial
reports. If the Company fails to make improvements within the time limit, the Company
should be fined based on the outstanding balance at 0.025%.

28. Pension

(1) The Company has put in place a pension plan covering all regular employces. Each
employee will earn two base units for the first 15 years of service and half a unit or one
unit for each year thereafter prior to and after the R.0.C. Labor Standards Law came into
cffect, respectively, with a maximum of 45 units. Upon retirement, pension payments are
calculated based on total years of service and average salary of the last six months prior to
retirement.

A. The Company is currently funding the pension plan monthly at 4.2% of salaries and
wages. In accordance with the Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 18
“Accounting for Pension Fund”, pension costs should be recognized based on
actuarial calculations. The relevant information is disclosed in accordance with the
requirements of the Statement as follows:

a. Net pension cost:

Item 2010 2009

Service cost $10,782 $12,909

Interest cost 11,015 13.016

bxpc§ted return on fund (10.344) (11.954)

assets

Amortization of

unrecognized 2621 2621

“transitional net benefit - U

obligation

Ampmzanon 9flo§s 2556 1253

(gain) on pension fund

Net pension costs of $16.630 $17.845

parent company

I\\Jet pension costs of 18.756 17.972

subsidiaries

Total $35.386 $35,817

b. The funding status was reconciled with the accrued pension cost per books as
follows:
December 31, 2010:
Item The Company Subsidiary

Benefit obligation:
Vested benefit obligation ($57,182) ($66,949)
Non-vested benetit obligation (425,265) (206,208)
Accumulated benetit obligation ($482,447) ($273,157)
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The Company Subsidiary
Effect of increase in future salary (105,362) (R0,471)
Projected benefit obligation ($588,309) ($353,628)
Fair value of pension fund assets 539,826 46,240
Funding status ($48.,483) ($307.383)
Um"ecognized transitional net benefit 7.045 29,363
obligation .
Unrecognized loss (gain) on pension fund 115.363 35498
Supp!gmemary recognition of accrued pension A (4,934)
liabilities
Prepgiq pension fund / (Accrued pension $73.925 ($247.461)
liabilities)
Vested benefit $72.740 $77,353
December 31, 2009:
Item The Company Subsidiary
Bencfit obligation:
Vested benefit obligation ($38,435) ($45.945)
Non-vested benefit obligation (421,197) (185.984)
Accumulated benefit obligation ($459,632) ($231.929)
Effect of increase in future salary (94,706) (69,026)
Projected benetit obligation ($554,338) ($300,955)
Fair value of pension fund assets 505,914 50,467
Funding status ($48,424) ($250,488)
Umecqgnized transitional net benefit 9.666 37.602
obligation
Unrecognized loss (gain) on pension fund 96,332 (13.990)
?upp!gmen(ary recognition of accrued pension ) (2.881)
1abilities
lffrepa'iq Pension fund / (Accrued pension $57.574 ($229.757)
1abilities)
Vested benefit $49,751 $52,573

c.  As of December 31, 2010, the Company’s prepaid pension fund amounted to
$73.925 thousand, recorded under “Other assets — others” for $76,375 thousand
and “Accrued expenses” for $2,450 thousand. Subsidiaries recorded accrued

pension liabilities for $247,436 thousand and accrued expenses for $25
thousand.

d.  As of December 31, 2009, the Company's prepaid pension fund amounted to
$57,574 thousand, recorded under *Other assets — others” for $60,346 thousand
and “Accrued expenses” for $2,772 thousand. Subsidiaries recorded accrued

pension liabilities tor $229,732 thousand and accrued expenses for $25
thousand.
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e. The actuarial assumptions used in the pension cost calculation were as follows:

2010:
Item The Company Subsidiary
Discount rate 2.0% 2.5%
Increasing rate of future salary 1.75% 2.0%
Anticipated long-term rate of return on pension 2.0% 2.0%-2.25%
plan assets
2009:
Item The Company Subsidiary
Discount rate 2.0% 2.25%-2.75%
Increasing rate of future salary 1.5% 2.0%
Anticipated long-term rate of return on pension 20% 294-2.75%
plan asscts

B. The Labor Pension Act came into effect on July 1, 2005. The new system adopts the
defined benefit concept. Employees have the option of continuing under the *Labor
Standards Law” or switching over to the new system and retain their years of service
accounted for under the existing system. For cmployees covered under the new Act,
the employer shall make a monthly contribution equaling to at least 6% of total
salaries for depositing into the employee’s individual pension account. For the years
ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, pension tunds contributed by the consolidated
company under the defined contribution plan amounted to $55,021 thousand and $
36.147 thousand, respectively.

29. Capital

Item December 31, 2010 December 31, 2009
Authorized capital $20,000,000 $20,000,000
Paid-in capital 15,269,302 14,542,192
Outstanding common 1,526,930 1.454.219
shares
(in thousands)

Par value per share (3) 10 10

The Company’s general shareholders' meeting approved a capital increase by earnings of
$727,110 thousand on June 24, 2010. The basc date of the capital increase was September 21,
2010. As of December 31, 2010, the capital increase has been submitted to the Ministry of
Economic Affairs and the relevant register of change has been completed.

30. Treasury stock
(1) 2010: none.
(2) 2009:

Unit: thousand shares
Reason of Acquisition Item No. of Shares
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Maintain the Company’s No. of Shares, 47291

credit and shareholders’ beginning ”

equity Increase -
Decrease (47,291)

No. of Shares, ending

(3) Under the Securities and Exchange Act, the Company’s share repurchase is restricted up
to 10% of total issued shares, and the total purchase amount should not exceed the sum of
retained earnings. paid-in capital in excess of par value and realized capital surplus. On
October 23, 2008 the Company’s Board of Directors approved the buy-back of 100,000
thousand issued common shares from the open market during October 24, 2008 to
December 23, 2008. A total of 47,291 thousand shares or NT$ 418,867 thousand were
bought back during the buyback period. As to the aforementioned treasury stocks, the
Board of Directors resolved on February 17, 2009. that the base date of the capital
decrease was March 12, 2009. The relevant register of the capital decrease was
completed on March 27, 2009.

(4) The Company should not pledge these stocks as collateral and should not collect
dividends or exercise voting rights on these stocks.

31. Capital surplus

Pursuant to the R.0.C. Company Law. capital reserve shall be first used to oftset a deficit
and then the realized capital surplus may be capitalized. Realized capital surplus referred to in
the preceding paragraph included the surplus generated from donations and the excess of the
issuance price over the par value of capital stock and the surplus from treasury stock
transactions. Pursuant to the Regulations Governing the Offering and Issuance of Securities by
Securities Issuers, the amount ot capital reserves converted into share capital is capped at 10%
of paid up capital per year. Capital surplus arising from the excess of the issuance price over
the par value of capital stock may not be capitalized until the fiscal ycar atter the competent
authority for company registrations approves registration of the capital increase or whatever
other matter generated that portion of capital reserve.

32. Earnings distribution

1. Yich Phui Enterprise Co., Ltd.:

(1) The Company’s steel business is in a phase of stable growth: thus appropriation of
retained earnings and the Company’s dividend policy will be carried out in accordance
with the business expansion plan and the Company's profitability. The annual net income,
less any deficit and taxes and duties, if any, should be appropriated in the following order
of presentation: 10% as legal reserve, until its balance equals the issued capital stock; Set
aside or reverse a certain amount as or of special reserve according to actual
circumstances; Appropriate a specific percentage of the reminder plus unappropriated
earnings for the previous year as preferred stock dividends; Of the remainder, 1% as
bonus to employees and no greater than 0.2% as remuneration to directors and
supervisors, The remainder, if any, shall be appropriated according to shareholder
resolution. In principle, carnings shall be distributed in the form of stock dividends in
accordance with the Company’s capital requirement for business expansion and
profitability. Cash dividends are distributed at between 20% to 100% of total dividends
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distributed while stock dividends are distributed at between 0% to 80% ot total dividends
distributed.

Pursuant to Article 41 of the Securities Exchange Act, in addition to providing the legal
reserve, the Company is required to appropriate a special reserve from annual earnings
and unappropriated earnings from the previous period for any net debit balance resulting
from adjustments to the stockholders’ equity (including unrealized loss on long-term
investments and cumulative translation adjustments etc.). The Company may release a
portion of this special reserve when such debit balances are partially reversed.

Bonus to employees and remuneration to directors and supervisors:

A. The appropriation of 2009 earnings had been approved by the shareholders during
their meeting on April 24, 2010 and distribution of bonus to employees and
remuneration to directors and supervisors are as follows:

Item Amount

Bonus to employees $7.359

Remuneration to directors
and supervisors

Total $8,831

1,472

Said appropriation of retained earnings proposal complies with the resolution
of the dircctors' meeting on April 22, 2010.

B. Earnings appropriation and earnings per share for 2009 and 2008, as announced
during the General Shareholders’ Meeting in Jun 2010 and 2009. respectively, are as

follows:
Appropriation of Earnings Dividends Per Share ($)

Item 2009 2008 2009 2008
Legal Reserve $28.97s $101,536
Cash dividends for 436,266 282,372 0.3 0.2
common shares
Stock dividends for 727.110 423.559 0.5 0.3
common shares
Total $1,192.351 $807,467

On June 24, 2010, the shareholders’ meeting resolved the distribution of 2009
employce bonus and remuneration to directors/supervisors totaling NT$7,359
thousand and NT$1,472 thousand, respectively. The differences between the bonus
to the cmployees and the remuncration to the directors and supervisors were
resolved by the shareholders’ meeting. The bonus to employees of $2,944 thousand
and thc remuneration to the directors and supervisors of $589 recognized in 2009
financial statements were $4,415 thousand and $883 thousand, respectively. The
differences mainly resulted from the adjustment of profit. It has been adjusted as
income (loss) for 2010.

C. Information about the bonus to employees and remuneration to directors and
supervisors is available on the Markct Observation Post System website of the
Taiwan Stock Exchange.
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(4) The management of the Company estimates bonuses to employees and remuneration to
directors and supervisors in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Incorporation
and the average distribution ratios for bonus to employees and remuneration to directors
and supervisors resolved by the shareholders’ meeting in previous years. For the years
ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, the estimated bonus to employees and remuneration
to directors and supervisors amounted to $9,272 thousand and $3,533 thousand,
respectively. Thereafter, if the actual distribution amounts determined by the
shareholders® meeting are different from the estimates, the difference is treated as change
in the accounting estimation.

2. Yieh Hsing EnterprisE Co., Ltd.

(1) The company operates in a capital and technology-intensive industry: its corporate life
cycle is considered to be at the “matured” stage. To sustain its perpetual business
development while responding to future market demands, the company adopted a
“residual dividend policy™ which specified that in addition to taxation and reimbursement
of previous losses, the companies’ annual earnings are subject to a 10% provision for
legal earnings reserves and special earnings reserve as deemed necessary. The remaining
earnings are available for directors” and supervisors' remuneration of no more than 0.5%
and employees’ bonuses of 1%. followed by preterence stock dividends. The remainder
is added to undistributed earnings from previous years for the distribution of
stockholders’ dividends (of which stock dividend distribution ranges between 50% and
100%, while cash dividend distribution ranges between 0% and 50%). The above

distributions are proposed by the board of directors and resolved in the general
shareholders’ meeting.

(2) The 2009 and 2008 carnings distribution and dividends per share declared on June 2010
and April 2009 by the Company's shareholders’ meeting respectively are as follows:

Appropriation of Earnings Dividends Per Share ($)
Item 2009 2008 2009 2008

Legal Reserve $4414 $-
Special reserve - -
Cash dividends for
common shares

Stock dividends for
common shares
Remuneration to directors
and supervisors

Bonus to employees - -

Total $4,414 $-

A. The aforementioned distribution of bonus to employees and remuneration to
directors and supervisors tor 2009 and 2008 resolved by the sharcholders’ meeting
in 2010 and 2009 amounted to $0, respectively, which were in conformity with a
bonus to employees of $0 and remuneration to directors and supervisors of $0
recognized in the 2009 and 2008 financial statements.

B. There were no variations between the earnings appropriation proposed by the Board
of Directors and the earnings appropriation resolved during the general
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shareholders' meetings. The relevant information on bonuses to employees and
remuneration to directors and supervisors can be accessed through the “Market
Observation Post System” of the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation.

(3) The management of the Company estimates bonuses to employees and remuneration to
directors and supervisors in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Incorporation
and the average distribution ratios for bonuses to employees and remuneration to
directors and supervisors resolved by the shareholders’ meetings in previous years. For
the years ended December 31, 2010, the estimated bonus to employees and remuneration
to directors and supervisors amounted to $3,231 thousand and $646 thousand,
respectively. For the years ended December 31, 2009, the estimated bonus to employees
and remuneration to directors and supervisors amounted to $0 thousand, respectively
since the Company had no distribution plans for bonuses to employees and remuneration
to directors and supervisors. Thereafter, if the actual distribution amounts determined by
the shareholders’ meeting are different from estimates, the difference is treated as change
in accounting estimation and recognized as income in the next year.

33. Miscellaneous income

Item 2010 2009

Revenue from sale of $35.777 $14.020

scraps

Income trom

expropriation of leased $3.494 -

assets

Technical service 3.462 8.208

revenue

Incpme from insurance 3,460 )

claims

Rental income 3,953 3,163

Maintrame and road 2,061 2737

management

Use of computers and 2992 2.727

manpower support

Income fro.m 4026 A

compensation

Reversal of allowance 11.339 3

for doubtful accounts '

Others 55,546 47,058

Total $131,110 $77,913

34. Impairment loss
ltem 2010 2009
Impairment loss on financial assets carried at $ 5.
cost ;
Impairment {oss on non-current assets held for 3 3,302
sale
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Item 2010 2009
Impairment loss on idle assets - 5,188
Impairment loss on fixed assets 28.000 -
Total $28,000 $3,490

Impairment loss on fixed assets is a loss estimated for loss caused by floods in the current

period. Please refer to Note 42 for details.

35. Miscellaneous expense

Item 2010 2009
Idle assets depreciation $9,994 $3.462
Depreciation on leased assets 34,231 43.105
Other assets— other depreciation 855 1,229
Loss on raw material recovery 8,404 8,872
Liquidated damages 225,629 -
Others 56,007 42,174
Total $335.120 $98,842

The Company’s supplier, Trafigura Beheer B.V., terminated the purchase agreement tor

the reason that the Company and its subsidiary failed to issue L/C

under the agreement and

referred it to arbitration in LME. Both parties became reconciled on July 27, 2010. that the
Company should pay a total of US$7 million to Trafigura Company as compensation
(including US$5.5 million by the Company and US$1.5 million by the subsidiary). The
compensation borne by the Company and its subsidiary amounting to $225,629 thousand was

recorded under “Non-operating -- Miscellaneous disbursements™.

36. Personnel, depreciation, depletion and amortization expenses

2010
Item Operating Cost Operating Expense Total

Personnel

Salary $1.073.,638 $534,694 $1,608.332

Labor and health 92,740 37,385 130.125

Pension (Note 1) 77,340 30,836 108,176

Others 251,423 57,993 309416
Depreciation (Note 2} 1,694,040 169,652 1,863,692
Amartization (Note 3) 22693 42875 65,568
Total $3.211,874 $873,435 34,085,309

(Note 1): Excluding NT$ 117 thousand of pension costs included in prepayment for

equipment purchase.

(Note 2): This includes the depreciation expensc for other assets of $855 thousand stated

under “Non-operating — Miscellaneous disbursements”,

the depreciation expense

tor idle assets of $9,994 thousand, the depreciation expense for leased assets of
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$34,231 thousand, and the depreciation expense for uncompleted construction of
$118 thousand.

(Note 3): Including NT$ 24,260 thousand of amortization expense on fees paid to the lead
bank for the syndicated loan for 2008 included in interest expense.

2009
Item Operating Cost Operating Expense Total

Personnel

Salary $945,428 $480,505 $1,425933

Labor and health 77.540 37,004 114,544

insurance

Pension (Note 1) 64,297 24,690 88.987

Others 135.336 38,045 173,381
Depreciation (Note 2) 1,581,352 178,476 1,759.828
Amortization (Note 3) 21,836 50,109 71,945
Total $2.825,789 $808,329 $3,634,618

(Note 1): Excluding NT$ 307 thousand of pension costs included in prepayment for
equipment purchase.

(Note 2): This includes the depreciation expense for other assets of $1,229 thousand stated
under “Non-operating — Miscellaneous disbursements™, the depreciation expense
for idle assets of $3,462 thousand, the depreciation expense for lcased assets of

$43,105 thousand, and the depreciation expense for the uncompleted construction
of $149 thousand. ’

(Note 3). Excluding NT$26,331 thousand of amortization expense on fees paid to the lead
bank for the syndicated loan included in interest expense and NT$230 thousand of
amortization expenses on construction in progress.

37. Income Tax
(1) Net deterred income tax assets and liabilities comprise of the tfollowing:
A. Current:
Item December 31, 2010 December 31, 2009
Over provision of allowance for doubtful 5 $1.019
accounts
Unrealized foreign exchange losses (gains) 22,029 5,481

Difference between tax reporting and

. i 6.788 6,914
financial reporling — sales allowances
Unearned sales revenue 5,704 5,300
]ljr?r‘ezflxzefi value Qeclme and obsolescence 18,394 $.863
0sses on inventorics
Di ffergnce bew{een tax reporting and 236 2,362
financial reporting — gross sales
Others 3,229 996
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December 31, 2009

Deferred income tax assets of subsidiary
Total

Less: Valuation allowance

Total Deferred income tax assets, net

B. Non-current:

Item

22283 10,561
$78,668 $41,496
$78.668 $41,496

December 31, 2010

December 31, 2009

. Difference between tax reporting and
financial reporting - depreciation

Investment losses recognized under the cost
method

Investment losses (gains) recognized under
the equity method

Provision for overseas investment loss
Others
I.oss carryforwards

Deferred income tax assets of subsidiary
Subtotal
Less: Valuation allowance
Total
Cumulative translation adjustments
Realized adjustments (Note)
Total Deferred income tax assets, net

$4,261 $5,734
56,271 71426
248,964 318,040
(48.232) (84.657)
3,579 11,917

; 13.807

244,141 292,768
$508,984 $629,035
(50,203) (59,062)
$458.781 $569,973
34,554 (102,774)
(47,378) -
$445.957 $467,199

Note: This refers to exchange loss recognized based on the separate business, entity

principle of the tax law due to organizational restructuring.

(2) The components of income tax expense (benetit) are as follows:

Item

2010 2009

Income tax expense $1,949 $-
Unappropriated earnings plus 10% tax ) 20,276
payment

Deferred income tax expense (benefit) 36,671 115,791
Prior years' income tax adjustment (2,750) (55,708)
Effects of changes in Income Tax Law 47.827 77,035
Income tax expense (gain) of the Company $83,697 $157,394
Income tax expense (gain) of subsidiaries 4,389 2,156
I‘l'iot year income tax adjustment of 10 (42)
subsidiaries

Deferred tax expense (gain) of subsidiary 35,590 (4,070)
Income tax expense (bencfit) $123,686 $155,438

The Legislative Yuan revised Article § of the Income Tax Law in May 2009 to
reduce the business tax rate from 25% to 20% and in May 2010 to turther reduce the
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business tax rate from 20% to 17%, which became effective from 2010. The Company
has re-calculated deferred income tax assets or liabilities and recognized resulting
differences as income tax expenses in accordance with the revised article.

(3) Income tax payable (refundable)

December 31, 2010

Item The Company Subsidiary
Income tax expense $1,949 $1.018
Unappropriated earnings plus 10% tax ) 3371
payment )
Less: Provisional and withholding tax (810) (709)
Income tax payable (refundable) $1,139 $3.680

The subsidiary’s income tax payable amounted to $3,680 thousand, which was
separately stated as income tax payable of $3,712 thousand and prepayments of $32

thousand.
December 31, 2009
[tem The Company Subsidiary

Income tax expense $- $2.156
Unappropriated earnings plus 10% tax 20276 )
payment -

Less: Provisional and withholding tax (769) (1,371)
Income tax payable (refundable) $19,507 $785

The subsidiary’s income tax payable amounted to $785 thousand. which was
separately stated as income tax payable of $1,203 thousand and prepayments of $418

thousand.

(4) A reconciliation of income tax expense based on income before income tax at the
statutory rate and income tax payable computed in accordance with the Income Tax Act

was as follows:

Item 2010 2009

Current year income tax expense based on $66.924 $110.776

statutory income

Tax effect on adjusting items:

(1) Realized (un.rez.xllzed)‘ .ex.changc foreign 17.370 (1,035)
exchange gains or losses

(2) Tax exempted income 164 (5,570)

N i . .

(3) Loss (calq) on investment recognized (49,023) 47,421
under equity method

(C)) Reversal (provision) for overseas 23291 14658
investment loss

5) Unreall‘zefi (realized) gain on 1,199 4,482
inter-affiliate sales

(6) Book-tax difference in pension cost 2,725 (3,066)
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Item 2010 2009
(7} Provision (reversal) for loss for market
price decline and obsolete and 10,861 (46.908)

slow-moving inventories
(8) Realized (unrealized) valuation loss

(gain) on financial assets (liabilities) 37,779 (86.292)
(9) Impairment loss (2,060)
(10) Realized investment loss 47,377 (71,224)
(11) Others (32,524)
Investment tax credit (193) . (9,426)
Income tax credits derived by deduction of loss 21,737 -
Subsequent income tax savings provided by )
losses carried forward
Income tax expense of parent company for the 1.949 46.184
current year
Income tax expenses of subsidiaries tor the 1018 N
current year
Income tax expense $2,967 $2,156

(5) As of December 31, 2010, the consolidated company’s income tax returns through 2008
have been examined and approved by the tax authority.

(6) As of December 31. 2010, details of the consolidated company's unused tax credits from
promotion of business upgrading rule: None

(7) The Company’s integrated income tax information was as follows:

Item 2010 2009
Imputation credit account (ICA) $1,240,575 $1,455,439
lilgn;_;;propnated earnings generated before 111,907 111,907
Unappropriated earnings generated after 1998 2,671,898 3,557,644
Item 2010 2009
The creditable ratio for distribution of earnings 44.94% 41.46%
(estimated) (actual)

The imputation credit allocated to the sharcholders is based on the balance of the
ICA as of the date of dividend distribution. The estimated creditable ratio for 2010 mdy
change when the actual distribution of imputation credit is made.

38. Basic earnings per share

Item 2010 2009
A. Basic EPS:
Consolidated total income $465812 $202,145
;\q(il:ii;;let loss (profit) vested in minority (155.841) 83.604
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Income vested in shareholders of the

parent company's common shares

Weighted average number of outstanding

shares (thousand shares)

Weighted average number of outstanding

shares after retroactive adjustment
(thousand shares)

Basic earnings per share
Consohdated total income

Add: Net income attributable to minority

interest
Net income for the current period

attributable to common shareholders of the

parent company

2010 2009
—_—$309071 —288.749
1,526,930 1,454,219
1,526,930 1,526,930
$0.30 $0.13
(0.10) 0.06
—_— 8020 —_—30.19

Weighted average number of outstanding shares after retrospective adjustments for 2009:

1,454,219*%1.05=1.526,930

39. Related party transactions

(1) Information about the Company’s related parties were as follows:

Name of the Related Party

Relationship with the Company

Yieh Mau Corp.
Yieh United Steel Corp.
I-Shou University

Yieh Corp.

Chen Shin House Management
Consulting Co., Ltd.
E-DA Hospital

Chain Dollars Enterprise Co.. Ltd.
Broad Victory Enterprise Co., Ltd.

Yieh Hong Enterprise Co.. Ltd.
Wet Hung Investment &
Devclopment Co., Ltd.

Yu Hong Enterprise Co., Ltd.
United Brightening Development
Comp.

Asiazone Co., Limited
Unipattern Corp.

Glorious Falcon International
Limited

Lienzhong Stainless Steel Corp.

Equity-method investee
Same Chairman
Same Chairman

Chairman of the related party is a second degree
relative of the Company’s Chairman

Equity-method investee

Same Chairman

Chairman of the related party is a second degree
relative of the Company's President

Related party in substance
Related party in substance

Same Chairman
Related party in substance
Equity-method investee

Equity-method investee
Related party in substance

Subsidiary of the Company; investee accounted
for under the equity method

Related party in substance
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Eliter International Corp.
Rodan (Taiwan) Ltd.
Yieh Corporation Limited

Twsafe Inc.

Pacific Harbor Stevedoring
Corporation

Yeou Yih Steel Co., Ltd.

Sym Wang Iron Steel Co., Ltd.

E-Da Development Corp.
Synn Industrial Co., Ltd.

Name of the Related Party

NON-CONFIDENTIAL

Related party in substance
Equity-method investee
Related party in substance
Chairman of the related party is a second degree
relative of the Company’s Chairman
Chairman of the related party is a second degree
relative of the Company’s Chairman
(resigned in August 2008)
Chairman of the related party is the Company's
vice chairman
Chairman of the related party is the Company's
vice chairman
Chairman of the related party is the spouse of
the Company’s vice chairman
Equity-method investee
Equity-method investee

(To be continued)

(Brought Forward)
Relationship with the Company

Zheng Xin Security Co., Ltd.
Tianjin Lianta Precision Steel
Corporation

Chen Yung-Hsien

Lin Chi-Long
Yo Jing-Sheng
MTECH Corp

Hsing Jui Investments Limited

Equity-method investee

Subsidiary of the Company’s investee
accounted for under the equity method

Deputy Chief Finance Officer of The Company
A second degree relative of the
Company’Chairman

Deputy Finance Manager of Yieh Hsing
Chairman of the related party is a second degree
relative of the Company’s Chairman
Equity-method investee

(2) Significant related-party transactions were as follows:

A. Purchases:

PUBLIC FILE 7

2010
Name of the Related Party Amount % of net purchases
Asiazone Co.. Limited $774.219 1.42%
Yieh Hong Enterprise Co., Ltd. 2,676.378 491%
Yieh United Steel Corp. 6,978,317 12.81%
2009
Name of the Related Party Amount % of net purchascs
Asiazone Co., Limited $1,569,780 5.10%
Yieh Hong Enterprise Co., Ltd. 2,668,593 8.67%
Yich United Steel Corp. 3717138 12.08%
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Items purchased were mainly rolled steel and zinc ingot. The company
purchased from the above companies at ordinary deal terms that are equivalent to
other suppliers. Payment terms for purchases ranged from 1 to 2 months on average.

B. Operating Revenue (Sales or Services)

2010
Name of the Related Party Amount % of net sales

Gross Sales:

Yich United Steel Corp. $177,934 0.28%

Glorious Falcon International Limited 4,732952 7.53%

Chain Dollars Enterprise Co., Ltd. 75,801 0.12%

Asiazone Co., Limited 3,219,065 5.12%

Rodan (Taiwan) Ltd. 119325 0.19%

Yieh Corporation Limited 589,275 0.94%

Licnzhong Stainless Steel Corp. 312,677 0.50%

Tianyin Lianfa Precision Steel Corporation 124,013 0.20%

Others 9,262 0.01%
Revenue from sale of scraps:

Yieh United Steel Corp. 420.226 0.67%
Income trom processing:

Others 180 -
Construction revenue:

Yieh United Steel Corp. 12,536 0.02%

E-Da Development Corp. 330,120 0.53%

Eliter International Corp. 45,590 0.07%

Others 25 -

2009
Name of the Related Party Amount % of net sales

Gross Sales:

Yieh United Steel Corp. $98,766 0.22%

Chain Dollars Enterprise Co.. Ltd. 48.311 0.11%

Asiazone Co.. Limited 2,200,969 4.91%

Glorious Falcon International Limited 5,074.849 11.32%

Yieh Corporation Limited 640,035 1.43%

Lienzhong Stainless Steel Corp. 259,508 (0.58%

Tianjin Lianfa Precision Steel Corporation 153,298 0.34%

Rodan (Taiwan) Ltd. 6,702 0.01%

Others 7,034 0.02%
Construction revenue:-

Eliter International Corp. 14912 0.03%

Others l 269 -

Revenue from sale of scraps:
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2009
Name of the Related Party Amount % of net sales
Yieh United Steel Corp. 290,949 0.65%
Income from processing:
Others 448 -

a. As to the transaction price for the Company’s sale revenue from its related
parties, the transaction prices and payment terms are the same as those for
general customers with a collection period of 1 to 2 months except for Glorious
Falcon International Limited due to no other comparable transaction
counterparty of the same products (ex.. special steel products).

b. The transaction prices for the Company's scrap revenue from its related parties
are determined with reference to the purchase price at which Yieh United Steel

Corp.. makes purchase from other non-related parties. The collection term is
O/A 15 days.

¢. The construction contracts between the Company and the above related parties
were established at prices negotiated by both parties; contract procceds were
collected according to the collection clauses stated in these contracts. unless
both parites agree to an extension of the term.

C. Asset transactions:

[. Details of transactions of the Company’s purchase of property of related partics:

2010
Name of the Related Party Transaction details Amount
Construction in progress —
. . maintenance construction
Yieh United Stecl Corp. .. $192
of instruments and

equipment
Construction in progress —
manpower support scrvice

N . 1,268
tor maintenance
construction
Purchase of equipment and
. construction in progress —
Unipattern Corp. barcode printer and 8.336
computer
2009
Name of the Related Party Transaction details Amount
Unipattern Corp. Purchase of equipment $190,700
Others Purchase of equipment 554

The aforementioned payments of purchase from the rclated parties for the
construction and installation of equipment were negotiated and agreed on with each
other.
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II. Details for the Company’s sale of equipment to the related parties: ‘

2010: none.
2009 :
Name of the Related Party Description Selling Price Gain (loss) on sale !
MTECH Corp. Sale of fixed assets $101,312 $17.473

The aforementioned sale price was negotiated with each other.
D. Construction contracts

(A) Construstions performed for related partics that werc outstanding as of
December 31, 2010 are as follows:

Construction in
Total Contract  progress/Partial

Name of the Related Party Contract Details Price construction billing
E-Da Development Stegl strgcmral $11.854 $10,591
orp. engineering

Manufacturing and

Yieh United Steel Corp.  installation of plants and 50433 34,356
cranes

27,271

Others Crane and steel structure 8,500 6.285

engineering
(B) Construstions performed for related parties that were outstanding as of
December 31, 2009 are as follows:

Construction in
Total Contract  progress/Partial

Name of the Related Party Contract Details Price construction billing
E-Da Development Stegl strgctural $336.310 $291.317
Corp. engineering

Steel structural

Eliter International Corp. ; ;
engineering

49,136 38,942

Others Overhead crane

272 §
installation 13,226 6,878

The aforcmentioned contracting construction was negotiated with each other
and the payments werc coliected based on the progress of the construction.

E Balance of receivables (payables), end of vear:

2010
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% of accounts

Name of the Related Party. Amount receivable (payable)
balances at year-end
Notes receivable:
Yieh United Steel Corp. $18,222 5.71%
E-Da Development Corp. 95,793 30.03%
Others 123 0.04%
Total $114,138 35.78%
Accounts receivable:
Yieh United Steel Corp. $64,373 1.58%
Chain Dollars Enterprise Co., Ltd. 19.306 0.47%
Rodan (Taiwan) Ltd. 36,091 0.89%
Glorious Falcon International Limited 673.455 16.52%
Asiazone Co., Limited 233,079 5.712%
Tianjin Lianfa Precision Steel Corporation 22.686 0.56%
Yieh Corporation Limited 37,182 0.91%
Total $1,086,172 26.65%
Other receivable:
Synn Industrial Co., Ltd. - Cash dividends $33,300 4.52%
Yieh Hong Enterprise Co., Ltd. 11.339 1.54%
Yieh United Steel Corp. 1.864 0.25%
Others 1,603 0.22%
Total $48,106 6.53%
Prepayment:
Others $3,034 0.13%
Notes payable:
Others $4,793 0.12%
Accounts payable:
Yieh Hong Enterprise Co.. Ltd. $2.547 0.37%
Asiazone Co., Limited 1,432 0.21%
Total $3,979 0.58%
Accrued expense:
Pacific Harbor Stevedoring Corporation $2,968 0.41%
Unipattern Corp. 1,710 0.24%
Others 1,973 0.27%
Total $6,651 0.92%
Other payables:
Unipattern Corp. $7,225 3.63%
Others 1,970 0.99%
Total $9,195 4.62%
Advance receipts
Yieh Corporation Limited $22,891 7.68%
Others 79 0.03%
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2010 f
% of accounts
Name of the Related Party Amount receivable (payable)
balances at year-end
Total $22,970 7.71%
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2009
% of accounts
receivable (payable)
balances at year-end

Name of the Related Party Amount

Notes receivable:

Eliter International Corp. $144 0.07%
Total $144 0.07%
Accounts receivable:
Glonous Falcon International Limited $917,450 23.31%
Asiazone Co., Limited 417,244 10.60%
Yieh United Steel Corp. 45,365 1.15%
Lienzhong Stainless Steel Corp. 54,410 1.38%
Tianjin Lianfa Precision Steel Corporation 14.209 0.36%
Yich Corporation Limited 13.841 0.35%
Chain Dollars Enterprise Co., Ltd. 8,794 0.22%
Others 271 0.01%
Total $1.471,584 37.38%
Other receivable:
MTECH Corp. $93,132 21.71%
Synn Industnal Co., Ltd. 63,199 14.73%
Yich United Steel Corp. 44,075 10.27%
Others 5,407 1.26%
Total $205,813 47.97%
Notes payable:
Pacific Harbor Stevedoring Corporation ’ $6,576 0.33%
E-DA Hospital . 1.434 0.07%
Others 466 0.02%
Total $8.476 0.42%
Accounts payable:
ASIA ZONE CO., LIMITED $245,407 26.11%
Others 1,641 0.17%
Total $247,048 26.28%
Advance receipts:
Others : $161 0.06%
Accrued expense:
E-DA Hospital 35,041 0.80%
Pacific Harbor Stevedoring Corporation 3,140 0.50%
Others 1,667 0.27%
Total $9,848 1.57%
Other payables:
Others $738 0.49%

F.  Financing
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2010: none.

2009:

Name of the Related Party Maximum balance

Balance-ending

]

PUBLIC FILE %

Interval of interest rate
/ total amount of !
interest !

Other receivable |
Others $4,920 $- -
G. Others
(1) Rental expense:
Name of the Related Party Description 2010 2009
Others Land and building $5.555 $6.826
(2) Rent revenue .
Name of the Related Party Description 2010 2009
Others Land and building $2,936 $3,067

Yieh Hsing Company (subsidiary) leased out its land and plants to Yieh
Mao Company. Pleasc refer to Note 19 for details.

(2) Others

a. Other revenues:

2010

Financial Statement

Name of the Related Party Amount Description
Account
Yieh United Steel Corp. $20,426 Scrap revenue Other revenues
Glorious Falcop ' 4,955 Tephnolglf;al Other revenues
International Limited guidance fces
Others 7,129 :Jcamtrame use fee, Other revenues, etc.
2009
Name of the Related Party Amount Description Financial Statement
Account
Yieh United Stee! Corp. $9,103 Scrap revenue Other revenues
Glonou; Falcon _ 4.078 T c;hnolglcal Other revenues
International Linmited guidance fecs
Others 6,307 Mainframe usc fee, Other revenues, etc.

b. Other expenses:

etc.

2010

Name ot the Related Party

Amount

Financial Statement Account

Zheng Xin Security Co., Ltd.

$31,392
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Pacific Harbor Stevedoring Corporation 81,697 Export charges, etc.

E-DA Hospital

14,313 Miscellaneous expenses, etc.
Service charge and

[-Shou University 4,651 .

miscellaneous fees, etc.
Others 24561 Professional service expenses,

etc.

2009
Name of the Related Party Amount Financial Statement Account

Zheng Xin Security Co., Ltd. $30,799 Miscellaneous expenses, etc.
Pacific Harbor Stevedoning Corporation 55,568 Export charges, etc.
E-DA Hospital 14,104 Miscellaneous expenses, etc.
Lienzhong Stainless Steel Corp. 79,634 Outsourcing process tee
I-Shou University 11,359 Miscellaneous expenses, etc.
Others 12,853 Miscellaneous expenses and

Related Party

Service fees, etc.

Endorsements and guarantees:

As of December 31, 2010, the Company provided a promissory note
of $55,242 thousand as secured facility for the borrowing of HSING JUI
INVESTMENTS LIMITED from banks, which was fully drawdown.

The Company’s land located at No. 132 and 154, Kuan-Shui Section and
No. 1015 and 1016, An-Chao Section (originally stated as other assets —
others) was not allowed to be registered under the Company’s name due to
restrictions of law and temporarily registered under the name of Ling
Mei-Feng. However, the Company obtained an affidavit signed by the
registered person, who committed that she would unconditionally transfer
the ownership to the Company after the restriction was cancelled. Before
that, the Company had the full right to the use and disposal of the land. At
present, due to land readjustments, there are no more legal restrictions. The
ownership was transterred under the name of the Company in March 2009.
The land has been restated under "Fixed assets — land” from ~Other asscts —
others” amounting to $20.085 thousand.

The Company’s land, San-Ye Pi lot No.107 (presented as Other
Assets—Others) was registered under The Company’s Deputy Chief

Finance Officer, Chen Yung-Hsien. Please refer to Note 21 for a detailed
description.

Part of the land of Yieh Hsing (subsidiary) was registered under the names
of related parties as following:

Land No.

Yo Jing-Sheng
Yo Jing-Sheng

Lin Mei Feng

Kangshan Township Pai Mi Section Land No. 200-3
Niu-Shih-Keng lot lands No. 135-11, 135-12 and 135-17 situated in
Dashe Township, Kaohsiung County

Niu-Shih-Keng lot land No. 135-11 situated in Dashe Township,
Kaohsiung County
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H. Information on remuneration to directors, supervisors and the management:

Item 2010 2009
Salary $63,957 $61,280
Bonus 2,012 2,149
Professional practice 1,584 1,925
expenses
Total $67,553 $65,354

Please refer to the annual report of the sharcholders’ meeting for details for the

aforementioned remuneration.

40. PLEDGED ASSETS

The Company provided certain assets as collateral mainly for bank loans and

performance guarantee:

Item December 31, 2010 December 31, 2009
Restricted asscts- $1.555,724 $1,526.092
current
Restricted assets- 93,736 35.975
non-current
Accounts receivable 3,000 153.435
Notes receivable 5,533 -
Financial asset at fair
value through profit or - 279,243
loss — non-current
Real estate investments 2,736,585 2,736,585
Land 2,985,176 2.811,100
Buildings. net 31,832,939 3,579,796
nMefCh‘""'y equipment, 15.431,761 14,296,474
Utilities equipment 34,520 39,781
Trapsponanon 2858 7253
equipment, net ’

Other equipment 37,680 131
Other intangible assets 124,635 136,108
Other assets- other 963,956 964,798
Construction in progress - 202,170
Prcpaymem tor ; 1,471,832
equipment purchase

Idle assets, net 491,499 208,101
Leased assets, net - 619,105
Available-for-sale ) 9,675
non-current assets

Total $28,299,652 $29,127,654
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41. SIGNIFICANT COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Item December 31, 2010 December 31, 2009
(1) Guarantee notes issued for loans and $27.524.728 $25.741,517
purchases
5 ) .
(2) Performance guarantee notes received 279,847 390,140
from customers
(3) Issued but not yet used L/C
Unit: Thousand NTD
December 31, 2010 December 31, 2009
L/C Amount Security Bond L/C Amount Security Bond
USD 19,933 - Ush 29,530 USD 2,300
NTD 468,301 - NTD 293,739 -
JPY 132,162 RMB 1,300 JPY 13,406 -
EUR 182 - EUR 1,240 -

(4) Major contracts:

A. For the purpose of expanding the plant to produce zinc coated steel sheets and
painted stcel sheets, the Company entered into a superficies creation contract with

Taiwan Sugar Corporation, Kaohsiung Plant. and acquired the land use rights. The
content was as follows:

Duration of surface rights: January 1, 1996 to December 31, 2045.

Rent on land and payment method: The rent is charged annually at 10% of the

declared land value. The rent is adjusted according to any adjustment in the
declared land value.

Method of royalty payment: At the time of signing the agreement, the Company
made a royalty payment for the first 20 years at 4 times of the first rental
installment. Upon cxpiration of 20 years, royalty payment at 4 times of the first
rental installment is payable by the Company within 10 days.

As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, prepaid land use royalties to Taiwan Sugar
due within one year were $207 thousand, respectively, which were stated under
“Prepayments” and the prepaid royalties due over one year amounted to $826

thousand and $1,033 thousand, respectively, which were stated under “Other
assets — others”.

(5) As to the endorsement and guarantee given by the Company to others, please refer to
Note 43(2) for details.

6)

0]

Emmt Systems Corporation (consolidated subsidiary) continuously rented land of 4,353
square meters (location of the subsidiary’s plant) from Export Processing Zone
Administration, MOEA, Taichung Branch, which will expire at the end of November
2018 tor a period of 10 years. The monthly rental is $40 thousand.

As at December 31 2010 and December 31 2009, the Company had provided

performance and warranty guarantees totaling $33,192 thousand and $55,650 thousand,
respectively.
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(8) A dispute on business tax existed between the purchase transactions of Lien Kang Heavy
Industrial Co., Ltd, merged by the Company, during 2004 and the counterparties of
purchase presumed by National Tax Administration of Southern Taiwan Province in
December 2008. The tax amount concerning the dispute was $8,725 thousand and related
fine was $1,000 thousand. The Company submitted a request for review and
administrative remedy. The Ministry of Finance dismissed the petition on February 25,
2011. As of April 6, 2011, the Company has been evaluating whether to file an
administrative litigation. Furthermore, the Company recorded the tax amount concerning
the dispute in 2009 (stated as other losses and used to write off a tax refund).

(9) Major construction contracts:

A. Details of total estimated construction costs, total construction costs paid and the
projected year of completion with respect to significant construction contracts in
excess of NT$ 150 million outstanding as of December 31, 2010 were as follows:

Projected Year of

Total Contract Price  Construction Costs Completion
Estimated Total Paid Cumulative gains
Name of Contract Costs % of completion (losses) recognized
New Construction $330,394 372,236 2011
Project of Glor
Coljlectivc Resib(,ience 391619 98.52% (61,225)
New residential 185.702 197,139 2011
complex construction —
Du Hsiou by Kun Hsing 2120011 88.50% (26,309)
Chu Ho Fa .
Steel structure 151,857 128,304 2011
construction for Tzu
Chi’s Shuangho 136.013 90.03% 14,264
Chingszu Templc
New residential 188,326 186,938 2011
complex construction —
“Yu Shang Yuan” tor
De ShenggDevclopment 211,429 : 16.45% (23,103)
Co., Ltd
Details of total estimated construction costs, total construction costs paid and the
projected year of complction with respect to significant construction contracts in
excess of NT$ 150 million outstanding as of December 31, 2009 were as follows:
Total Contract Projected Year of
Price Construction Completion
Estimated Total Costs Paid Cumulative gains
Name of Contract Costs % of completion (losses) recognized
Installation of overhead
travelling crane for the steel $253,500 $158,191 2010
tapping operations of
Tungho Steel Corporation, 240,522 45.74% 5,936
Taoyuan
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Installation of overhead
travelling crane for the steel
refinery operations of
Tungho Steel Corporation
"New Construction Project of
Glory Collective Residence
Li JinvZhenyi Construction -
Hsinyi AS construction
project

New Construction Project of
Da Qian Collective
Residence

New residential complex
construction — Du Hsiou by
Kun Hsing Chu Ho Fa

Steel structure construction
for Tzu Chi’s Shuangho
Chingszu Temple

Steel structure construction
of E-Da Development Corp’s
theatre project

New residential complex
construction - “Yu Shang
Yuan” for De Sheng
Development Co., Ltd

42. Others

NON-CONFIDENTIAL

156,600

152,792

330,394
391,619

301,048
317,540
785,334
730,363
185,702
185,603
150.906
135,149
152,890
149,540
188,326

188,062

(1) Impairment loss on disasters

2010:

125,030

69.57%
376,370
93.28%
308,135
92.87%
670.207
36.63%
115451
10.00%
126,451
90.57%
142,561
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2010
2,649

2010
(61,225)

2010
(16,492)

2010
48,056

2010
10

2010
14,270

2010

2011

The Company suffered losses on flood damage to part of the production equipment
and inventories caused by Typhoon Fanapi. The primary estimates for loss on tlood

damage to inventories and production equipment are as follows:

Item

property, Plant &

Inventories o Total
Equipment

Realized loss amount $68,621 $82,003 $150,624
Estimated loss amount - 262,716 262,716
Total $68,621 $344.719 $413,340
Estimated claim (63,621) (316,719) (385.340)
payment

Loss amount assumed % $28.000 $28.000
by the Company

a. The aforementioned loss attributable to inventories amounted to $68,621 thousand
and the loss attributable to fixed assets amounted to $344,719 thousand. Although
inventories and fixed assets are insured, the Company has to assume the minimum

NON-CONFIDENTIAL
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deductible of $28,000 thousand (stated under non-operating — impairment loss). The
remainder may be claimed against the insurance company (stated under other

receivables). As of December 31, 2010, the insurance company has been conducting
the claim.

b. Estimated fixed assets suffering flood damage amounted to $262,716 thousand,
stated under “Fixed assets — accumulated impairment loss”.

2009: none.

Others:

(a) In June 2010, the Company’s Board of Director resolved the revision of the
investment structure of the Company’s investment in Yieh Phui (China)
Technomaterial Co., Ltd.. through YIEH PHUI (HONG KONG) HOLDING
LIMITED instead of MICKEY REGENT INC., which has been submitted to
Investment Commission for approval. As of December 31, the aforementioned
revision of the investment structure has been completed.

(b) The subsidiary —Yieh Hsing Enterprise Co., Ltd. completed the funding of
$1,200,000 thousand through private placement. The original purpose was to build
the Ping-Nan Carbon Steel Electric Arc Furnace Plant. However, the schedule for
the plant construction was uncertain due to environmental evaluation. Based on the
Company’s benefit, the Board of Director resolved in June 2010 to change the
purpose for the unused fund of $1,124,000 thousand to repay borrowing from banks
in order to improve the Company’s financial structure.

(c) The subsidiary —Yieh Hsing Enterprise Co., Ltd. resolved in April 2009 to conduct a
capital increase by cash through private placement. It planned to raise NTDI1 billion
to repay borrowing from banks and to improve the financial structure. The
subscription price per share was temporarily set at $4.6. However, as stated in (b)
above, capital raised for the construction of the electric furnace-based Pingnan
carbon steel refinery had already been changed to repay bank borrowings and
improve financial structure; after considering the necessity and appropriateness of
another capital raising plan from a subjective as well as an objective perspective, it

was decided to forgo this private placement during the annual general meeting held
in June 2010.

Key reinvestment information

The Board of Director of the Company approved the reinvestment of $500,000
thousand in Shin-Yang Steel Co., Ltd. in January 2011. As of April 6, 2011, the rclevant
procedures of the establishment of the atorementioned reinvestment have been
completed and the relevant investment capital has been fully received.
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(4) Information on the Company’s financial assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies with significant influence is summarized as follows:

Unit: Thousand NTD

December 31, 2010 December 31, 2009
Foreign Exchange New Taiwan Foreign Exchange New
ltem Currency $ Rate - Dollars Currency $ Rate Taiwan
Dollars

Financial assets
Monetary items
USD 153,812 29.13 4,480,532 140,852 31.99 4,505,850
JPY 3 0.3582 1 2 0.347 1
EUR 737 3892 28,668 708 46.1 32,630
AUD 0 29.68 0 367 30.45 11,186
RMB 457,710 4.3985 2,013,236 257,357 4.685 1,205,715
HK 8 3.748 31 8 4.126 33
Non-monetary items (measured at fair value)
USD 512 29.13 14,910 501 31.99 16,023
JPY 1,158 0.3582 415 1,327 0.3582 461
Long-term investment under equity method
usD 134,300 29.13 3,912,152 134,900 3199 4.319.598
JPY 7,062 0.3582 2,530 16,787 0.347 5.828

Financial liabilities
Monctary items

usD 133,411 29.13 '3.886,272 179,313 31.99 5,736,253
JPY 824 0.3582 295 2,934 0.3472 1,019
RMB 981,289 4.3985 4,316,197 950,328 4.685 4,452,287
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43. ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES

1. Information on major transactions (before consolidated write-off)

(M
)
3
G

(5
(6)
)
®)

&)

Loans to others: TABLE 1.
Endorsements and gﬁarantees: TABLE 2.
Marketable securities held at period-end: TABLE 3.

Marketable securities acquired and disposed of at costs or prices of at least nt$100
million or 20% of the paid-in capital: TABLE 4.

Acquisition of real estate properties exceeding NTD 100 million or 20% of paid in
capital: none

Disposal of individual real estate properties at prices of at ieast NT$100 million or
20% of the paid-in capital: none

Total purchases from or sales to related parties amounting to at least NT$100
million or 20% of the paid-in capital: TABLE 5.

Receivable from related parties amounting to at least NT$100 million or 20% of the
paid-in capital: TABLE 6.

Derivative transactions: Please refer to Notes 5 and 45 for further details.

(10) Business relationship and important transactions between parent company and

(5]

& W

subsidiaries: TABLE 7

Information on Investee Companies: TABLE 8.
Information on investment in Mainland China: TABLE 9.

Organizational chart of affiliates: TABLE 10
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PUBLIC FILE
NON-CONFIDENTIAL

44. Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities

Assets and liabilities relating to steel structural construction business of the Company
and its subsidiaries are classified as current or noncurrent based on their operating cyclcs.
Related recorded amounts are based on amounts expected to be collected or repaid within one
year and over one year after the balance sheet date, which are summarized as follows:

December 31, 2010
Due within one

Item ) Due after one year Total
vear
Assets
Cash & cash equivalents $4.677.641 $- $4.677,641
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss Assets~ Current ¢ 795,292 . 795,292
Not?s receivable (incl. related 318.293 ; 318.293
parties)
Acc9unts receivable (incl. related 4.024.721 ) 4.024.721
parties)
Olhgr receivable (incl. related 730.408 3 730,408
parties)
Inventories 8,165,053 249722 8.414.775
Prepayment 2,366,596 - 2.366.596
Deferred income tax assets- current 78.668 - 78,668
Restricted assets- current 1,555,724 - 1,555,724
Total $22,712,396 $249,722 $22.962,118
Liabilities
Short-term loan $7,350,194 $- $7.350,194
Short-term bills payable 679.048 - 679,048
Notes payable (incl. related parties) 4,160,035 - 4,160,035
Accgums payable (incl. related 680.577 ; 680.577
parties) X '
Income tax payable 4,851 - 4,851
Accrued expense 717,974 - 717974
Other payables 198.957 - 198,957
Advance receipts 298,183 - 298.183
L.ong-term liabilities- current portion 1,516,043 - 1,516,043
Long-term liabiiity
Total $15.605,862 $- $15,605,362
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December 31, 2009

Due within one

[tem Due after one year Total
year
Assets
Cash & cash equivalents $3,549,873 $- $3,549.873
Financial assets at fair value through -
profit or loss Assets— Current 1,009,038 R 1,009,038
Bon(’! investments with no active 2,000 ) 2,000
market- Current
Notes receivable 215,726 - 215,726
Accpunts receivable (incl. related 3,871,691 } 3.871,691
parties)
Othgr Teceivable (incl. related 429,031 A 429,031
parties)
Inventories - 6.529,845 112,570 6.642,415
Prepayment 2,148,199 - 2,148,199
Available-for-sale non-current assets 9,675 - 9.675
Deferred income tax assets- current 41,496 - 41,496
Restricted assets- current 1,526,092 - 1,526,092
Total $19,332,666 $112,570 $19,445,236
Liabilities
Short-term loan $10.335,279 $- $10,335,279
Short-term bills payable 750,705 - 750,705
Notes payable 2.015.824 - 2,015.824
Accpums payable (incl. related 939,867 A 939,867
partics)
Income tax payable 20,710 - 20,710
Accrued expense 627.540 - 627,540
Other payables 151,485 - 151,485
Advance receipts 284.438 - 284.438
Long-term liabilitics- current portion 3,775,888 - 3,775.888
Long-term liability
Total $18.,901,736 $- $18.901.736
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45. Disclosures for financial instruments

(1) Disclosures for financial instruments

Non-derivative Financial Instruments

PUBLIC FILE

December 31, 2010

Carrying Amount Fair Value
Assets
Cash & cash equivalents $4.677,641 $4.677.641
Financial assets at fair value through protit or loss 789,015 789.015
assets— Current
Notes and accounts receivable 5,073.422 5,073,422
Restricted assets- current 1,555,724 1,555,724
Financial assets carried at cost— Non-current 2,760,118 -
Refundable deposits 16,572 16,572
Restricted assets— Non-current 93,786 93,786
Liabilities
Short-term loan 7.350.194 7,350.194
Short-term bills payable 679.048 679,048
Notes and accounts payable 5.039.569 5.039.569
Long-term liabilities- current portion 1,516,043 1,516,043
Long-term loans 20.092.491 20.092,491
[.ease payable 7.962 7,962
Deposit received 3,712 3712
Derivative Financial Instruments
Assets
Financial assets at fair value tAhrough' prpﬁt or loss 6277 6.277
Assets— Current Investment-linked life insurance
Liabilitics
Financia'l assct af fair vah.le through profit or loss -- 4483 4483
non-current Interest rate swap contract

NON-CONFIDENTIAL
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Non-derivative Financial Instruments

PUBLIC FILE

December 31, 2009

Carrying Amount

Fair Value

Assets

Cash & cash equivalents

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Assets— Current

Bond investments with no active market— Current
Notes and accounts receivable

Restricted assets- current

Financial assets carried at cost— Non-current
Bond investments with no active market—
Non-current

Refundable deposits

Restricted assets— Non-current

Liabilities

Short-term loan
Short-term bills payable
Notes and accounts payable
Long-term liabilitics- current portion
Long-term loans
Lease payable
Deposit received
Derivative Financial Instruments

Assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Assets— Current Investment-linked life insurance

Financial asset at fair value through profit or loss -
non-current Structured investments

A. The methods and assumptions used to estimate the fair values of the above tinancial
instruments are summarized as follows:

(A) For short-term instruments, the fair values were determined based on their
carrying amounts because of the short maturities of the instruments. This
method was applied to cash and cash equivalents, notes and accounts
reccivable, restricted assets- current, short-term loans. short-term bills payable

$3.549.873
1,002,132

2,000
4,516,448
1,526,092
2,765,998

4,000

58,776
85,975

10,335,279
750,705
3,107.176
3,775.888
15,727.388
10,123
1,687

6,906

279243

$3,549,873
1,002,132

2,000
4,516,448
1,526,092

4.000

58,776
85,975

10,335,279
750.705
3.107,176
3,775,888
15.727.388
10,123
1,687

6,906

279,243

notes and accounts payable, long-term liabilities- current portion.

(B) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:

The fair values of financial assets at fair value through profit of loss are

()

determined at their market value. If there is no market value available for

reference, the fair values are determined by using the valuation technique. The
information used as basis for determining the Company’s assumptions in

NON-CONFIDENTIAL
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applying valuation technique is consistent with that used by market
participants in determining the prices of the financial instruments. The
Company is capable of obtaining such information.

(C) Financial assets carried at cost— Non-current:

Financial assets carried at cost are financial instruments issued by
non-public corporations which do not have active market price and whose
verifiable fair value cannot be determined at a reasonable cost.

(D) The fair value of bond investments with no active market is determined at
amortized cost.

(E) Other non-current financial assets and liabilities consisted of refundable
deposit, restricted assets-non-current and deposits received. Since the amounts
collectible in the future closely resemble their book values, the book values are
used as estimates for fair values.

(F) Derivative Financial Instruments:

The fair value of derivative financial instruments is determined by using
the valuation technique as no market price is available. The information used
as basis for determining the Company's assumptions in applying valuation
technique is consistent with that used by market participants in determining
the prices of the financial instruments. The fair value was provided by the
counterparty financial institution.

(G) Long-term loan and lease payable:

The fair values thereof are detenmined by the present values of future
cash flows.The values discounted at the interest rates of similar fong-term loan
and leasc payable (with similar matuirty date) available for the Company.

The fair values of the Company’s financial assets and liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss excluding those of listed (OTC) shares and funds, which are
determined at their quoted market prices, are determined using valuation
techniques.

Gains (losses) recognized for 2010 and 2009 based on changes in fair value
estimated by valuation methods amounted to ($4,575) thousand and $2,592
thousand, respectively. Gains (losses) recognized for 2010 and 2009 based on
changes in fair value determined by open quotation amounted to ($222,272)
thousand and $341,098 thousand, respectively.

At December 31, 2010 and 2009, financial assets exposed to cash flow risk of
changes in interest rate amounted to $3.854,424 thousand and $3,203.861 thousand,
respectively; and financial liabilities amounted to $28,966,690 thousand and
$29,761,319 thousand, respectively. Fair values of financial assets exposed to the
risk of interest rate change totaled NT$1,650,056 thousand and NT$1,492,085
thousand for 2009 and 2008, respectively, while financial liabilities totaled
NT$679,048 thousand and NT$819.401 thousand, respectively.

On December 31, 2010 and 2009, the total interest income of the financial assets or
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss that are not cvaluated based on fair
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value amounted to $26,778 thousand and $46,551 thousand, respectively, and the
interest expense totaled $795,135 thousand and $738,770 thousand, respectively.

(2) Information of major financial risk
A. Market risk

a. The Company’s investment in Funds and listed (OTC) stocks were classified
as “financial assets at fair value through profit or loss- current”. These assets

were measured at their fair values. which will be influenced by the market
interest rate change.

b. The Company undertook investment in subordinate financial bonds, which are
mostly, issued at floating interest rates. The impact of market interest rate
changes on the fair values was considered to be immaterial.

B. Creditrisk

(a) Credit risk represents the potential loss that would be incurred by the
Company if the counter-parties or third parties breached the contracts. The
Company's financial instruments are affected by its credit risk concentration,
component, contract amounts and other receivables. The maximum credit
risks associated with the financial instruments on hand as of the balance sheet
date approximate their carrying amounts.

(b) Please refer to Note 5 for the credit risks associated with company’s
investments in credit-linked structured products.

C. Liquidity risk

(a) The consolidated companies maintained sufficient fund to meet our operating
capital requirements. Therefore, no liquidity risks associated with failure to
source required funding are anticipated.

(b) Part of the Company’s equity investments (financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss) could be sold rapidly at prices approximating fair value
because those financial assets could be sold in secondary financial market at
market value. There are liquidity risks for the financial assets carried at cost
and bond investments with no active market because no active market prices
are available.

(c) Please refer to Note 5 for the liquidity risks associated with company’s
investments in credit-linked structured products.

D. Cash flow risk due to changes in interest rate
The Company’s short and long-term loans are mostly issued at floating interest
ratc. Accordingly, the yicld rate of these debt instruments will fluctuate with

changes in intcrest rate. A 1% increase in interest rate will result in an additional
cash outflow of NT$ 289,667 thousand.

46. Reclassification of account

Certain accounts in the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2009 have

been reclassified to be consistent with the presentation of the financial statements for the year
ended December 31, 2010.

NON-CONFIDENT!IAL
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(1) Financial information disclosure by industry: Criteria for disclosure were unimet.
(2) Information by district:

2010
Item Asia Tatwan Adjustment and Total
offset
Revenue from $18,307,275 $44,069,091 3- $62.876.366
customers other than
the parent company and
consolidated
subsidiaries
Revenue from the 299,672 1.251,573 (1.551,243) -
parent company and
consolidated
subsidiaries
Toral net revenue $19.106.947 $45.320.664 ($1.551,245) $62.876.366
Income (loss) by area $497.225 $1,401.284 $15.707 $1.925.536
General revenue 322048
Investment loss (97.536)
recognized under equity
method
General expenses (763,432)
Intercst expense (797.118)
Income before tax $589.498
Recognizable assets $16,202,986 $58.249.979 ($9.617,424) $64,835,541
2009
Item Asia Taiwan Adjustment and Tortal
offset
Revenue from $11.831.379 $32,988.634 S- $44.820.013
customers other than
the parent company and '
consolidated
subsidianes
Revenue trom the 424,183 1.158.936 (1.583.119)
parent company and
consolidated
subsidiarics
Total net revenue $12,255,362 $34,147,570 ($1.583.119) $44.820,013
Income (loss) by area 195.927 $458,682 $24.829 $679.438
General revenue 552,091
Investment loss 9,239
recognized under equity
method
General expenses (144,413)
Interest expense {738,770)
Income before tax $357,583
Recognizable asscts $15,880,691 - $58.718.932 ($10,114,761) $64,484,862
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(3) Information on export:
Territory 2010 2009
America $7,107,763 $4,042,005
Asia 16,604,752 13,178.371
Europe 2,926,612 2,534,667
Other areas 5,676,840 3,494 430
Total $32,315,967 $23.249.473

(4) Information by key customers:

2010
Customer Name Amount Percentage
Company A $4,732,952 7.53%
2009
Customer Name Amount Percentage
Company A $5,074,849 11.32%
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YIEH PHUI ENTERPRISE CO,, LTD.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEARS
ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009 AND 2008
WITH INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
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Crowe Horwath Certified Public Accountants

A member of Crowe Horwath Intemational

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Yich Phui Enterprise Co., Ltd.

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Yieh Phui Enterprise Co., Ltd. as of
December 31, 2009 and 2008, and the related statements of income. changes in stockholders’
equity and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on our audits. We didn't andit the financial statements of
certain long-term investments accounted for using the equity method as of and for the years
ended December 31. 2009 and 2008. Our opinion, insofar as it relates to the carrying values of
these investments of NT$416.805 thousand and NT$3.536.893 thousand as of December 31,
2009 and 2008, respectively, and the related investment income (loss) amounting to
(NTS$16.578)  thousand and (NT$103,948) thousand for the years ended December 31.
2009 and 2008. respectively. as well as the related information. is solely based on the reports
of the other auditors.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
Republic of China and the Rules Governing the Audit of Financial Statements by Certified
Public Accountants. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit includes examining. on a test basis. evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

—_3—
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In our opinion, based on our audits and the other auditors’ reports, these financial statements
. referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Yieh Phui
Enterprise Co., Ltd. as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, and the results of its operations and
cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with the Guidelines Governing the
Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers, the requirements of the Business
Accounting Law and the Guidelines Governing Business Accounting with respect to financial
accounting standards, and accounting principles generally accepted in the Republic of China.

As disclosed in Note 3 to the financial statements, on January 1, 2009, the Company adopted
the newly revised Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 10, “Accounting for
Inventories”. The adoption resulted in a decrease of NT$18,759 thousand in net income and a
decrease of NT$0.01 in earnings per share for the year ended December 31, 2009. And
beginning January 1, 2008, Yieh Phui Enterprise Co., Ltd. has recognized employee bonus
and remuneration paid to directors and supervisors as expenses instead of appropriations from
eamings according to the Interpretation (96) No.52 issued by Accouming Research and
Development Foundation. The change of accounting principle resulted in an increase of
NT$5,317 thousand in liabilities and a decrease of NT$5,317 thousand in net income as of
and for the year ended December 31, 2008,

We have also audited the consolidated statements of Yieh Phui Enterprise Co., Lid and
subsidiaries as of and for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, and have expressed a
modified unqualified opinion with an explanatory paragraph on such financial statements.

Chwe [brepath Intorralonal

CROWE HORWATH INTERNATIONAL
Kaohsiung, Taiwan

Republic of China

April 21, 2010

—3.1—
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NON-CONFIDENTIAL PUBLIC FILE S8
YIEH PHUI ENTERPRISE CO.. LTD.
INCOME STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009 AND 2008
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

2009 2008
Item Note Amount Fo Amount %
OPERATING REVENUE
GROSS SALES $26.895.508 101.33 $40,265.927 10195
LESS: SALES RETURNS & ALLOWANCES 354.487 1.33 770.580 1.95
NET SALES 2 $26.541.021 100.00 $39.495.347 100.00
COST OF SALES 1 24,625.764 92.78 35573993 90.07
GROSS PROFIT (LOSS) $1.915,257 7.22 $3.921 354 9.94
UNREALIZED GRQSS PROFIT FROM AFFILIATE.2 26.500 0.10 8.572 0.02
l:::::‘I'L'I;tfrl:'::KUbb PRUELL PRUM ) 3,571 0.03 14.306 o
OPERATING EXPENSES
Selling and Marketing 1.013.762 18 1.549.981 392
General and administrative 344.829 1.30 392.366 1.00
Total operating expenses $1.358.591 5.12 $1.942,347 4.92
INCOME FROM OPERATIONS $538.737 2.03 $2,014.741 5.14
NONOPERATING INCOME AND GAINS
Interest income $8.273 0.03 $18.341 0.05
Investment income 20.598 0.08 120695 0.30
Gain on disposal of property. plant & equipment 3.288 0.0} -
Gain on disposal of investments 18.709 0.07 -
Foreign exchange gain 2 - - 98.246 0.25
Valuation gain on financial assets 2 345.168 1.30 - -
Miscellaneous income 49.459 0.19 56,285 0.14
Total nonoperating income and gains 3445495 1.68 $293.567 0.74
NONOPERATING EXPENSES AND LOSSES
Interest expense $284.351 1.07 $345,109 0.87
f:::is’{glcn( 10SS reCognizey under e equity 514 139 635 072 319392 08l
Investment loss 30 2,003 - - -
Loss on disposal of property, plant & equipment 2518 0.01 12,241 0.03
Loss on disposa! of investments - . 129
Foreign exchange loss 2 36,807 0.14 - -
Impairment loss 2.30 8.490 0.03 244,448 0.62
Valuation loss on financial assets 2 - - 25.151 0.07
Miscellaneous expenses 17,235 0.07 31,360 0.08
Total nonoperating expenses and losses $541.089 2.04 $977,830 248
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX $443.143 1.67 $1,330.478 3.37
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 232 157.394 0.59 312,157 0.79
NLET INCOME $285.749 1.08 $1.018.321 258
Before After Before After
Income Tax Income Tax Income Tax Income Tax
EARNINGS PER SHARE 33
Basic earnings per share 30.30 $0.20 $0.89 $0.68

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
with Crowe Horwath Intemational audit report dated April 21, 2010)
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YIEH PHUI ENTERPRISE CO., LTD.
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009 AND 2008

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Item 2009 2008

1.Cash flows from operating activities
Net income $285.749 $1,018,321
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 1.000.969 974,084
Depreciation of idle assets 2,548 3947
Amortization 6312 5.371
Depreciation of other assets - others 1.229 1.228
Investment loss 2.003 -
Loss on purchase contract (16.010) 16.010
Other income transferred from allowance for doubtful - (12.332)
accounts
Impairment loss 8490 244448
Investment income (loss) recognized under the equity method 189.685 319.392
Loss (gain) on disposal of investments (18.709) 129
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment (3.288)
Loss on retirement of property, plant and equipment 2518 12,241
Loss (gain) on disposal of noncurrent assets held for sale - 387
Loss (gain) on disposal of idle asseets (216) 65
Loss (gain) on retirement of idle assets 150 -
Expense transferred from property, plant and equipment 941 561
Decrease (increase) in overdue receivables 3.600 3.600
Unrealized gross profit (loss) from aftiliates 26.500 8,572
Realized gross profit (loss) from affiliates (8.57H (44.306)
Realized loss (gain} on toreign exchange - (69.335)
Valuation (gain) loss on financial assets (345.168) 25.151
Provision for (reversal of) loss on inventories (902.070) 811,585
Decrease (increase) in financial assets at fair value through 38.081 (610.478)

profit or loss - current

—7—
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Item 2009 2008
Decrease (increase) in notes receivable 20,093 30,962
Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable (175.209) 1,241,668
Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable - related (1,096,057) 1,302,593
parties
Decrease (increase) in other receivables - related (5.261) 14,656
parties
Decrease (increase) in other receivables (22.470) 25411
Decrease (increase) in inventories .1.208.212 (747,933)
Decrease (increase) in prepayments (147,095) 31.984
Decrease (increase) in deferred inome tax assets 192.826 (223.275)
Increase (dcrease) in notes payable (310.936) (252,292)
Increase (dcrease) in accounts payable 202.385 (341,399
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable - related parties 108,569 23,748
Increase (decrease) in other payables 12.022 23.089
Increase (decrease) in income tax payable (249.018) 28415
Increase (decrease) in accrued expenses 38.075 (198.865)
Increase (decrease) in advanc receipts (1.661) (5.399)
Increase (decrease) in compensation for accrued interest - 1.162
Net cash provided by operating activities $49.118 $3,663,166
2.Cash flows from investing activities
Decreas (increase) in financial assets at fair value through ($280.000) $
profit or loss - noncurrent
Decreasc (increase) in restricted assets 26.756 76.055
Proceeds from disposal of properyt, plant and equipment 13.307 508
Proceeds from disposal of noncurrent assets held for sale - 177.479
Proceeds trom disposal of idle assets 14,286 -
Decrease (increase) in sinking tund - 76,500
Increase in investments accounted tor using the equity (381.240) (9.555.365)
method
Increase in financial assets caivied at cost - (486.057) (272.901)
noncurrent
Acquisition of property. plant and equipment (234 ,407) (504.172)
— 7 -
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[tem 2009 2008
Decrease (increase) in guarantee deposits paid 2.180 61.187
Decrease (increase) in deffered charges - (22,000)
Proceeds from disposal of bond investments with no active 2.000 22,000
market
Withdrawal from invesment accounted for using the equity - 3,180.590
method
Withdrawal from tinancial assets carried at cost - noncurrent 32.901 -
Decrease in other receivables at beginning balance 12.600 301.266
Decrease (Increase) in other assets - others (20,258) (12.74%)

Net cash used in investing activities

($1.297,932)

($6.471.598)

3.Cash flows from financing activities
Increase (decrease) in short-term loans
Increase (decrease) in short-term bills payable
Increase (decrease} in long-term loans
Increase {decreasc) in bonds payable
Decrease (increase) in treasury stock
Cash dividends paid
Bonus to employees

Remuneration to directors and supervisors

Net cash provided by financing activitics

4 Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

S5.Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period

6.Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period

7.Supplementary information of cash flows:
(1) Interest paid

Less: Interest capitalized

Interest paid, excluding interest capitalized

(2) Income tax paid

(3) Non-cash investing and financing activities:

Current portions of long-term loans

Transfer of financial assets carried at cost to investments

accounted for using the equity method

Transfer of properties to noncurrent assets held for sale

Transfer of properties to inventories

$1,061.087 $2.214.786
50.499 149.174
281.500 3,508.000

- (75.586)

- (418.867)
(282.372) (694.835)

; (6.119)

- (1,224)
$1.110.714 $4.675.329
($138,100) $1.866.897
2,439,657 572,760
$2,301.557 $2.439,657
$296.069 $354.340

(4,146) (11.284)
$291,923 $343.056
$213,586 $507.017
$782,000 $1.011.500
- $285,000

$12,977 R

$464 $9,215

—72-

NON-CONFIDENTIAL




NON-CONFIDENTIAL

PUBLIC FILE $3

Cash received

ltem 2009 2008

(4)Acquisition of properties by providing cash and

making loans:

Acquisition of properties $255.880 $537,636

Transfer of other assets - others to properties (20,085) -

Transfer of inventorics to properties (7.869) (40,029)

Decrease (increase) in equipment payable 6,481 8,392

Transfer of idle asscts to properties - (1.827)

Cash paid $234.407 $504,172
(5) Disposal of financial assets carried at cost

by receiving cash and increasing receivables:

Proceeds from disposal of finacial assets carried at $38.781 $12.600

cost - noncurrent

Increase in other receivables (5,880) (12,600)

Cash received $32.901 -
(6) Cash dividends received from equity method investees:

Cash dividends received from equity method investees $33.300 $29.400

Increase in other receivables (33,300) (29.400)

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

with Crowe Horwath International audit report dated April 21, 2010)

—7-3--
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YIEH PHUI ENTERPRISE CO., LTD. PUBLIC FILE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009 AND 2008

(Amounts In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Unless Specified Otherwise)

1.

»

GENERAL

(1) Yieh Phui Enterprise Co., Lid. (the Company) was incorporated on April 14. 1978. The
Company's shares are currently traded on the Taiwan Stock Exchange. The Company engages
in the processing, marketing and exporting of rolled steel coils. refined steel. molded steel.
steel and iron wires, galvanized, pre-painted, and surface treated metal.

(2) The Company's board of directors resolved on May 23. 2005 to merge (simplified merger)
with Lien Kang Heavy Industrial Co.. Ltd. with the Company as the surviving company. The
record date of the merger was set on August 30. 2005. Every 2.5 common shares of Lien Kang
Heavy Industrial Co., Lid. were converted into | common share of the Company. The
Company issued additional 4,859 thousand common shares for this merger. Rights of the
newly issued shares were the same as those of the Company's original shares.

(3) Lien Kang Heavy Industrial Co., l.td. was incorporated on November 23, 1989. Its main
activities include the manufacturing. processing and trading of the various mechanical spare
parts and pipe installation. manufacturing and engincering design.

(4) As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Company had 1,499 and 1.521 employces.
respectively.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation

The Company’s financial statements have been presented in conformity with the Guidelines
Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers. requirements of the

Business Accounting Law and Guidelines Governing Business Accounting and accounting
principles generally accepted in the Republic of China.

For the convenience of readers. the Company’s financial starements have been trunsiated into
English from the original Chinese version prepared and used in the ROC. If there is any
conflict between the English version and the original Chinese version or any difference in the
interpretation of the two versions. the Chinese-language financial statements shall prevail.

The Company’s significant accounting policies are summarized as follows:

—§--
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(1) Accounting for Long-term Construction Contracts

The percentage-of-completion method of accounting for long-term construction projects is
adopted when the construction period exceeds one year and the contract.price, the completion
cost, and the extent of construction progress can be reasonably estimated. The construction
costs incurred are recorded as ““work in progress”. Advance receipts on construction contracts
are recorded as “advance contract receipts”. At each vear-end. the percentage-of-completion
method is used for estimating aggregate contract gain less aggregate contract gain recognized
in prior period. and the resulting difference is recognized currently. However. if the aggregate
gain recognized in prior period exceed that computed at the end of the current period. the
excess is recognized as contract loss currently. When a loss is estimated on construction
contracts. the entire estimated loss should be recognized immediately. If in the future such
estimated loss is reduced, then the loss should be reversed and the resulting gain recognized
currently.

(2) Current and Noncurrent Assets and Liabilities

A. Rolled Steel Department:

Current assets are assets held for trading purposes and assets expected to be converted to cash.
sold or consumed within one year from the balance sheet date. Current labilities are
obligations incurred for trading purposes and obligations expected to be settled within one year
from the balance sheet date. Assets and liabilities that are not classified as current are non-
current assets and liabilities, respectively.

B. Heavy Industry Department:

The assets and Habilities related to construction business are classified either as current or
noncurrent based on the Company's operating cycle.

(3) Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents include treasury bills, time deposits rescindable anytime. commercial papers,
bankers' acceptance, and repurchase agrrements collateralized by bonds with maturities of
three months or less from the date of purchase. The carrying value approximates their fair
value.

(4) Financial Instruments at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss

Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets or liabilities
held for trading, and financial assets or liabilities designated on initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss. These financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value
with transaction costs expensed as incurred. When subsequently measured at fair value, the
changes in fair value are recognized in earnings. Cash dividends received, including those
received in the year of investment, are recognized as current income. A regular way purchase
or sale of financial assets is accounted for using settlement date accounting.

Derivatives that do not meet the criteria for hedge accounting are treated as financial assets or
liabilities held for trading. When the fair value is a positive amount, the derivative is treated as

a financial asset. when the fair value is a negative amount, the derivative is treated as a
financial hability.

NON-CONFIDENTIAL
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The fair value is determined as follows: (a) publicly traded stocks are based on the closing
price on the balance sheet date: (b) beneficiary certificates - open-end-funds are based on the
net asset value on the balance sheet date; (c) bonds are based on the reference prices in the
OTC market on the balance sheet date; (d) financial assets and financial liabilities without
quoted prices in an active market are determined using valuation techniques.

Financial assets or liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss are hybrid financial
instruments. Financial instruments are designated as financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss upon initial recognition to remove significant accounting inconsistency. Portfolios of
assets and liabilities jointly managed in accordance with the Company’s risk management
policies and specific investment strategies were also designated al fair value.

(5) Bond Investments With No Active Market

Investment that does not have a quoted market price in an active market and the receipt upon
maturity is fixed or definite is carried at the amortized cost. Those financial assets are initially
recognized at fair value plus transaction cost that are directly attributable to the acquisition.
Earnings or losses are recognized at the time of derecognition, impairment or amortization. A
regular way purchase or sale of financial assers is accounted for uvsing settlement date
accounting.

If there is objective evidence that a financial asset is impaired, an impairment loss is
recognized. If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease is clearly attributable to an event which occurred after the impairment loss was
recognized. the previously recognized impairment loss is reversed to the extent of the decrease.
The reversal should not result in a carrying amount of the financial asset that exceeds the
amortized cost.

(6) Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Allowance for doubtful accounts is estimated based on bad debt experience and also

examining the collectibility and aging analysis of notes receivable. accounts receivable,
overdue receivables and various credits.

(7) Inventories

A. Rolled Steel department

Inventories include raw materials, supplies, work in process. and finished goods. Prior 1o
January 1, 2009. inventories were stated at the lower of cost or market value. Any write-down
was made on a total-inventory basis. Market value represented replacement cost for raw
materials and supplies. and net realizable value for work in process and finished goods. As
stated in Note 3. effective January 1, 2009, inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net
realizable value. Inventory write-downs are made on an item-by-item basis. cxcept where it
may be appropriate to group similar or related items. Net realizable value is the estimated
selling price of inventories less all estimated costs of completion and necessary selling costs.
Inventory cost is determined by the weighted-average method.

B. Heavy Industry Department

The construction in progress is based on "Accounting for Long-term Construction Contracts .
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So




NON-CONFIDENTIAL PUBLIC FILE

(8) Prepayments - Deferred Marketing Expenses

The deferred marketing expenses are incurred to contracts within ! year adopted the completed
contract method for the construction. The related marketing expenses of the construction in
progress will be deferred to the year of completion in order to be in accordunce with the
income.

(9) Investments Accounted for Using the Equity Method

Investments accounted for using the equity method in which the Company owns 20% or more
of the outstanding voting shares or where the Company has significant influence on the
investees are accounted for using the equity method.

Prior to January 1. 2006, the difference between the acquisition cost and the Company's
proportionate share in the investee's equity was amortized by the straight-line method over five
years. Effective January 1. 2006. pursuant to the revised Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards. the acquisition cost in excess of the Company's share of the fair value of the
identifiable net assets acquired is recognized as goodwill. Such goodwill is not amortized but
instead 1s tested for impairment annually or whenever there are indications that the
investments are impaired.

The excess of the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired over the acquisition cost is
used to reduce the fair value of each of the noncurrent assets acquired (except for financial
assets other than investments accounted for by the equity method, noncurrent assets held for
sale, deferred income tax-assets, prepaid pension or other postretirement benefit) in proportion
to the respective fair valucs of the noncurrent assets. with any excess recognized as an
extraordinary gain. Effective January 1. 2006, the accounting treatment for the unamortized
investment premium arising on acquisitions before January 1. 2006 is the same as that for
goodwill and the premium is no longer being amortized. For any investment discount arising
on acquisitions before January 1. 2006, the unamortized amount continues to be amortized
over the remaining years.

If the investment in and investee and any advances to the investee have been reduced to zero,
the Company will discontinue recognizing its investment loss. But if (a) the Company commits
to provide financial support to an investee or (b) if the investee's losses are temporary and
evidence sufficiently shows imminent return to profitability. the Company will continue to
recognize its investment loss. Any credit balance on the carrying value of a long-term

investment and advances are reclassified to receivables or other liabilities-others in the balance
sheets.

If an investee issues additional shares and the Company acquires shares at a percentage
different from its current equity in the investee, capital surplus is adjusted for the difference
between the cost of the investments and the Company s equity in the investee’s net assets. If
the cost of the investments is less than equity in net assets, the difference is added v capital
surplus. If the cost of the investments is more than equity in net assets, the difference is

deducted from capital surplus, or from unappropriated earnings when capital surplus is not
enough for debiting purposes.

The Company s shares held by subsidiaries are recorded as treasury stocks. The Company’s
dividends appropriated to subsidiaries are debited to investment income and adjusted to capital
suplus - treasury stock transaction.

NON-CONFIDENTIAL
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When an indication of impairment is identified in an investment. the carrying amount of the
investment is reduced, with the related impairment loss charged to current income.

Stock dividends are accounted for only as an increase in the number of shares held, and the
cost per share is re-calculated based on the new number of shares. Upon sale of stocks, the
weighted-average method is adopted in calculating the cost and gain or loss on disposal
thereof.

If an investee's functional currency is foreign currency, translation adjustments will result from
the translation of the investee's financial statememts into the reporting currency of the

Company. Such adjustments are accumulated and reported as a separate component of
shareholders' equity.

According to the Order 0960034217 issued by SEC, beginning 2008, in addition to the second
quarter and the fourth quarter, the consolidated financial report should also be prepared for the
first quarter and the third quarter for the listed companics.

Unrealized inter-company profits or losses resulting from transactions between the Company
and its investees accounted for under the equity method are deferred until such profits or losses
are realized. The profits or losses resulting from depreciated or amortized assets are
recognized over the estimated useful lives of such assets.

(10)Financial Assets Carried at Cost

Investments that do not have a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be rcliably measured are carried at original cost. such as non-publicly traded stocks.
Stock dividends received are accounted for only as an increase in the number of shares held,
and the cost per share is re-calculated based on the new nembers of shares. If there is objective
evidence that a financial asset is impaired. an impairment loss is recognized. A subsequent
reversal of such impairment loss is not allowed.

(11)Property, and Equipment and Idle Assets

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost. Interest expense for the purchase or
construction of properties is capitalized as property cost. Major additions, renewals and
betterments are capitalized. while maintenance and repairs are expensed currently. The
economic useful lives of major property and equipment are as follows: buildings, 20 to 55
years: machinery and equipment, 5 to35 years: and other equipments, 3 to 15 years.

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method with the guideline service lives
prescribed by the Government Tax Agency. Assets still in use after full depreciation may
continue to be depreciated based on the remaining estimated economic lives and salvage
values using the straight-line method.

Upon sale or disposal of properties. the related cost and accumulated depreciation are removed
from the accounts, and the related gain or loss is credited or charged to income.

Property. plant and equipment not used in operations are stated at the lower of net realizable
value or carrying amount transferred to other assets-idle assets.

- 1 2 —
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(12)Deferred Charges

Deferred charges are line subsidies, bond issue cost and telephone installation fee, which are
amortized over 3 to 10 years using the straight-line method.

(13)Pension

The Company has a Pension Plan covering all permanent employees and makes a monthly
contribution equivalent 10 4.2% of the total salary to the special pension fund account held at
the Bank of Taiwan in accordance with the Labor Standards Law. Pension payments are made

from the special pension fund account and any deficiency is paid by the Company and
recognized as current expense.

The Company accounted for employees ' pension costs in accordance with SFAS No. 18

*Accounting for Pension" and recognized net pension cost and accrued pension liabilities in
accordance with the standards.

Pension cost under a defined benefit plan is determined by actuarial valuations and recorded as
expenses. Contributions made under a defined contribution plan are recognized as pension
costs during the year in which employees render services.

(14)Deferred Credits ~ Profit From Affiliates

Related to sale of merchandise and assets to subsidiaries or elimination of unrealized internal
gain by equity-method investees in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
The accounting treatments are carried out in accordance with SFAS No. § " lLong-term
Investments Accounted for Using the Equity Method™. Unrealized gains or losses arising from
downstream transactions between the investor and equity-method investees over which the
investor has control, are eliminated in full. Where the investor has no control but only
exercises significant influence over the investee company. any unrealized gains or losses
arising from downstream transactions between the investor and investee shall be eliminated in
proportion of the investor’s ownership percentages in the investees.

(15)Classification of Capital and Income Expenditures

Expenditures producing material economic benefits in future periods are capitalized as assets,
while others are recorded as expenses or losses.

(16)Revenue Recognition

A. Operating Revenue

The Company recognizes revenue when evidence of the revenue generation process is
complete and the revenue is realized or the collectability is reasonably assured. Any sale not in
satistaction of the aforementioned criteria are recognized as revenue upon satisfaction of the
criteria.

Revenues are measured at fair value, the price (net of trade discounts and sales discounts)
agreed to by the Company and customers. But if the related receivable is due within one year,
the difference between its present value and receivable amount is immaterial, and sales

transactions are frequent, the fair value of receivables is equivalent to the nominal amount of
cash to be received.
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B. Construction Revenue

The SFAS No. 11 prescribes the adoption of the percentage-of-completion method to account
for gains and losses on a construction project with a duration of more than 1 year or the
complete-contract method for a construction project with a duration of less than 1 year.

(17)Bonus to Employees and Remuneration to Directies and Supervisors

Starting January 1. 2008, the Company adopted Interpretation 96-052. * Accounting for
Bonuses to Employees, Directors and Supervisors” issued by the ARDF and makes an accrual
for the amount of directors and supervisors” remuneration in the accounts as either “costs of
operation ™ or “ operating expenses’ according to their nature. Any variance between the
accrued or actual amounts adopted in shareholders’ meeting is treated as accounting estimate
change and charged or credited to current income.

(18)Foreign-currency Transactions

Foreign-currency transactions are recorded in New Taiwan dollars at the rates of exchange in
effect when the transactions occur. Exchange gains or losses derived trom foreign-currency
transactions or monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign cuirencies are
recognized in earnings. At the balance sheet date, foreign-currency assets and liabilities are
revalued at prevailing exchange rates with the resulting gains or losses recognized in earnings.

(19)Treasury stock

The Company's purchase of common stock issued is recognized as treasury stock and stated at
cost. The Company's stock held by subsidiaries is treated as treasury stock as well. When the
price of disposal of treasury stock is higher than book value or cash dividends received by the
subsidiaries from the Company, the difference or the dividends shall be recorded as “capital
surplus — treasury stock transactions”. When the price of disposal of treasury stock is lower
than book value. the difference is recorded as a reduction from “capital surplus - treasury stock
transacttions” or retained earnings when “capital surplus - treasury stock transactions” is
insufficient. The book value of treasury stock is calculated based on the average weight
method for each purchase.

When the Company retires treasury stock, the treasury stock account is reduced and the
common stock as well as the capital surplus - additional paid-in capital are reversed on a pro
rata basis. When the book value of the treasury stock exceeds the sum of the par value and
additional paid-in capital. the difference is debited to capital surplus - treasury stock
transactions and to retained earnings for any remaining amount. When the book value of the
treasury stock is lower than the sum of the par value and additional paid-in capital, the
difference is credited to capital surplus - treasury stock transactions.

— 14—
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(20)Income Tax

The Company adopted SFAS No. 22, “Income Taxes”, and makes inter-period and intra-
period tax allocations. Furthermore, it complies with the requirements to recognize deferred
income tax liabilities resulting from taxable temporary differences and to recognize deferred
income tax assets resulting from deductible temporary differences, prior year loss carry
forwards, and investment tax credits: The realization of deferred income tax assets is further
assessed, and a valuation account, if needed, is provided accordingly. A deferred tax asset or
liability is classified as current or non-current in accordance with the classification of its
related asset or liability. However, if a deferred tax asset or liability does not relate to an asset
or liability in the financial statements. then it is classified as either current or non-current
based on the excepted length of time before it is realized or settled.

Income tax on unappropriated earnings at a rate of 10% is expensed in the year of stockholders
* approval, which is the year subsequent to the year the earnings are generated.

The Income Basic Tax Act (the “IBTA™) became effective on January 1, 2006. The alternative
minimum tax (“AMT") imposed under the [BTA is a supplemental tax levied at a rate of 10%
which is payable if the income tax payable determined pursuant to the Income Tax Act is
below the minimum amount prescribed under the IBTA. The taxable income for calculating
the AMT includes most of the income that is exempted from income tax under various laws
and statutes. The Company has considered the impact of the IBTA in the determination of its
tax liabilities.

Once the corporate (ax law is amended, the deferred tax assets and liabilities will be
recalculated and the differences will be recognized as tax expense or benefit.

(21)Asset Impairment

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset
may have been impaired. If any such indication exists. the Company estimates the recoverable
amount of the asset. The Company recognizes impairment loss for an asset whose carrying
value is higher than the recoverable amount.

The Company reverses an impairment loss recognized in prior periods for assets other than
goodwill if there is any indication that the impairment loss recognized no longer exists or has
decreased. The carrying value after the reversal should not exceed the recoverable amount or
the depreciated or amortized balance of the assets assuming no impairment loss was

recognized in prior periods. Subsequet reversal of a previous recognized impairment loss on
goodwill is not allowed.
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3. ACCOUNTING CHANGES

(1) Effective January 1, 2009, the Company adopted the newly revised SFAS No. 10,
“Accounting for Inventories.” The main revisions are (1) inventories are stated at the lower of
cost or net realizable value. and inventories are written down to net realizable value item-by-
item except when the grouping of similar or related items is appropriate; (2) unallocated
overheads are recognized as expenses in the period in which they are incurred; and (3)
abnormal cost, write-downs of inventories and any reversal of write-downs are recorded as
cost of sales for the period. The adoption of SFAS No. 10 resulted in a decrease of $18,759
thousand in net income and a decrease of $0.01 in eamnings per share (after tax) for the year
ended December 31, 2009.

To present fairly the product related cost, the Company considered cost of merchandise sales,
unallocated fixed overheads, abnormal manufacturing cost, and loss on inventory valuation
and obsolescence (or gain on inventory value recoveries) as part of cost of goods sold.

(2) On January 1, 2008, the Company adopted newly released Statements of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 39 “Share-based payment” (SFAS No. 39) and No.52 Explanation
made by Accounting Research and Development Foundation in 2007. The effects of the
adoption as of and for the year ended December 31, 2008 were as follows: :

Accrued expenses: increase by NT$7.089 thousand; Tax payable: decrease by NT$1,772
thousand; Net income : decrease by NT$5.317 thousand: EPS (after tax): decrease by
NT$0.004.

4. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

December 31

Item 2009 2008
Petty cash 31,650 $1,650
Checking account 275,476 214,597
Savings account 6,229 489
Foreign currency account 1,718,202 1.890,121
Time deposits 300.000 332,800
Total $2.301,557 $2,439,657

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE "I"HROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

December 3!
Item 2009 2008
Financial assets held for trading - current
Domestic listed stock $910,486 $606.916
Beneficiary certificates - funds 64,768 43446
Corporate bonds 15,124 13,538
Subordinate financial debentures 9.996 -

—1 6 -
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Financial assets designated as at fair value through
profit or loss - current
Investment-linked life insurance 6.906

Investment-linked commodities

6.927
9,901

Total $1.007.280

$680,728

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss - noncurrent
Compound commodities $279.243

Total $279,243

Net gain (loss) on financial assets held for trading for the years ended December 31, 2009 and
2008 were NT$364.395 thousand and (NT$18,206) thousand, respectively. Net gain (loss) on
financial liabilities held for trading for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 were

(NT$847) thousand and NT$0 thousand. respectively.

6. BOND INVESTMENTS WITH NO ACTIVE MARKET

December 31
Item 2009 2008
Bond investments - current
Baohwa Bank subordinate bank debenture $5.000 $5,000
Chinfon Bank subordinate bank debenture 2.000 2,000
Subtotal $7.000 $7.000
Less: accumulated impairment (5.000) (5,000)
Net $2,000 $2,000
Bond investments - noncurrent
Chinfon Bank subordinate bank debenture $4.000 36,000
Total $4,000 $6.000
7. NOTES RECEIVABLE, NET
December 31
Item 2009 2008
Notes receivable $132,612 $152,704
Less: allowance for doubtful accounts (380) _ (1,720)
Notes receivable, net $132.232 $150,984

Please refer to Note 34 for the information of notes receivable between related parties.

— 17 —
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8. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, NET .
December 31
Item 2009 2008
Accounts receivable - general $1,338,395 $1,183,478
Less: allowance for doubtful accounts (25,401) (44,560)
Accounts receivable - general. net $1.312.994 $1,138,918
Accounts receivable - related parties $1,752,657 $656,599
Less: allowance for doubtful accounts - related (6.959) (3,152)
parties
Accounts receivable - related parties. net $1.745,698 $653.447
Accounts receivable, net $3,058,692 $1.792,365
(1) Please refer to Note 34 for the information of accounts receivable between related parties.
(2) As of December 31. 2009 and 2008, accounts receivable totaling NT$137.463 thousand
and NT$114,000 thousand were provided to financial institutions as collateral for loans.
Please refer to Note 35 for details of the Company's pledged assets.
9. OTHER RECEIVABLES
December 31
Item 2009 2008
Purchase discount receivable $17,260 $17.341
Interest receivable 763 1.459
Business tax refundable 165,000 141,000
Receivable from capital reduction 5,880 12,600
Other receivables .78 8,697
Total $188.981 $181.097
Less: allowance for doubtful accounts (7,865)
Net $188,981 $173.232
10. OTHERS RECEIVABLE - RELATED PARTIES
December 31
Item 2009 2008
Dividends receivable $62.700 $29,400
Purchase discount receivable 4,287 -
Others 3,413 2,439
Total $70,400 $31,839

—18--
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11. INVENTORIES

December 31
Item 2009 2008
Rolled Steel Department:
Raw materials $1.243.953 $1,513,760
Supplies 36,261 47,559
Work in process 511,391 . 694,041
Finished goods 1,319,128 1,921,343
Scraps 54,284 46,400
Subtotal $3,165.017 $4,223,103
Less: valuation allowance (7,742) (898,402)
Net $3,157,275 $3,324,701
Heavy Industry Department:
Construction in progress $3,067,621 $2,755.610
Less: transferred into deduction of advance (403,292) (263.157)
construction receipts
Less: transferred from advance construction (1.913.858) (1,584 ,448)
receipts
Subtotal $750.471 $908.005
Less: valuation allowance (36,574) (47,986)
Net $713.897 $860,019
Total $3,871,172 $4,184,720

(1)According to Statements of Financial Accounting Standards No. 11*Construction Contracts
” . if the balance of construction in progresss exceeds the balance of partial advance
construction receipts, partial advance construction receipts are deducted trom construction in
progress. Please refer to Note 23 for the information.

If the balance of partial advance construction receipts exceeds the balance of construction in
progress, construction in progress is deducted from partial advance construction receipts.

(2)The related inventory gain (loss) recoginsed as operating cost for the years ended December
31,2009 and 2008 were as follows:

Item 2009 2008
Cost of goods sold $24,237.904 $33.280.166
Construction cost 1,120,701 1,466,232
Loss (gain) on inventory valuation (902,070) 811.585

NON-CONFIDENTIAL
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Item 2009 2008
Unallocated fixed overheads 185,239 -
Provision for (reverse of) loss on (16,010) 16.010
irrevocable purchase contract
Total $24,625.764 $35.573,993

(3) As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, fire insurance coverages for inventory were
NT$1.634.022 thousand and NT$1.915.175 thousand; construction insurance coverages were
NT$2,235,442 thousand and NT$2,204,317 thousand, respectively.

12. PREPAYMENTS

December 31

[tem 2009 2008
Prepayment for material purchase $154.506 $5,323
Prepaid insurance 18,053 19.284
Prepaid (overpaid) business tax 4,009 3,105
Prepaid royalties 2,607 2.607
Prepaid rent 2,992 3.748
Others 1,034 2,038
Total $183.201 $36,105

Please refer to Notes 34 and 36 for details of prepaid royalties.

13. NONCURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

December 31
Item 2009 2008
Land $12.977 $ -
Less: accumulated impairment (3.302) -
Net $9,675 $ -

(1) The land of Section Bao Dian Si was compulsory purchased by the Government. and the
registration was finished in January 2010. The Company reclassified the land as noncurrent
assets held for sale, and recognized related impairment loss caused by the compulsory
purchase amounting to NT$3,302 thousand.

(2) According to SFAS No. 38, an entity shall not reclassify assets and liabilities in the balance
sheets for prior periods if the entity reclassifies noncurrent assets as held for sale in the current
period.

(3) The Company provided partial noncurrent assets held for sale as collateral for the
borrowings. Please refer to Note 35 for the information.

j— 20_
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14. INVESTMENTS ACCUNTED FOR USING EQUITY METHOD
December 31,2009

Name of Investee Companies Carrying Amount % of Ownership

Yieh Mau Corporation $505,967 23.00%
Cheng Shin House Management Consulting 874 32.00%
Co., Ltd.
Widax Taiwan Corp. 24,668 84.45%
Shin Phui steel Corporation 244 385 100.00%
Eliter International Corp. 699,191 28.75%
Good Honor Holdings Ltd. © 349,337 100.00%
Worthing Honor Holdings Ltd. 53,336 100.00%
Excellent Rewards International Co., Ltd. 331,544 100.00%
Top Point Investment Properties Limited 368 100.00%
United Brightening Development Corp. 999.209 44.56%
EMMT Systems Corp. 173,009 78.59%
Tian-Yue Hot Spring and Resort Interrational 4,649 19.50%
Corp.
Global Partners Link Co., Ltd. 8,045 33.33%
Synn Industrial Co., Ltd. 464.888 30.00%
Mickey Regent Inc. 4257417 100.00%
Best Perfect Holding Limited 244 100.00%
Asiazone Co., Lid. 408,760 19.50%
Kuo Chang Enterprise Co., Ltd. i 530,555 45.00%
Yieh Hsing Enterprise Co., Ltd. 3,013,675 54.82%
Tycoons Steel International Co., Ltd 372247 49.00%
Hsing Jui Investments Limited 135.326 31.00%
Da Yao Engineering & Consulting Co., Lid. 10.203 49.00%
E-DA Development Corp. 1.063.463 29.07%
Zheng Xin Security Co., L.td. 17,244 35.00%
Champion Logistic Inc. 2861917 49 44%
E United Japan Co., Ltd. 5,828 47.00%
E-DA culwral creative industries Co.. Ltd. 9,404 19.00%

Subtotal $16,546.253

Prepayments for investments

Hsing Jui Investments Limited $78.509 -

Subtotal $78,509

Total $16,624,762
NON-CONFIDENTIAL
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December 31,2008
Name of Investee Companies Carrying Amount % of Ownership

Yieh Mau Corporation $501,361 23.00%
Cheng Shin House Management Consulting 4425 32.00%
Co..Lud.
Widax Taiwan Corp. 27,036 84.45%
Shin Phui steel Corporation 229,342 100.00%
Eliter International Corp. 695,264 28.57%
Good Honor Holdings Ltd. 282911 100.00%
Worthing Honor Holdings Ltd. 54,667 100.00%
Excellent Rewards International Co..Ltd. 318.368 100.00%
Top Point Investment Properties Limited 377 100.00%
United Brightening Development Corp. 792.596 44.56%
EMMT Systems Corp. 163.871 74.26%
Tian-Yue Hot Spring and Resort Interrational 6.892 19.50%
Corp.
Global Partners Link Co., Ltd. 7.861 33.33%
Synn Industnal Co.. Ltd. 446.926 30.00%
Mickey Regent Inc. 4,474 865 100.00%
Best Perfect Holding Limited 249 100.00%
Asiazone Co., Lid. 435915 19.50%
Kuo Chang Enterprise Co., Ltd 398,183 45.00%
Yieh Hsing Enterprise Co., Ltd 3,093,117 54.82%
Tycoons Stee! international Co., Ltd 429 357 49.00%
Hsing Jui Investments Limited 136.039 31.00%
Da Yao Engineering & Consulting Co., Ltd. 9958 49.00%
E-DA Development Corp. 780,969 29.07%
Zheng Xin Security Co., Ltd. 13917 35.00%
Champion Logistic Inc. 2,919,760 49.44%

Subtotal $16.224,226

Prepayments for investments

Hsing Jui investments Limited $52,841

Subtotal $52,841

Total $16,277,067
—77 —

NON-CONFIDENTIAL




NON-CONFIDENTIAL

3

PUBLIC FILE

(1) The investment income (loss) accounted for using the equity method were as follows:

Item

2009 2008
Audited financial statements ($170.723) ($215,859)
Financial statements exempted from CPA audits (2,384) 415
Audited financial statements by the other (16,578) (103,948)
auditors
Total ($189.,685) ($319,392)

As of December 31,2009 and 2008, the carrying values of investments accounted for using
the equity method of NT$416,805 thousand and NT$3.536.893 thousand. respectively, were
recognized based on the reports of the other auditors. Invesunent income (loss) recognized for
the years ended December 31. 2009 and 2008 were NT$(16.578) thousand and NT$(103.948)

thousand, respectively.

15. FIANACIAL ASSETS CARRIED AT COST - NONCURRENT

Nane of Investee Companies

December 31, 2009

Carrying Amount

% of Ownership

Yieh United Steel Corp.
Shuo Huang Enterprise Co., Ltd.
Universal Venture Capital Investment
Co., Lid.
Chateau Bridgetop Inc.
Pacific Harbour Stevedoring Corporation
Grand Fortune Special Steel Co., Lid.
Ascentek Venture Capital Corp.
Asia Pacific Telecom Co.. Ltd.
Neoflex Technology Co., Ltd.
Strategic Advisory Investment Limited.
Kuo Fu Venture Investment Corp.
Dance & Jump Software Co., Ltd.
Ambicom Corporation Ltd.
Auto Parts Industrial Lid.
Microlinks Technology Corp.
Taiwan Vespa Co., Ltd.
Windance Co., Ltd.
New Springs Construction Corp.
Yieh Corporation Limited

Subtotal

-— 23 —
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$2.,665.825

9,130

1,650

23,520

1.060
15.880

535

1500
100,000
4,440
81.105
41,833
2,002
32,948,480

14.61%
19.60%
091%

10.00%
3.00%
5.73%
6.42%
0.14%
0.59%

10.00%

10.00%
1.60%
342%
441%

11.63%
3.60%
2.68%

19.31%
6.67%
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December 31,2008 i
Name of Investee Companies Carrying Amount % of Ownership :
Yieh United Steel Corporation $2,179,768 12.60% !
Shuo Huang Enterprise Co..Ltd. - 19.60% :
Universal Venture Capital Investment Co.. 9,130 091%
Ltd.
Chateau Bridgetop Inc. - 10.00%
Pacific Harbour Stevedoring Corp. 1,650 3.00%
Grand Fortune Special Steel Co., Ltd. - 5.73%
Ascentek Venture Capital Corp. 29.400 6.42%
Asia Pacific Telecom Co.. Ltd. - 0.14%
Neoflex Technology Co.. Ltd. 3,063 0.98%
Strategic Advisory Investment Lid. - 10.00%
Kuo Fu Venwre Investment Corp. 15.880 10.00%
Dance & Jump Software Co., Ltd. 535 1.60%
Ambeon Corporation Ltd. 1.500 342%
Auto Parts Industrial Ltd. 100.000 4.41%
Microlinks Technology Corp. 4,440 11.63%
Taiwan Vespa Co., Ltd. 81,105 3.60%
Windance Co., Ltd. - 2.68%
New Springs Construction Corp. 41.833 - 1931%
Yieh Corporation Limited 2,002 6.67%
Subtotal $2.470.306
Prepayments for investments
Aceros De China, S.L. $32.901
Subtotal $32.901
Total 32,503,207

)

(1) The above equity investments. which had no quoted prices in active market and
of which fair value could not be reliably measured, were carried at cost.
(2) Due to serious operation difficulty and financial crisis of ceriain investees, the

Company has recognized impairment loss for these assets.

—24—
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT, NET

(1) Property, plant and equipment as of December 31, 2009 were as follows:

ltem Cost AccumlljlaFed Carrying
Depreciation Value

Land $1.804.652 $ - $1.804,652
Buildings 4,056,825 1,929,210 2.127.615
Machinery and 13.958,093 7.671,899 6.286.194
equipment

Molding equipment 1.038.493 721,343 317,150
Utilities equipment 234,621 172,788 61.833
Computer and 242911 191.146 51,765
telecommunication

equipment

Testing equipment 58.106 39.688 18418
Transportation 566,154 460,029 106,125
equipment

Office equipment 5.686 3.579 2.107
Other equipment 154,246 94,732 59,514
Prepayments for 155,333 - 155.333
equipment

Total $22,275,120 $11.284.414 $10.990,706

(2) Property, plant and equipment as of December 31. 2008 were as follows:

Item Cost Accun)glaFed Carrying
Depreciation Value

Land $1.769,291 $ - $1,769.291
Buildings 3.857.201 1,714,432 2,142,769
Machinery and 13,838,515 7,082,202 6,756.313
equipment

Molding equipment 1,004,124 647.444 356.680
Utilities equipment 234,327 160.364 73.963
Computer and 241,822 165,482 76.340
telecommunication

equipment

Testing equipment 62,844 433818 19.026
Transportation 547,084 452,606 94478
equipment

NON-CONFIDENTIAL
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ltem Cost Accumgla}ed Carrying
Depreciation Value

Office equipment 10.866 7,441 3425
Other equipment 154,124 83,024 71,100
Construction in 162,642 - 162.642
progress

Prepayments for 236,687 - 236,687
equipment

Total $22,119,527 $10.356,813 $11,762,714

(3) Partial property, plant and equipment has been pledged for the borrowings. Please
refer to Note 35 for the information.

(4) Insurance coverages on property, plant and equipment amounted to NT$18.746,265
thousand, and NT$18.605.087 thousand as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.
Insurance coverages on operation break off amounted to NT$2,354.457 thousand. and
NT$2.508,337 thousand as of December 31, 2009 and 2008. repectively.

(5) The details of interest capitalized were as follows:

Item 2009 2008
Capitalized interest expense $4,146 $11,284
Capitalized interest rates 1.93%-2.30% 2.832%-3.300%

17. IDLE ASSETS, NET
(1) As of December 31, 2009, the idle assets were as follows:

Accumulated
Item Cost Depreciation Carrying Value
Land $208,101 $ - $208,101
Total $208,101 $ - $208.101
Less: accumulated -
impairment
Net $208,101
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(2) As of December 31, 2008. the idle assets were as follows:
Accumulated
Item Cost Depreciation Carrying Value
Land $208.101 $ - $208,101
Machinery and 32614 14,061 18,553
equipment
:;2?;:&:‘:“0" 8.141 3.135 5.006
Facitities 31 13 18
Utilities equipment 2,753 1.005 1.748
Other equipments 80 49 31
Total $251,720 $18.263 $233,457
Less: accumulated (3,500)
impairment

Net $229,957

(3) Idle assets are the assets transferred from the consolidation with Lien Guan Co., Ltd.

(4) Partial idle assets have been pledged for the borrowings. Please refer to Note 35 for
the information.
18. OVERDUE RECEIVABLE, NET

December 31

fem 2009 ’ 2008
Overdue receivable $4,500 $8.100
Less: allowance for doubtful accounts (4,500) (8,100)
Net $ - $

19. OTHER ASSETS - OTHERS
December 31

Item 2009 2008
Prepaid royalties $98.133 $100,740
Prepaid pension cost 60.346 48,082
Land in use 8,516 18,001
Assets with suspended expansion - Ping nan 1,040,809 1.042,038
factory construction
Total $1,207,804 $1,208,861

(1) Please refer to Note 34 and 36 for the information related to prepaid royalities.
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20. SHORT-TERM LOANS
December 31, 2009

Item Amount Interest rates
Unsecured loans $1,528,000 1.59%-2.40%
Material loans 4.134.756 0.81%-2.61%
Mortgage loans 109,726 1.01%
Total $5,772,482

December 31, 2008

Item Amount Interest rates
Unsecured loans $660,000 2.65%-3.25%
Material loans 3937.395 1.82%-4.70%
Mortgage loans 114,000 320%-391%
Total $4,711.395

The Company provided part of its assets as collaterals for the borrowings. Please refer to Note
35 for the information.

21. SHORT-TERM BILLS PAYABLE

December 31
Item 2009 2008
Promissory notes $550.000 $500,000
Less: unamortized discount (635) (1.134)
Net $549.365 $498 866
Interest rates 1.45%-1.50% 2.6%-3.25%

The Company provided part of its assets as collaterals for short-term bills payable. Please refer
to Note 35 for the information.

22. OTHER PAYABLES

December 31
Item 2009 2008
Equipment payable $11.707 $18.188
Cash dividends payable 22.189 22.149
Quantity discount payable 34.568 22,651
Payable on purchase contract loss - 16.010
Other payables 141 76
Total 368,605 $79,074
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23. ADVANCE RECEIPTS
December 31
ftem 2009 2008

Advance sales receipts $88,810 $60.057
Advance other receipts 11.132 5.771
Advance construction receipts 2,366.990 1,933,220 :
Less: transferred from construction in progress (403,292) (263.157) }
Less: transferred into deduction of construction in (1,913,858) (1,584 ,448) :

progress |
Net $149.782 $151.443 '

(1) According to Statements of Financial Accounting Standards No. 11“*Construction
Contracts™. if the balance of construction in progresss exceeds the balance of partial
advance construction receipts. partial advance construction receipts are deducted from
construction in progress.

(2) If the balance of partial advance construction receipts exceed the balance of construction
in progress, construction in progress is deducted from partial advance construction
receipts. Please refer to Note 11 for the information.

. LONG -TERM LIASILITIES AND CURRENT PORTION OF LONG -

TERM LIABILITIES

December 31

25.

Item 2009 2008
Bank loans $8.742,000 $8.460.500
Less: portion due within one year (782,000) (1,011,500)
Long-term liabilities $7.960,000 $7.449,000
Interest rates 1.52%-2.535% 2.06%-3.3636% '

(1) Please refer to Note 35 for details of collaterals provideds for the above bank loans.

PENSION

a.The defined benefit plan under the Labor Standards Law is disbursed based on the
units of service years and the average salary in the last six months of the service
year. Two units per year are entitled for the first 15 years of services while one
unit per year is entitled after the completion of the fifteenth year. The total units
shall not exceed 45 units.

b.In accordance with SFAS No.18, the Company carried out actuarial valuations
with measurement dates of December 31. 2009 and 2008. Pension information on

the defined benefit plan were summarized as follows:

-9 -
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(a) Components of net pension cost:
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Item 2009 2008
Service cost $12.909 $13.236
Interest cost 13.016 15.449
Projected return on plan assets (11,954) (13.164)
Amortization of net transition obligation 2,621 2,621
Amortization of unrecognized net gain or loss 1,253 2,107
Net pension cost $17.845 $20,249

(b) Reconciliation of funded status of the plans and accrued pension liability as of

December 31, 2009 and 2008:

December 31
Item 2009 2008

Benetit obligation:

Vested benefit obligation ($38,435) ($28.978)

Non-vested benefit obligation’ (421,197 (342.824)

Accumulated benefit obligation ($459.632) ($371.802)

Additional benefits based on future salaries (94,706) (148.854)

Projected benetit obligation ($554.338) ($520.656)
Fair value of plan asscts 505914 478,150
Funded status ($48.424) ($42.506)
Unrecognized transition benefit obligation 9.666 12.286
Unrecognized pension gain(loss) ’ 96.332 758717
Accrued pension liabilities $57,574 $45,657
Vested benefit $49,751 $33,512

(¢) As of December 31, 2009, the Company's prepaid pension cost amounted to NT$57.574

thousand, which was classified as other assets - others of NT$60,346 thousand and

accrued expenses of NT$2.772 thousand.

(d) As of December 31. 2008, the Company's prepaid pension cost amounted to NT$45,657

thousand, which was classified as other assets - others of NTS48,082 thousand and

accrued expenses of NT$2,425 thousand.
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(e) Actuanal assumptions:

Item 2009 2008
Discount rate 2.0% 2.5%
Future salary increase rate 1.5% 1.5%
Expected rate of return on plan assets 2.0% 2.5%

¢.The Labor Pension Act of R.O.C (the Act), which adopts a defined contribution plan
, became effective on July 1, 2005. Employees may choose either the Act, by retaining
their seniority before the enforcement of the Act. or the pension mechanism of the
Labor Standards Law. According to the Act, the rate of contribution by any employer
to an employee's pension account per month shall not be less than 6% of each

employee's monthly salary. The Company has made monthly contributions based on

each individual employee's salary to employees’ pension accounts since July 1, 2005,
which amounted to NT$34,741 thousand and NT$40.016 thousand for the years

ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

26. CAPITAL STOCK

December 31
Item 2009 2008
Authorized capital $20,000,000 $20.000,000
Issued capital 14,542,192 14,591,543
Issued shares (in thousand shares) 1.454,219 1,459,154
Par value (NT dollars) 10 10

The Company's shareholders' meeting approved earnings transferred 10 capital by NT$423.559
thousand on June 16. 2009. In addition. the Ministry of Economic Affairs has approved the
retirement of treasury stock and the capital reduction of NT$472.910 thousand on March 27,

2009.
27. TREASURY STOCK :

(¢D] (Shares in thousands)
Reason [tem 2009 2008
To maintain the Beginning shares 47,291 -
Company's creditibility Addition - 47,291
and shareholders’ Reduction ' 47,291) -
interest Ending shares - 47.291

NON-CONFIDENTIAL
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(2) Under the Securities and Exchange Law, the buyback amount of treasury stock should not
exceed 10% of total issued shares, and the buyback cost should not exceed the sum of the
retained earnings. additional paid-in capital in excess of par value and realized capital surplus.
on October 23, 2008, the Company's board of directors approved a share buyback plan to
repurchase up to 100,000 thousand shares of the Company's common stock between October
24, 2008 and December 23. 2008, and 47,291 thousand shares were repurchased at totalling
$418,867 thousand during this period. The Company's board of directors resolved March 12,
2009 as the record date of the capital reduction on February 17. 2009. and the capital reduction
was registered with the authority on March 27. 2009.

(3) Under the Securities and Exchange Act, the Company shall neither pledge treasury stock
nor exercise shareholders' rights on these shares. such as right of dividend and right to vote.

. CAPITAL SURPLUS

In accordance with regulations of R.0.C. Company Law. the capital surplus shall first be used
1o offset losses from the previous years; afterwards, it, so-called the realized capital surplus, if
any. can be transferred to the Company's capital. The above-mentioned realized capital surplus
includes the excess of the issue price over the par-value of the capital stocks and the donations.
Under the regulations of the Security Exchange Law, the maximum amount transterred from
capital surplus to the Company's capital per year shall not be over 10% of the Company's
issued capital. In addition, capital increase by transterring paid-in capital in excess of par value
can be commenced in the following year.

. APPROPRIATION OF RETAINED EARNINGS AND DIVIDEND POLICY

(1) As part of a growing enterprise. the Company considers its expanding plan and profitability
in determining the stock or cash dividends to be paid. That is. the Company's dividend
distribution is based on the availability of excess funds.

According to the Company Law of the R.O.C. and the Company's Articles of Incorporation,
10% of the Company's annual net income less any deficit should first be set aside as legal
reserve. The remainder of the unappropriated earnings , less special reserve based on relevant
laws and regulations or business requirements. should be distributed as dividends and bonus.
The appropriation of earnings should be resolved in the shareholders' meetimg. However, there
should be appropriations of 1% as bonuses to employees and not more than 0.2% as
remuneration to directors and supervisors. In consideration of its expanding plan and future
cash demands. the Company intends to distribute stock dividends. The Company's dividend
policy stipulates that at least 20% of total dividends may be distributed as cash dividends, and
no more than 80% of total dividends may be distributed as stock dividends.

(2) Pursuant to Article 41 of the Securities and Exchange Law of the R.O.C.. a special reserve
is set aside from the current net income and prior unappropriated earnings with an amount
equal to the amount of items that is accounted for as deductions to stockholders' equity such as
unrealized loss on long-term investment and cumulative translation adjustments. When the
deductions to stockholders' equity are reversed, the set-aside special reserve can be distributed.

—37—
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(3) Employees' bonus and remuneration to directors and supervisors

A. Based on the resolutions made by the annual shareholders’ meetings held on June 16, 2009,
the information on employees' bonus, and directors’ and supervisors' remuneration
appropriated from the distributable retained earnings of 2008 was as follows:

Item Amount
Bonus to employees - cash $2,858
Remuneration to directors 572

and supervisors - cash
Total $3,430

The above distributions of retained earnings were consistent with the resolution of the board of
Directors held on April 23, 2009.

B.The appropriations of earnings for 2008 and 2007 had been approved by the shareholders'
meetings in June 2009 and 2008. The appropriations and dividends per share were as follows:

Appropriation of Earnings Dividends Per Share

Item 2008 2007 2008 2007
Legal reserve $101.536 $160.248
Special reserve - 1,387
Cash dividends 282372 694.835 0.2 0.5
Stock dividends 423,559 694.835 0.3 0.5
Remuneration to - 1.224
directors and
supervisors
Bonus to employees - 6.119
Total $807.467 $1,558.648

Bonus to employees and remuneration to directors and supervisors for 2008, which amounted
to NT$2,858 thousand and NT$572 thousand, respectively. were resolved by the shareholders'
mecting held on June 16, 2009. Bonus to employees and remuneration to directors and
supervisors recognized in the 2008 financial statements were NT$5.908 thousand and
NTS1.181 thousand. respectively. The variation of NTS3,050 thousand and NT$609 thousand
was due to profit adjustment. and was adjusted currently in profit or loss of 2009.

C.The related information regarding cmiployecs' bonus and directors' and supervisors'
remuneration is available at the Market Observation Post System website.
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(4) Based on the Company s Articles and average allocation percentage of employees’ bonus
and directors and supervisors ' remuneration of previous years, the Company estimated
employees” bonus and directors and supervisors’ remuneration of NT$3,533 and NT$7,089
thousand for the years ended December 31. 2009 and 2008, respectively. However, the
variation between the actual amounts resolved by the shareholders’ meeting and the estimation

should be seen as in accounting estimate change.

30. IMPAIRMENT LOSS _
Item 2009 2008
Impairment loss on financial assets carried at h) - $164.448
cost
Impairment loss on idle assets 5,188 3.500
Impairment loss on noncurrent assets held for 3.302 -
sale
Impairment loss on other assets - others - 76,500
Total $8.490 $244.448
31. EXPENSES OF EMPLOYEES, DEPRECIAION AND AMORTIZATION
Year ended December 31, 2009
Item Operating cost Operating expenses Total
Labor cost
Salaries $651.841 $267.902 $919,743
Insurance 55.799 18.825 74.624
Pension (Notel) 37.948 14,331 52,279
Others 97574 25.990 123,564
Depreciation 939.039 61.930 1.000,969
Amortization (Note2) - 1,912 1,912
Total $1.782,201 $390,890 $2,173,091

Note 1: Excluding NT$307 thousand of pension cost under prepayments for
equipment.

Note 2: Excluding interest expense for amortization of syndicated loan of NT$4,400

thousand.
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Year ended December 31, 2008
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Item Operating cost Operating expenses Total
Labor cost
Salaries $711,418 $289,214 $1,000.632
Insurance 58.791 17.884 76.675
Pension (Notel) 44780 15,067 59.847
Others 199,375 46,719 246,094
Depreciation 923,691 50.393 974,084
Amortization (Note2) - 2071 2,07
Total $1.938.055 $421,348 $2.359,403

Note 1: Excluding NTS$ 418 thousand of pension cost under prepayments for

equipment

Note 2: Excluding interest expense for amortization of syndicated loan of NT$3.300

thousand.

32. INCOME TAX

(1) Deferred income tax assets and liabilities were as follows:

A.Current:

December 31
Item 2009 2008

Unrealized bad debt expenses $1,019 $11.322
Unrealized foreign exchange loss (gain) 5481 7.886
Unrealized sales discounts 6914 27409
Unrealized gain (loss) on sales 5.300 2.143
Unrealized loss on inventories 8.863 53.793
Ditference on sales between financial and tax 2.362 48.160
basis

Others 996 5,088
Net 330,935 $155,801

--35—
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December 31
Item 2009 2008
- Depreciation difference between $5.734 $8.070
financial and tax basis
Investment loss recognized under cost method 71,426 89.282
Investment loss ( income) recognized 318,040 428.361
under the equity method
Provision for foreign investment loss (84.657) (120,479)
Others 11917 13.766
Loss carryforwards 13.807 -
Subtotal $336.267 $419,000
Less: valuation allowance (59.062) (73.835)
Total $277.205 $345.165
Cumulative translation adjustments (102,774) (169.748)
Net $174.431 $175417
(2) Income tax expense (benefit):

ftem 2009 2008
Income tax expense for current period - $525.690
10% incremental tax on the unappropnated 20.276 1,798
retained carnings :
Deferred incone tax expense (benefit) 115.791 (223.275)
Adjustment of prior years' income tax (55.708) 7944
Adjustment arising from the amendment of 77.035
the Income Tax Law
Income tax expense $157,394 $312.157

(3) Income tax payable
’ December 31

Item 2009 2008
Income tax expense for current period - $525.690
10% incremental tax on the unappropriated 20.276 1,798
retained earnings
Adjustment of prior years' income tax - -
Less: prepaid income tax (769) (258,963)
Income tax payable (refundable) $19,507 $268,525
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(4) Reconciliation between the income tax expense (benefit) and the income tax

calculated on pre-tax financial income based on the statutory tax rate was as

follows:
ltem 2009 2008

Income tax on pre-tax income $110,776 $332.609

Adjustment on income tax expense:

(1) Unrealized (realized) foreign exchange (1.035) 11.340
loss (gain)

(2) Tax-exempt income (5,570) (19.570)

(3) Investment loss (income) recognized 47421 79.848
under the equity method

(4) Reverse of (provision for) foreign 14,658 25559
investment loss

(5) Unrealized (realized) profit on sales 4482 (8.933)
between affiliates

(6) Difterece on pension expence between (3.066) (3.760)
financial and tax basis

(7) Provision for (reversal of) loss on (46.908) 20.092
inventories

(8) Realized (unrealized) valuation loss (gain) on (86,292) 6.288
financial assets (liabilities)

(9) Loss on capital reduction or impairment (71.224) 61,112

(10) Others (9,426) 21,105

Loss carryforwards 46,184 -

Income tax expense for current period - $525,690

(5) Income tax returns through 2007 had been cxamined and cleared by the tax authorities

as of December 31, 2009.

(6) As of December 31. 2009. the investment tax credits that can be used to oftset the

Company's future income taxes were as follows: none

—-37-
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(7) Information regarding to imputation income tax system:

December 31

Items 2009 2008
Balance of imputation credit account(ICA) $1,455,439 $1,555,954
Unappropriated earnings generated before 111,907 111.907
January 1, 1998
Unappropriated earnings generated on and 3.557.644 4,064,954
after January 1, 1998

2009 2008
Estimated (Actual) creditable tax ratio 41.46% 43.50%
(Estimated) (Actual)

The imputation credit allocated to shareholders is based on its balance as of the date
distribution. The estimated creditable ratio for distribution of 2009 may change when the
actual distribution of imputation credit is made.

33. EARNINGS PER SHARE

ltem 2009 2008
A.Basic earning per share )
Income before income tax $443.143 $1.330.478
Net income $285,749 $1.018.321
Weighted average shares outstanding 1454219 1.451,272

(in thousand shares)

Weighted average shares outstanding 1.454.219 1.494 810
after retroaction (in thousand shares)

Basic earnings per share:

Income before income tax $0.30 $0.89
Net income $0.20 $0.68

Weighted avcrage shares outstanding after retroaction in 2009 = (1.459,154 - 47,291) * 1.03
=1.454219

Weighted average shares outstanding after retroaction in 2008 = 1,451,272 *1.03 = 1,494,810
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B Diluted earnings per share
Income before income tax
Net income
Convertible bonds adjustment
Adjusted income before income tax for
diluted EPS calculation
Adjusted net income for diluted EPS
calculation
Weighted average shares outstanding after
retroaction (in thousand shares)
Estimated shares of convertible bonds
adjustment ( in thousand shares)
Weighted average shares outstanding for
diluted EPS ( in thousand shares)
Diluted earnings per share:
Income before income tax

Net income

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

PUBLIC FiL.™

$443,143 $1,330.478
$285.749 $1.018.321
$ - $1,162
443143 1.331.640
285.749 1,019,193
1.454.219 1.494 810
- 4179
1.454.219 1.498.989
30.30 $0.89
$0.20 $0.68

The significant transactions with related partics are as follows:

(1) Relationship with Related Parties

Related Party

Relationship with the Company

Yieh Hsing Enterprise Co., l.td.
Yieh Mau Corporation

Yieh United Steel Corp.

Shin Phui Steel Corporation
[-Shou University

Yieh Corp.

Cheng Shin House Management Consulting
Co.. Lid.
E-DA Hospital

Subsidiary

Equity method investee

Same president

Subsidiary

Same president

The president of this company is the
secondary relative of the Company's
president

Equity method investee

Same president
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PUBLIC FILE

Relationship with the Company

Wei Hung Investment & Development
Co., Ld.

Widax Taiwan Corp.

Chain Dollars Enterprise Co.. Ltd.

Broad Victory Enterprise Co., Ltd.
Yieh Hong Enterprise Co.. Ltd.

Synn Industrial Co., Ltd.

United Brightening Development Corp.
Eliter International Corp.

Asiazone Co., Limited.

Unipattern Co.

Good Honor Holdings Ltd.

Worthing Honor Holdings Ltd.
Glorious Falcon Intemational Limited.

Top Point Investment Properties Ltd.
Best Perfect Holding Limited.
Pacific Harbour Stevedoring Corp.

Sym Wang lron Steel Co., Ltd.

Yeou Yih Steel Co.. Ltd.

Twsafe Inc.

Excellent Rewards International Co., Ltd.
Mickey Regent Inc.
EMMT Systems Corp.

Changshu Chief Leading Edge Construction

Materials Co., Ltd.

Same president

Subsidiary

The president of this company is the
secondary relative of the Company's
general manager

Substantial related party

Substantial related party

Equity method investee

Equity method investee

Equity method investee

Equity method investce

Substantial related party

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Equity method investee of Good Honor
Holdings Ltd.

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

The president of this company is the

Company's vice president

The president of this company is the helpmate

of the Company's vice president
The president of this company is the
Company's vice president
Substantial related party

The president of this company is the

secondary relative of the Company's president

(The president resigned in Auguest 2008)
Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary

Subsidiary of Excellent Rewards International

Co., Lid.
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Related Party Relationship with the Company

Jiangsu J&Y Engineering Co., Ltd. Subsidiary of Excellent Rewards International
Co., L.

Yieh Phui(China) Technometerial Co., Ltd.  Subsidiary of Mickey Regent Inc.

Lien zhong Stainless Steel Corp. Substantial related party

Lin Mei-Feng Substantial related party

Lu Yi Enterprise Co.. Ltd. Substantial related party

Groupco Technology Inc. Subsidiary of EMMT Systems Corp.

Yu Hong Enterprise Co.Ltd. Substantial related party

E-DA Development Co., Ltd. Equity method investee

Yieh Corporation Limited. The president of this company is the
secondary relative of the Company's
president

Zheng Xin Security Co.. Ltd. Equity method investee

Chen Yung-Hsien The vice financial general manager

(2) Purchases

2009
Related Party Amount % to Total
Asiazone Co., Limited $743.868 3.52%
Yich Hong Enterprise Co., Ltd. 2.668.593 12.62%
Yieh Phui (China) Technometal Co., Ltd. 113,283 0.54%
2008
Related Party Amount % to Total
Asiazone Co.. Limited $627.292 1.96%
Yieh Hong Enterprise Co., Ltd. 4133233 1291%
Yieh Phui (China) Technometal Co., Ltd. 1,093,921 "3.42%
Yich United Steel Corp. 143,103 0.45%
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(3) Sales

2009
Related Party Amount % to Total

Operating Revenue:

Yieh Hsing Enterprise Co.. Ltd. $427,740 1.61%

Yieh United Steel Corp. 44,652 0.17%

Chain Dollars Enterprise Co.. Ltd. 45,295 0.17%

Asiazone Co., Limited. 2.200.106 8.29%

Glorious Falcon International Ltd. 5.074.849 19.12%

Shin Phui Steel Corporation 594,814 2.24%

Yieh Corporation Limited. 592,251 2.23%

Lu Yi Enterprise Co.. Ltd. 6.702 0.03%

Others 5,170 0.02%
Construction revenue:

Yieh Hsing Enterprise Co.. Ltd. 43,105 0.16%

Eliter Intemation Corp. 14912 0.06%

Others 281 -
Revenue from sale of scraps:

Yieh United Steel Corp. 288,565 1.09%
Processing revenue:

Others 483 -

2008
Related Party Amount % to Total

Operating Revenue:

Yich United Steel Corp. $50.408 0.13%

Chain Dollars Enterprise Co., Ltd. 201,851 0.51%

Asiazone Co., Limited. 2.874.243 7.28%

Glorious Falcon International Ltd. 7.592,831 19.22%

Shin Phui Steel Corporation. 885,053 2.24%

Yieh Corporation Limited 743,743 1.88%

Lu Yi Enterprise Co., Ltd. 86,407 0.22%

Others 6,117 0.02%
Revenue from sale of scraps:

Yieh United Steel Corp. 531,600 1.35%

Processing revenue:
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Related Party Amount % to Total

Others 608
Construction revenue:
Yieh United Steel Corp. 72,872 0.18%
Others 17,252 0.04%
(4) Trasaction of Property. Plant and Equipment
(a) Purchase
2009

Related Party Item Amount

Yieh Hsing Enterprise Co., Ltd. Purchase 35.100 $486.057

thousand shares of
Yien United steel Corp.

Others Purchase of 191
equipment
2008
Related Party Item Amount
Yich United Steel Corp. Purchase of $1.068
consturction
Yieh Mau Corporation Purchase of 1,143

Yich Mau Corporation

Unipattern Co.

Others

equipments &

consturction

Acquisition of 24,000 240,000
thousand shares of

Yich United steel Corp.

Acquisition of 2,000 20.000
thousand shares of

Eliter Intemational Corp.

Purchase of 1.125
equipment
Purchase of 58
equipment
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Co., Ltd.

infrastrudure
construction, and

bridge construction
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(b) Sale
2009: None
2008
Related Party Item Amount Gain (Loss)
Others Sale of equipment $507 $ -
(5) Building Contracts
As of December 31, 2009:
Construction in
Contract Progress/Advance
Related Party Item Amount construction receipts
E-DA Development Steel structure $336,310 291.317
~ Co..Lud. construction -
Eliter Inetrnational Steel structure 49,136 38942
Corp. construction -
Yieh Hsing Overhead 11.026 4711
Enterprise Corp. crane construction -
Others Overhead 13.226 6.878
crane construction -
As of December 31, 2008:
Construction in
Contract Progress/Advance
Related Party Item Amount construction receipts
Yich Hsing Steel structure and $45.738 $23,747
Enterprise Co., Ltd. steel rail construction 31.023
Eliter Inetrnational Steel structure 15,312 13.901
Corp. construction 9810
E-DA Development Steel structure, 230.555 55,843
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(6) Balance of Receivables and Payables

Related Party

PUBLIC FILE

December 31, 2009

Amount Percentage

(a) Notes Receivable

Others $144 0.11%

Total S144 0.11%
(b) Accounts receivable

Yieh United Steel Corp. $34,481 1.11%

Glorious Falcon International Ltd. 917.450 29.68%

Shin Phui Steel Corporation 15.173 0.49%

Chain Dollars Enterprise Co.. Ltd. 8.793 0.28%

Asiazone Co.. Limited. 417244 13.50%

Yieh Corporation Ltd. 13.841 0.45%

Yieh Hsing Enterprise Co.. Ltd. 345,675 11.18%

Total $1.752.657 56.69%
{c) Other Receivables

Yieh Hong Enterprise Co.. Ltd. $4.304 1.66%

Synn Industrial Co.. Ltd. 63.199 24.37%

Others 2,897 L.11%

Total $70,400 27.14%
(d) Prepayments

Others $1,456 0.79%
(¢) Notes Payables

Others $6,219 1.77%
(f) Accounts Payable

Asiazone Co., Limited. $133.125 24.94%

Others 1.638 0.31%

Total $134,763 25.25%
(2) Accrued Expenses

E-DA Hospital $5.041 1.27%

Pacific Harbour Stevedoring Corp. 1.639 0.41%

Others 1,077 0.27%

Total $7,757 1.95%
(h) Other Payables

Others 5288 0.42%
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Related Party Amount Percentage
(i) Advance Receipts
Others $79 0.05%

December 31, 2008
Related Party Amount

Percentage

(a) Notes Receivable

Others $153 0.10%

Total $153 0.10%
(b) Accounts Receivable

Yieh United Steel Corp. $15,327 0.83%

Glorious Falcon International Ltd. 550.830 29.93%

Shin Phui Steel Corporation 26.255 1.43%

Asiazone Co.. Limited. 43982 2.39%

Yieh Corporation Ltd. 13,934 0.76%

Others 6271 0.34%

Total $656,599 35.68%
(c) Other Receivables

Synn Industnal Co.. Ltd. $29.874 14.03%

Others 1.965 092%

Total $31,839 14.95%
(d) Accounts Payable

Yieh Phui (China) Technometal Co.. LLtd. $26,198 11.76%
(e) Accrued Expenses

E-DA Hospital $6.203 ' 1.73%

Pacific Harbour Stevedoring Corp. 6,578 1.83%

Others 829 0.23%

Total $13,610 3.79%
(f) Other Payables

Others $258 0.33%
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(7) Financing Activities

Highest Balance /

(5
PUBLIC FILE

December 31, 2009

Interest Expense /

Related Party Date Amount Rate
Other receivables:
Yich Hsing Enterprise $300.000 $ - $1.265
Co., Lud. 2009.3 .9 2.75%
2008: none
(8) Rental Expense
Related Pary 2009 2008
Shin Phui Steel Corp. $8,400 $8.400
Others 5.777 6419
(9) Other Income
December 31, 2009
Related Party Amount Description Account
Others $23.724  mainframe usage Interest income, rent
’ charges and income and other
computer maintenance. income, etc.
etc.
December 31, 2008
Related Party Amount Description Account
Others $23,979  Mainframe usage Other income
charges
(10) Other Expenses
' December 31, 2009
Related Party Amount Account
Zheng Xin Security $24,231  Miscellaneous expenses
Co., Lud.
Pacific Harbour 47.867  Export fees
Stevedoring Corp.
E-DA Hospital 10,213 Miscellancous expenses
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Related Party Amount Account
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[-Shou University 11,289  Professional service fees and miscellaneous
expenses, etc.

Others 10.615  Miscellaneous expenses. ets.

December 31,2008

Related Party Amount Account
Cheng Shin House $25.072  Miscellaneous expenses
Management Consulting
Co., Ltd.
Pacific Harbour 76,807  Export fees
Stevedoring Corp. i
E-DA Hospital 12,054  Miscellaneous expenses
Others 14205  Professional service fees

(11)Endorsement and Guarantees

a.As of December 31, 2009 and, 2008. the Company provided bank notes amounting to
US$3,000 thousand as endorsement for the bank loans of Changshu Chief Leading Edge
Construction Materials Co., Ltd. :

b.As of December 31, 2009 and, 2008. the Company provided bank notes amounting to
US$$38.000 thousand and RMB250.000 thousand, and US$43,000 thousand and
RMB$250.000 thousand as endorsement for the bank loans of Yieh Phui (China)
Technometal Co.. Ltd.

c.As of December 31, 2009 and. 2008. the Company provided bank notes amounting to
US$169.500 thousand and US$163.500 thousand as endorsement for the bank loans of
Mickey Regent Inc.

d.As of December 31, 2009. the Company provided bank notes amounting to $2,500.000
thousand as endorsement for the bank loans of Yieh Hsing Euterprise Co.. Ltd.

e.As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, Shin Phui Steel Corp. both provided its rental land
as endorsement for the Company's bank loan of NT$439,000 thousand .

(12)To obtain the right of land usage. Yieh Phui Enterprise Co.. Ltd. signed a contract with

Shin Phui Steel Corp. The content was as follows:

(a) Contract Term: 50 years from June 15. 2001 to June 14, 2051.

(b) Payment Term: one-time payment of NT$120.000 thousand.

(¢) As of December 31, 2009, the right of land usage has been amortized for NT$20.500

thousand.
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(d) As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, the current portion of royalty prepayment to
land lease of Pintung Plant - Shin Phui Steel Corporation was both NT$2.400 thousand.
Non-current portion was accounted as other assets - others at NT$97,100
thousand and NT$99,500 thousand, respectively.
(13)The ‘other assets - others' cannot be registered under the Company's name due to the
legal restriction and was registered under Lin Mei-Feng name. However, Lin had issued
a promise note to promise that once the legal restriction is lifted, the assets would be
wansferred back to the name of the Company unconditionally. As the restructure of land
category has enabled the land free from legal restrictions. the ownership of land has
thus been transferred to the Company in March 2009. and the land had been reclassified
as property, plant and equipment-land from other assets - others.
(14)The land of No.107. Sanyepi Duan. Luzhu Township, which was recorded as land in
use under other assets - others, has been registered under the name of the Company's vice
] financial general manager, Chen Yung Hsien. Please rcfer to Note 19 for the details.
(15) Compensation of directors, supervisors and management personnel:
Years Ended Deccrober 31

Item 2009 2.008
Salaries and incentives $49.236 $56,632
Bonus 1974 1.561
Service fees 1.008 1,008
Total $52.218 $59.201

The information about compensation of directors, supervisors and management personnel

is available in the annual report for the shareholders’ meeting.
35. ASSETS MORTGAGED OR PLEDGED

The following assets have been mortgaged or pledged as collateral for the borrowings:

December 31

Item 2009 2008
Restricted assets - current (time deposits) $120,015 $145.170
Restricted assets - noncurvent (time deposits) 6.000 7.600
Restricted asscts - current (account - ]
for répuymcm)
Accounts receivable 137463 114,000
Financial asset at fair value through profit or 279.243 -
loss - noncurrent
Noncurrent assets held for sale 7,466 -
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Item 2009 2008
Land 1,644,153 1,440,169
Buildings (net) 1.871.466 1.870.107
Machinery and equipment (net) ) 5,990,918 6412,593
Transportation equipment (net) 5.057 8.409
Utilities equipment (net) 39.781 45,318
Other assets - others 964.798 965.640
Idle assets (net) 208,101 - \
Total $11,274 461 $11,009,007 '

36. SIGNIFICANT COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

December 31
Item 2009 2008
(1) Guarantee notes issued for loans and material $24,736,517 $24.651,122
purchase v
(2) Performance guarantee notes received from 271.628 243.001
customers
(3) Unused L/C -
(In Thousands)
December 31, 2009 December 31, 2008
L/C Amount Guarantee Deposit L/C Amount Guarantee Dcposit
USD 12,607 usb - ush 3,175 usD -
NTD 270.953 NTD - NTD 131 NTD -
JPY 13406 JPY - JPY 11,045 JPY -
EUR - EUR 139 EUR -

(4) IMPORTANT CONTRACTS
ATo expand the manufacturing base for the production of galvanized steel. the

Company cntered into a contract with Taiwan Sugar Corporation to obtained

the right for land usage. The contract is summarized below:

a.Duration: From Jan 1. 1996 to Dec 31, 2045,

b.Rents and payment: Annual rate of 10% of the declared land value is used for the
calculation of annual rents. If the declared land value fluctuates, the rent will be
changed accordingly.

c.Royalty: The quadruple of annual rent was paid for the first 20 years of the lease

while the agreement took effect. Afterwards, the royalty is paid every 20 years.
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d.As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, the prepaid land royalties to Taiwan Sugar
Corp. due within one year were both NT$207 thousand. which were accounted as
prepayments. Prepayments over one year were NT$1,033 thousand and NT$1,240
thousand, respectively, which were accounted as other assets - others.

B.To expand the plant, the Company signed a superficies pledged contract to acquire the
superficies. Please refer to Note 34 for the information.

(5) Please refer to note 34(2) for other endorsements and guarantees.

(6) As of December 31, 2009 and 2008. the Company provided guarantees amounting to
NT$55,650 thousand and NTS104.217 thousand to perform the contracts and
warranties.

(7) The supplier, Trafigura Beheer B.V Company. terminated the contract due to Company's
not being in accordance with the contract. which should issue the Letter of credit, and
applied for arbitration in LME seeking monetary damages of US$7,904 thousand plus
interest. The Company contradicted no obligation to issue the Lctter of credit or do
the payment due to that Trafigura Beheer B.V didn't deliver certain quantities of zinc
on the agreed day according to the contract. The result of the arbitration cannot
be determined at this time.

(8) Regarding the purchase transactions between the Company and Lin Kang Heary Indastral
Co.. Ltd. in 2004, National Tax Administration of southern Taiwan Province, Ministry of
Finance had dispute on aforementioned business tax counterparty recognition in
December 2008. The disputed business tax amount and related fine were both $8,725
thousand, and the Company filed an application for recheck in January 2009. Upon
consultation with legal experts, the Company is confident in winning the case. Based on
conservatism. the Company estimated and recognized above amounts (as other loss and
a write-oft from tax refundable).

The application for recheck had been processed by National Tax Administration of southern
Taiwan Province. As of April 21, 2010, the result of above-mentioned recheck hasn't be
determined.

(9) Significant construction contracts

(A) As of December 31, 2009, some constructions have been contracted but not yet completed.

The estimated total cost. prepaid construction cost and projected completion years of the
important constructions with the contract prices over $150 million were as follows:
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Projected
completion year/

Total contract price/ cost/Completion Accumulated

Construction Estimated total cost percentage recognized gain (loss)
Idle Handling & Scrap 253,500 158.191 2010
Charging E.D.T Crane 240522 45.74% 5936
for Tung Ho Steel
Taoyuan works
Procurement Section
One lot of ED.T Crane 156.600 125.030 2010
for Tung Ho Steel 152,792 69.57% 2,649
Taoyuan works
Procurement Section
New Construction 330.394 376.370 2010
Project of Glory 391619 93.28% (61.225)
Collective Residence
Lijin Consturction-AS 301.048 308.135 2010
Consturction 317.540 92.87% (16.492)
New Construction 785.834 670.207 2010
Project of Da Qian 730.363 86.63% 48.056
Collective Residence
New residential complex 185.702 115,451 2010
construction - Du Hsiou by 185.603 10.00% 10
Kun Hsing Chu Ho Fa
Steel structure construction 150,906 126,451 2010
for Tzu Chi's Shuangho 135.149 90.57% 142270
Ching szu Temple
Consturction Project of 152.890 142,561 2010
E-Da Development Corp. 149,540 -
New residential complex 188,326 4229 2011
construction - Yu shang 188,062 - -

Yuan for De Sheng
Development Co.. Lid.

(B) As of December 31, 2008. some constructions have been contracted but not yet completed.
The estimated total cost, prepaid construction cost and projected completion years of the
important constructions with the contract prics over $150 million were as follows:
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Projected
Prepaid construction completion year/
Total contract price/ cost/Completion Accumulated

Construction Estimated total cost percentage recognized gain/(loss)
New Construction 330,394 258,524 2010
Project of Glory 358.850 15.60% (28.456)
Collective Residence
New Construction 180.023 195,653 2010
Project of Tian xi 5th 211.196 52.87% (3117
Collective Residence
New Construction 785.834 633,542 . 2010
Project of Da Qian 730.363 52.15% 28.928
Collective Residence
Minghung Construction- 322,667 332.241 2009
The Art of Sin Si 342542 91.27% (19.875)
Collective Housing
Project
Fu Tsu Construction 177.000 141,027 2009
Co.,Ltd.-CBU Building 176,469 89.76% 477
Project in Plant in
Taichung base of AU
Optronics Corp.
Lijin Construction, 301,048 308,166 2009
Zhenyi Construction- 317.540 88.55% (16,492)
A5 Construction
Ladle Handling & Scrap 253.500 5.295 2010
Charging E.O.T Cranes 240522 20.00% 2,596
for Tung Ho Steel
Taoyuan works
Procurement Section
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37.MATURITY ANALYSIS OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Assets and liabilities of the consolidated entities related to steel structure engineering
businesses are classified as current and non-current according to their operating cycles. The
amounts receivable or due and payable within or after one year after the balance sheet date

were summarized as follows:

December 31. 2009

Item Due within one year Due after one year Total
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $2.301,557 $ - $2,301.557
Financial assets at fair value through 1.007,280 - 1,007.280
profit or loss - cuirent
Bond investments with no active market - 2.000 - 2.000
current
Notes receivable 132,232 - 132,232
Accounts receivable (incl. related parties) 3.058.692 - 3.058.692
Other receivables (incl. related parties) 259,381 - 259.381
Inventories 3.758.602 112,570 3.871.172
Prepayments 183.201 - 183,201
Noncurrent assets held for sale 9,675 - 9.675
Deferred income tax assets - current 30935 - 30935
Restricted assets - current 120,015 - 120,015
Total $10.863,570 $112,570 $10.976,140
Liabilities
Short - term loans $5,772.482 3 - $5.772.482
Short - term bills payable 549,365 - 549365
Notes payable 350488 - 350488
Accounts payable (incl. related parties) 533,748 - 533,748
Income tax payable 19.507 - 19,507
Accrued expenses 396.979 - 396,979
Other payables 68.605 - 68,605
Advancc receipts 149,782 - 149,782
Long - term liabilitics - current portion 782,000 - 782.000

Total

$8.622,956 S - $8.622,956
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December 31. 2008
Item Due within one year Due after one year Total
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $2.439,657 $ - $2,439.657
Financial assets at fair value through 680.728 - 680.728
profit or loss - current
Bond investments with no active market - 2.000 - 2.000
current
Notes receivable 150,984 - 150984
Accounts receivable (incl. related parties) 1.792.365 - 1.792.365
Other receivables (incl. related parties) 205.071 - 205.071t
Inventories 3519.242 665478 4.184.720
Prepayments 36,105 - 36.105
Deferred income tax assets - cuirent 155.801 155,801
Restricted assets - current 145171 - 145171
Total $9.127.124 $665.478 $9.792,602
Liabilities
Short - term loans $4.711,395 S $4.711.395 '
Short - term bills payable 498,866 - 498,866
Notes payable ' 661,423 - 661,423
Accounts payable (incl. related parties) 222.794 - 222,794
Income tax payable 268,525 - 268.525
Accrued expenses 358,903 - 358.903
Other payables 79.074 79.074
Advance receipts 151.443 - 151443
Long - term liabilities - current portion 1.011.500 - 1,011,500
Total $7963,923 § - $7.963.923
55—
NON-CONFIDENTIAL




NON-CONFIDENTIAL

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(1) Fair value of financial instruments

Non-derivative financial instruments

PUBLIC FILE

December 31, 2009

Assets Book Value Fair Value
Cash & cash equivalents $2.301.557 $2.301.557
Financial assets at fair value through profit or 1,000,374 1.000.374
loss - current
Bond investments with no active market - 2,000 2,000
current
Notes and accounts receivable 3.450.305 3.450.305
Restricted assets - current 120,015 120.015
Financial assets carried at cost - noncurrent 2,948,480 -
Bond investments with no active market - 4,000 4.000
noncurrent
Refundable deposits 5.363 5363
Restricted assets - noncurrent 6.000 6.000
Liabilities
Short-term loans 5.772.482 5.772482
Short-term bills payable 549,365 549.365
Notes and accounts payable 952.841 952.841
Long-term liabilities - current portion 782.000 782.000
Long-term liabilities 7.960.000 7.960.000
Derivative financial instruments
Assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss - current
Investment-linked life insurance 6.906 6.906
Financial asset at fair value through profit or
loss assets- noncurrent
Compound commodities 279.243 279.243
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Non-derivative financial instruments December 31, 2008
Assets Book Value Fair Value
Cash & cash equivalents $2.439.657 $2.439.657
Financial assets at fair value through profit or 663,900 663.900
loss - current
Bond investments with no active market - 2,000 2.000
cunrent
Notes and accounts receivable 2,148,420 2,148,420
Restricted assets - current 145171 145.171
Financial assets carried at cost - noncurrent 2.503.207 -
Bond investments with no active market - 6,000 6.000
noncurrent
Refundable deposits 7.543 7.543
Restricted assets - noncurrent 7.600 7,600
Liabilities
Short-term loans 4,711.395 4,711,395
Short-term bills payable 498,866 498.866
Notes and accounts payable 963.291 1963.291
Long-term liabilities - current portion 1.011.500 1.011.500
Long-term liabilities 7,449.000 7,449 000

Derivative financial instruments

Assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit or

loss - current

Investment-linked life insurance 6.927 6927
Investment-linked commodities 9901 9901

A.The methods and assumptions applied on the fair values of financial instruments are summarized
as follows: '
(A) For short-term instruments, the fair values were determined based on their carrying
amounts because of the short maturities of the instruments. This method was
applied to cash and cash equivalents. notes and accounts receivable, restricted assets
- current and noncurrent, short-term loans, short-term bills payable. notes and

accounts payable, long-term liabilities- current portion.
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(B) The fair value of financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss is based on
quoted market prices in an active market, and its fair value can be reliably measured. If the
securities do not have market prices, fair value is measured on the basis of financial
or other information.The Company uses estimates and assumptions that are consistent with
information that market participants would use in setting a price for these securities.

(C) The fair values of financial assets carried at cost that are not publicly traded are not measured
since they do not have quoted prices in an active market.

(D) The fair value of bond investments with no active market is determined at amortized

cost.

(E) The fair values of other noncurrent financial assets and liabilities including
refundable deposits, restricted assets - noncurrent are determined at their carrving
amounts as payments are either made or received in cash and the time to receive or
the payment is certain.

(F) Derivative Financial Instruments:

The fair value of derivative financial instruments is determined by using the valuation
method as no market price is available. The information used as basis for determining
the Company’s assumptions in applying valuation method is consistent with that used

by market participants in determihing the prices of the financial instruments. The fair

value was provided by the counterparty financial institution.

(G) Long-term liabilitics:

The fair values thereof are determined by the present values of future cash flows.
The values discounted at the interest rates of simular long-term loan (with similar
matuirty date) available for the Company.

B.The fair values of the Company's financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss excluding those of listed (OTC) shares and funds, which are determined at their quoted
market prices, are determined using valuation techniques.

C.Gain (loss) recognized for the changes in fair value of derivatives estimated using valuation
techniques were NT$2,592 thousand and NTS$(1.879) thousand for the years ended
December 31, 2009 and 2008 . respectively.

D.As of December 31. 2009 and 2008. financial assets exposed to cash flow interest rate risk were
NT$1.730.431 thousand and NT$1.898.61 ! thousand. respectively, and financial liabilities

exposed to cash flow interest rate risk were NTS14.514.483 thousand and NT$13,171.895
thousand. respectively; financial assets exposed to fair value interest rate risk were
NT$426,015 thousand and NT$485,570 thousand. respectively, and financial liabilities
exposed to fair value interest rate risk were NT$549,365 thousand and NT$498.866
thousand, respectively.
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E.Interest income from the financial assets other than the financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 was NT$8.273 thousand and
NT$18,341 thousand, respectively; interest expenses resulting from the financial assets other
than the financial assets at fair value through profit or loss for the years ended
December 31. 2009 and 2008 were NT$284.351 thousand and NT$345.109 thousand,
respectively.

(2) Information of major financial risk
A Market risk
a.The Company's investment in funds and listed (OTC) stocks were classified as “tinancial
assets at fair value through profit or loss - current™. These assets were measured at their
fair values. which will be influenced by the market interest rate change.
b.The Company undertook investment in subordinate financial bonds, which are mostly issued
at floating interest rates. The impact of markel interest rate changes on the fair values was
considered to be immaterial.
B.Credit risk
Credit risk represents the potential loss that would be incurred by the Company if the
counter-parties or third parties breached the contracts. The Company's financial instruments
are affected by its credit risk concentration,component, contract amounts and other receivables.
The maximum credit risks associated with the financial instruments on hand as of the balance
sheet date approximate theircarrying amounts.
C.Liquidity risk
The Company maintained sufficient fund to meet our operating capital requirements. The
Company does not anticipate any liquidity risks associated with tailure to source required
funding. Part of the Company’s equity investments (financial assets at tair value through
profit or loss) could be sold rapidly at prices approximating fair value. There are liquidity
risks for the financial assets carried at cost and bond investments with no active
market because no active market prices are available.

D.Cash flow risk due to changes in interest rate
The Company’s short and long-term loans are mostly issued at floating interest rate.

Accordingly, the yield rate of these debt instruments will fluctuate with changes in interest rate.

19% increase in interest rate will result in an additional cash outflow of NT$ 145,145 thousand.

39. RECLASSIFICATION
Certain accounts in the financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31. 2008 have
been reclassified to conform to the presentation of the financial statements as of and for the year
ended December 31, 2009.
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